; (117
Johurg J DA\7 ‘

a world class African city

Johannesburg Development Agency

ANNUAL REPORT
A0 2




11l
J.DANZ

2011/12

Company Information:

Registration Number:

Parent Municipality:

Directors:

Registered Address:
Postal Address:
Telephone Number:
Fax number:
Website:

Bankers:
Auditors:

Company Secretary:

1 July 2011 — 30 June 2012

2001/005101/07

City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality

L Vutula (Chairperson) (Retired 24 April 2012)
G Simelane (Chairperson) (Appointed 24 April 2012)
T Mendrew (Acting Chief Executive Officer)

L W Matlhape (Retired 24 April 2012)

N V Lila

D Naidu

P Masilo

D Lewis (Resigned 5 February 2012)

B Majola (Appointed 24 April 2012)

P Mashiane (Appointed 24 April 2012)

A Rajah (Appointed 24 April 2012)

W Thwala (Appointed 24 April 2012)

P Kubu (Appointed 24 April 2012)

3 President Street, Newtown, Johannesburg
PO Box 61877, Marshalltown, 2107

+ 27 11 688-7850

+27 11 688-7899

www.jda.org.za

ABSA Bank Limited
The Auditor-General

Adam Goldsmith

JDA vision: JDA builds a more welcoming and competitive Johannesburg that is a better city
to live, work and play in.

JDA mission: JDA is a city development agency of the City of Johannesburg that manages and
facilitates developments in efficient and innovative ways to build an equitable,
sustainable and resilient city.


http://www.jda.org.za/

AG
BEE
BRT
CBD
CBO
CEO
CID
CJP
CoJ
DED
DevCo
DPUM

ED
EPWP
FIFA
GDS
GPG
HBY
HR
IC
ICDS
IDC
IDP
IEMP
JDA
JPC
KPA
KPI
LPTF
ME
MFMA
MMC
MSA
MTC
NDPG
NGO
OSHACT
RSDF
SEZ
SHU
SMME
SPTN
T
UDF

Abbreviations and Acronyms

Auditor General

Black Economic Empowerment
Bus Rapid Transit

Central Business District
Community Based Organisation
Chief Executive Officer

Central Improvement District
Central Johannesburg Partnership
City of Johannesburg

Department of Economic Development
Development Company

Department of Development Planning & Urban Management (now known as
the Department of Development Planning)

Executive Director

Expanded Public Works Programme
Fédérationinternationale de Football Association.
Growth and Development Strategy
Gauteng Provincial Government

Hillborow, Berea, Yeoville

Human Resources

Inner City

Inter City Distribution System

Industrial Development Corporation
Integrated Development Plan

Integrated Environmental Management Policy
Johannesburg Development Agency

City of Joburg Property Company

Key Performance Area

Key Performance Indicator

Lenasia Public Transport Facility
Municipal entity

Municipal Finance Management Act
Member of Mayoral Committee

Municipal Systems Act

Metropolitan Trading Company
Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant
Non-Governmental Organisation
Occupational Health & Safety Act
Regional Spatial Development Framework
Soweto Empowerment Zone

Shareholder Unit

Small Medium & Micro Enterprises
Strategic Public Transport Network

Taxi Industry

Urban Development Framework



TABLE OF CONTENTS

CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION AND CORPORATE PROFILE
Section 1.1: Corporate profile and overview of the entity

Section 1.2: Strategic objectives

Section 1.3: MMC'’s foreword

Section 1.4: Chairman’s foreword

Section 1.5: CEO’s report

CHAPTER TWO: PERFOMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Section 2.1: Highlights and achievements

Section 2.2: Performance against IDP and SBDIP scorecard
Section 2.4: Plans for the next six months

CHAPTER THREE: KEY PROJECT DETAILS

CHAPTER FOUR: DIRECTOR’S REPORT AND GOVERNANCE

Section 4.1: Corporate governance statement

Section 4.2: Assessment of arrears on municipal taxes and service charges
Section 4.3: Board of Directors

Section 4.4: Board committees

Section 4.5: Director’s remuneration

Section 4.6: Company secretarial function

Section 4.7: Risk management and internal controls

Section 4.8: Sustainability report

CHAPTER FIVE: HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL MANAGEMENT
Section 5.1: Human resource management

Section 5.2: Employment equity and succession plan

Section 5.3: Skills development and training

Section 5.4: Performance management

Section 5.5: HIV/AIDS in the workplace

Section 5.6: Employee benefits

CHAPTER SIX: FINANCIAL ASSESSMENT

Section 6.1: Capital projects

Section 6.2: Statement of financial position

Section 6.3: Statement of financial performance

Section 6.4: Cash flow statements

Section 6.5: Supply chain management and black economic empowerment
Section 6.6: Internal audit and Auditor-General management letter issues

ANNEXURE A: JDA SCORECARD FOR 2010/11
ANNEXURE B: HR TABLES

ANNEXURE C: ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ANNEXURE D: CONTRACT SCHEDULES
ANNEXURE E: PROJECT DETAILS

13

23

30

45

51

A61
B66
C70
D133
E137



2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
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CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION AND CORPORATE PROFILE
Section 1.1: Corporate profile and overview

The JDA was formed as part of the CoJ’s iGoli 2002 re-engineering process and the iGoli 2010 framework. The iGoli 2010
framework established the basis for developing a long-term vision and strategy for the CoJ, which culminated in the Joburg 2030
strategy as the City’s blueprint for economic development over three decades. The establishment of the JDA provided an agency
dedicated to area-based regeneration, first in the inner city and later throughout the Johannesburg metropolitan area.

The Joburg 2040 GDS, which was launched in October 2011, responds to the multiple challenges and uncertain futures faced by
the city. To cope with change, the City of Johannesburg aims to strengthen the adaptive capacity of the City and its citizens, so that
it may become more resilient to potential and unpredictable futures. Rather than develop a blueprint plan for the future, the Joburg
2040 GDsS lays the foundation for multi-level, integrated responses to the challenges the city faces.

The Joburg 2040 GDS is driven by the goal of capable and capacitated communities and individuals. With this realised,
the City of Johannesburg will be able to achieve a more sustainable, inclusive future, in which communities and the
individuals who live in them hold the potential and the means to imagine and grow their neighbourhoods, their
communities and themselves. A balanced focus on the environment management and services, good governance,
economic growth and human and social development will assist in achieving a resilient and sustainable city — and a city in
which all aspire to live.

The 2011-16 IDP contains four cluster plans which respond to the four key outcomes set out in the GDS. In terms of this process,
the JDA is located in the cluster dealing with Sustainable Services, and has an interest in the cluster dealing with Economic
Growth.

The JDA was established expressly for the purpose of facilitating area based developments that give effect to the strategic city
development vision and objectives. Its cumulative and growing experience in the developments it manages represents a significant
asset for the CoJ. As development manager of these initiatives, JDA coordinates and manages capital investment and other
programmes involving both public and private sector stakeholders. In particular, the JDA has gained significant experience in the
following areas:

Inner city regeneration

Development of economic areas

Regeneration of historically marginalised areas
Transit-oriented developments

The JDA continues to expand and enhance its competencies and meet the needs of the City of Johannesburg. Furthermore, the
JDA continues to deepen the economic and social impacts of its work and ensure that environmental impacts are mitigated as far
as possible.

Institutional Arrangements

The JDA receives its mandate from the CoJ, acting through the Executive Mayor and Council. It is contractually accountable to the
Department of Development Planning and the Member of the Mayoral Committee (MMC) responsible for Development Planning,
who exercises political oversight and to whom the JDA undertakes compliance reporting in respect of its performance scorecard.
The JDA relies on the Department of Development Planning for service delivery direction in terms of its contractual obligations
contained in the Service Delivery Agreement and on the MMC for its political mandate. The Shareholder Unit (SHU) provides
corporate governance and related support such as financial sustainability and compliance reporting and review.

JDA also interacts with the Development Planning and Urban Management Section 79 oversight Council Committee for oversight of
its activities and functions.

In respect of strategic and operational matters the JDA management is accountable to the JDA’s Board of Directors which stands in
a fiduciary relationship with the company.

JDA co-ordinates its area-based development activities and other catalytic interventions, with the Department of Development
Planning.JDA also engages with client departments that take ownership of the infrastructure and assets created by the JDA. In
2010/11 these include the Department of Transportation (including the Johannesburg Roads Agency and Metro Trading Company);
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the Department of Economic Development (including Johannesburg Property Company); City Power; Johannesburg City Parks; the
Department of Community Development; and Johannesburg Social Housing Company.

Figure 1: JDA’s relationship with the City of Johannesburg

City of Johannesburg

DPUM Section 79 Committee ‘ I Inner City Section 79 Committee |
MMC for Development Planning and Urban Management HJDA Board of Directors

Department of Development Planning || Shareholder Unit (SHU)
and Urban Management (DPUM)
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and consultation and oversight

Corporate
governance

Direction and guidance
for strategic and
business planning

JDA

As noted above, the JDA’s capacity to focus on area-based development and to undertake its various functions, is dependent on
the Sustainable Services Clusters’ strategic leadership in respect of all of the CoJ’s development activities. Further, the JDA has
been appointed as the CoJ’s implementing agent for the BRT and some of the NDPG funded programmes.

Key Functions

The JDA’s service of development management involves the delivery of a range of developments and programmes aimed at
achieving the goals of the GDS, within the framework of its mandate from the CoJ.

In the provision of a development management service, JDA stimulates and implements area-based initiatives involving both capital
and non-capital developments. This service involves:

B Development and project packaging: This involves identifying strategic opportunities for responding to the CoJ’s
focus area by bringing together all the relevant stakeholders and parties to the initiative, and developing a plan for
implementation.

B Development and project facilitation and co-ordination: This involves working with the various stakeholders and
parties to an initiative and ensuring they are undertaking their roles as expected and required.

B Overall development implementation: This involves ensuring the development is implemented as planned. In this
regard, the JDA may outsource specific project management functions within a development, while retaining its
overall accountability as a development manager.

B Assessment of the impact of our developments: This is sought to analyse, review and quantify the private sector
investment in the various intervention areas of the JDA and assess the socio-economic impacts of our interventions.
This is undertaken, in the main, by analysing property market trends as well as the factors that influence investor
interest in the JDA development areas.

The JDA promotes growth and development through the development and promotion of efficient urban environments in defined
geographic areas. The JDA is mandated to work in all parts of the CoJ including historically marginalized areas of the city. This
includes working on the regeneration of areas of the city that are either in decay or declining, in order to enhance their ability to
contribute to the development of the city and the quality of life of its residents.

This also includes working in areas that require public investment in order to catalyse area-based regeneration and private sector
investment. The assessment of private sector investments is guided in essence by the theory that public sector interventions (such
as investment in infrastructure, urban environment upgrades, proper urban management, provision of tax incentives) in declining
areas provides the necessary platform for private sector investment and re-investment into these areas.
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Section 1.2: Strategic objectives

The objectives of the JDA were restated in 2011/12 in order to achieve greater alignment with the emerging strategic priorities of
the CoJ. These are to:

e Restructure the city by developing defined, strategic geographic areas around the city and the movement corridors that link
them.

e Promote economic growth by creating efficient and competitive business environments that cluster industries and functions in
these areas.

e Turn around declining investment trends in these areas by upgrading public space, generating shared visions for future
development, and encouraging urban management partnerships.

e Develop local economic potential in marginalised areas to promote access to jobs and markets.
e  Encourage sustainable energy consumption and land-use in the city by developing strategic transit nodes and corridors.
e  Promote economic empowerment through the structuring and procurement of JDA developments.

e  Support productive development partnerships and co-operation between all stakeholders in these areas.

JDA'’s Strategic Agenda, 2011/12
The restructuring of the space economy in Johannesburg will depend on achieving the following development outcomes:

a) The regeneration of key economic nodes such as the Johannesburg inner city, and the Randburg and Roodepoort CBDs
to enable these areas to accommodate a greater agglomeration of economic activity and more intensity of land use.

b) The development of selected nodes in marginalised areas to stimulate local economies, increase competitiveness, and
broaden access to markets and jobs.

c) The development of high-density movement corridors anchored by transit nodes to restructure city form, promote efficient
land use and transport energy consumption.

IDP Programmes and Delivery Agenda

5-year IDP Programme

Key programme output 2011/12

Medium term programme output 2012/13 to 2013/14

Inner city regeneration
programme

Johannesburg inner city upgrading projects

Johannesburg inner city upgrading projects

Randburg CBD regeneration

Randburg CBD regeneration

Roodepoort CBD regeneration

Upgrading of marginalised
areas programme

Kliptown Development

Kliptown Development

Orlando East Station precinct upgrading

Orlando East Station precinct upgrading

Stretford Station precinct upgrading in Orange Farm

Stretford Station precinct upgrading in Orange Farm

Diepsloot Development

Diepsloot Development

Township retail partnership programme (Diepsloot)

Township retail partnership programme (Diepsloot, Orange
Farm and Ivory Park)

Ivory Park Development

Transit-oriented
development programme

Rea Vaya BRT infrastructure for trunk route 1B

Rea Vaya BRT infrastructure for trunk route 2

Westgate Station precinct upgrade

Westgate Station precinct upgrade

Johannesburg Art Gallery Rea Vaya station precinct
upgrade

Johannesburg Art Gallery Rea Vaya station precinct upgrade

Randburg Transit Junction and Rea Vaya trunk route

Randburg Transit Junction and Rea Vaya trunk route

Kazerne transit hub development

Kazerne transit hub development

Soweto commuter railway station precinct developments
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Section 1.3: MMC'’s foreword

Despite steady development gains over the last ten years including the regeneration of the inner city, and transformative
investments in marginalised areas of the city, we must remain aware of the remaining challenges we face in Johannesburg. The
poor struggle to tap into economic resources and opportunities and the question is how we start linking people to opportunities and
opportunities to people. The City of Johannesburg launched its Growth and Development Strategy mayoral outreach process in
2011. This was the largest public participation ever undertaken by the City and sought the voices and opinions of residents
throughout Joburg, who told us how they would want to live in the future. Through a comprehensive collaboration, inputs were
formalised in to the GDS/Joburg 2040 strategy which sets a clear path for the coming decades. The Joburg 2040 vision is people-
centred and also talks about achieving resilience, sustainability and liveability. From henceforth the Halala Joburg Awards should
be aimed at highlighting those projects and programmes that speak directly to the Joburg 2040 vision. They should seek to
celebrate efforts that are beginning to actualise the City’s vision as outlined in the Integrated Development Programme (IDP) Key
Flagship Projects:

e A shift to low carbon infrastructure and urban water management — | would like us to start recognising projects that
introduce demand side initiatives as far as the use of energy and water sources are concerned within privately and
publicly developed buildings, be it for commercial or residential use.

e As a city we encourage the rolling out of “separation at source” waste management initiatives, not only as a city-wide
strategy but as something building owners must implement in their buildings. | see a partnership between the city and our
stakeholders working towards an integrated waste management programme.

The rollout of the Rea Vaya opens up new opportunities for development and investment. The City has identified Transit
Oriented Development interventions as vital in the space economy. This will promote inclusionary development initiatives
along public transit corridors, affordable housing and commerce into these nodes, in order to ensure that, we not only take
people to jobs, but we bring jobs to people and connect people with jobs.

¢ In this endeavour to promote sustainability, the inner city is a key priority. With approximately half a million residents in the
inner city the need for decent affordable housing is ever present and this despite investors and the city having made
incredible strides in the provision of decent affordable housing. We will continue to recognise these initiatives.

e According to a UN Habitat study on “Improving Income and Housing: Employment Generation in Low-Income
Settlements’there is an increasing recognition that the creation of income-generating opportunities must be a basic
objective of national development policies in developing countries, many constraints to the implementation of specific
measures to promote such opportunities still exist. This may be true, however economic growth is reliant on all of us to
make it work in our context, the private sector, community based organisations, SMMEs as well as the city need to work
together to ensure economic growth within the inner city that benefits all. We will have to recognise entrepreneurship and
emerging enterprises operating in the inner city. As we all may be aware, beginning and sustaining SMME operations is
always a challenge especially with the current national and global economic conditions. However, in the true spirit of Jozi,
we always find young entrepreneurs against all odds are operating in the Inner City as the place is naturally conducive for
entrepreneurship. We also continue to see partnerships between established and emerging enterprises to transfer skills
and knowledge.

Talking about the GDS 2040, the Executive Mayor, in his state of the City address said “resilience is about our ability to work
together and support each other in times of need. It is also about our ability to adapt to difficult situations by recognising the
strengths and assets and by having the capacity to mobilise them in times of need. Sustainability is about getting rid of inequalities
and poverty as well as the creation of a better life for all. It is also about acknowledging that the city must continue; therefore we
must harness our natural resources that can be sustained into the future. Whilst liveablility is about an environment that promotes
civic engagement and a sense of place through safe, sustainable choices of socio-economic opportunities.”

As you reflect on the JDA's results for 2011/12, | challenge you to think about what we have achieved together, how we have done
this, and how we can sustain these results and take Johannesburg into a bright new future.

Councillor Ros Greeff
Member of the Mayoral Committee for Development Planning
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Section 1.4: Chairperson’s foreword

There have been many changes at the JDA in 2011/12. At the Annual General Meeting in April 2012 the Executive Mayor
appointed a new Board of Directors for the JDA. As the incoming Chairperson of the Board, first | need to acknowledge the
outgoing Chairperson, Luthando Vutula, and non-executive director, Lesenyego Matlhape, for their dedicated service and
leadership of the JDA.

For continuity we are grateful to have some members continuing to serve as non-executive directors. They are Nopasika Lila,
Dayalan Naidu and Popo Masilo. The new members of the Board are Buyiswa Majola, Pam Mashiane, Wellington Thwala, Papi
Kubu, and Boeta Rajah. | look forward to working with this team in order to maintain the JDA’s track record of service delivery
excellence and sound governance during this Mayoral term. We will also be focussing on deepening the social impact of the JDA’s
development programme, and the newly established Social and Ethics Committee will provide leadership on this issue.

One of the immediate priorities for the new Board of Directors is promote stability, recruit for senior management appointments and
fill vacant funded posts. We recognise that the uncertainty associated with the institutional review that is underway may have had a
destabilising effect on the JDA team, and we hope to see the rapid conclusion of some of the key decisions that will impact on the
JDA operation and staff establishment.

This report provides an overview of the 2011/12 financial year. It tells a mostly positive story of good performance against targets.
While project outputs were largely achieved, this was done without fully expending the capital budget that was allocated to the JDA
at the beginning of the year. The BRT portfolio of projects has yielded the most significant savings. This is largely due to the impact
of the shift in the route for the third trunk route. Instead of going from the inner city to Sandton via Oxford Road, the Rea Vaya
service will now run from the inner city to Alexandra via Louis Botha Avenue. From a technical perspective this is an appropriate
route, but as a result the planning and detailed design processes have been set back by about a year, and there are substantial
savings on the BRT project budget.

Thanks must go to the Shareholder for cooperation and leadership; employees of the JDA,; the committed and enthusiastic private
partners who respond to JDA’s development activities; and the public development partners and funders who have contributed to
the JDA'’s success this year.

We trust that the JDA will be able to build on this foundation year for the Mayoral term and achieve the ambitious strategic
objectives outlined in the Joburg 2040 Growth and Development Strategy and the Integrated Development Plan 2012. By
positioning the JDA as an agency that is responsible for reshaping the space economy in order to create a more resilient, inclusive
and sustainable city, the City of Johannesburg acknowledges the strategic importance of this institution and its dedicated
employees. We will work together to build a better city for all.

Getty Simelane
Chairperson
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Meet the Directors

At the Annual General Meeting, held on 23 April 2012, 3 directors were reappointed, and 6 new directors were appointed to serve on the JDA’s Board.

Khangekile (Getty) Simelane is a certified Human Resources practitioner, social entrepreneur and governance panellist. She
has qualifications from the University of Zululand, Wits Business School, Bath University (UK) and North Western University
(USA). She sits on the Boards of the SA Post Office, SANBS and the Diepsloot Social Action Committee. Getty recently
completed a term as a Director and Chairperson of City Power and takes over as Chairperson of the JDA.

Papi Kubu has had a wide-ranging career in the military, tourism, hospitality, and media industries. He
has a BA qualification from the University of London, and diplomas in journalism, auctioneering and
printing techniques. He is a member of professional and industry associations; and has held
directorships with the National Tourism Forum, the National Museum Council and the Veterans
Foundation. Papi is currently Chairman of PKX Capital, a financial services company.

business management. She has worked in various positions in the construction, security and
hospitality industries; and has held leadership positions in political and community structures. Buyi's
interests and causes include the elderly and the youth, and she is an active member of committees
representing taxi stakeholders, women, commuters and developers amongst others.Buyi will Chair the
new Social and Ethics Committee of the JDA.
Popo Masilo completed his BProc (law) degree at Unisa. He was admitted as an attorney in 2002,
joining the firm R Masilo Attorney as a partner in 2007. He focuses mainly on civil litigation,
commercial, family and labour law. He is an executive director of Morentho Hygiene Services, and
continues to serve as a non-executive director of the JDA, a role he took up in 2008. Popo will Chair
the HR and Remuneration Committee.

Dayalan Naiduhas a BPaed science degree from the University of Durban Westville, graduating in
1986. His career as an industrial engineer and operations manager has spanned the transport, retail
and industrial sectors. He is currently owner and general manager responsible for market development
and production management at World Class Industrial.

Dayalan will continue to apply his management skills and knowledge as a non-executive director and

Nopasika Lila continues as a member of the Board of Directors, and Chair of the Audit Committee,
having first joined the JDA in 2008. She is a Chartered Accountant and Chief Financial Officer of the
Eskom Pension and Provident Fund, and serves as a non-executive director of the JDA and Chair of
. the Audit Committee. She also serves as a member of the Audit Committee of the Department of

International Relations and Cooperation (DIRCO) as well as the National Arts Festival. Nopasika has
experience in the fields of financial management, corporate governance, strategy and training. She has
run her own company, Astute Intellect, and she speaks and writes Mandarin.

Buyiswa Octavia Majola is a community activist with qualifications in law, public relations and

Chair of the Development and Risk Committee at the JDA.

Ashraf Alli (Boeta) Rajah was member of the negotiating team that established the first democratic
local government structures in Johannesburg. He also served as a Councillor of the City of
Johannesburg from 1994 to 2011. His responsibilities included sports, arts, culture and recreation;
planning and development; housing and urbanisation; finance and services; and he served as Chair of
the Inner City Committee. Boeta has qualifications in local government and project management and
has experience in labour relations and dispute resolution from his work as a unionist.

A
Pamela Mashiane is founder and managing director of Segakweng Associates Strategy Consultants.
She is a strategist with over ten years’ experience in the chemical and banking and advertising
industries. Pam has a BSc (Chemistry) and project management, marketing and business science
‘ qualifications, including an MBA. She is also a non-executive board member of the Kgosi

s
L] : Neighbourhood foundation, which is a non-profit organisation aimed at helping vulnerable children.

i

Wellington Didibhuku Thwala is an associate professor at the University of Johannesburg (UJ) in the
Faculty of Engineering and the Built Environment. He has a PhD in Engineering from Wits University
and his research focus includes the job creation impact of construction programmes. Wellington holds
leadership positions in a number of professional and industry bodies, and serves as editor-in-chief of
the Journal of Construction Project Management and Innovation.

!

h

In addition to the non-executive directors, three independent members have been appointed to the Audit Committee. These are Mr Krishna Govender; Ms
Janine Vergotine; and Ms Nokuthula Selamolela.
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Section 1.5: CEO’s Report

The year that came to its end on 30 June 2012 was a year of much consolidation and change for the JDA. With more limited capital
budgets to spend we had space to reflect on our impact and results over the last ten years and consider how to learn from and
improve many of our urban development and construction practices. Through constructive discussions with stakeholders and
partners, we reviewed our approach to development facilitation, our role in the informal city, our public art programme, and the
impacts of our development projects for the hosting of the 2010 Fifa World Cup.

We also took some time to document some of our developments and the lessons we have learnt along the way. Case studies have
been written up for Newtown, Kliptown, Ellis Park and the Stretford Station Precinct in Orange Farm; and we have worked with
partners on projects like the story of the making of the Constitution, One Law for One Nation; and the story of the design impact of
the World Cup, Reflections and Opportunities (which was published in both English and Portuguese so that it can be shared with
colleagues in Brazil who are preparing to host the 2014 Fifa World Cup.

We faced a very uncertain year and much patience was required when the City of Joburg'’s institutional review process took much
longer than expected to deliver clear guidance on institutional shifts, changes in mandate, and recruitment processes. As a result of
the moratorium on recruitment of senior employees, the JDA ends the year with some key vacant posts. We look forward to seeing
these posts being filled as a matter of urgency in the new year.

| have now completed two years as acting CEO, and would like to express my heartfelt thanks to the Board members you provided
steady support and guidance during this very uncertain time; and to the dedicated employees of the JDA who worked alongside me
to help deliver projects that the JDA can be proud of, and solve difficult problems to maintain the JDA’s reputation of being a ‘can
do’ organisation that makes Joburg great.

Performance Review

Project progress for the full portfolio of JDA projects is generally satisfactory at the end of the 4" quarter. The total JDA portfolio
achieved a completion rate of 87% against project targets in 2011/12. This is disappointing in light of the JDA’s performance in
previous years but it is well within accepted construction management benchmarks. All over the world public construction projects
take longer than anticipated. The graph shows JDA'’s project completion rates for the last 6 years. From this analysis it is clear that
this is not the worst year on record, but it is also not the best. The reasons for delays in the completion of projects are discussed in
more detail in this report, but there are also institutional reasons for the reduced performance.

JDA project completion rates at the end of each year from 2006/07 to 2011/12
120.0% 114:6%
100.0% 97.1% /\\

80.0% 76.5% 92.1% 57.09
N

60.0% 72.8%

40.0%

20.0%

0-0% T T T T T
2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

During 2011/12 the JDA lost a key member of the Development team when the Chief Operating Officer resigned to take up a
position in the private sector. Due to the moratorium on senior appointments we have not been able to recruit a new COO. While
the Senior Development Managers have fulfilled the COQO’s responsibilities in terms of development and programme management,
the role he played in resolving issues that might delay projects was invaluable to the JDA’s performance.

The primary reason for delays in the completion of projects is related to the redesign of the Rea Vaya trunk route which has
delayed implementation and expenditure in the portfolio of projects that dominates the JDA’s programme of work. The marginalised
areas portfolio achieved more than 100% of project outputs in 2011/12; and the inner city portfolio achieved 89%. | am very pleased
that we managed to achieve these results under very difficult circumstances in a year when institutional transformation and
uncertainty had an impact on all City of Joburg functions.
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Organisational Review

In 2011/12 there were 4 resignations and 3 appointments at the JDA. We remain concerned that the on-going vacancies resulting
from the moratorium on senior appointments continue to undermine the effectiveness of the institution. The number of vacant
positions is a key risk to the achievement of our mandate and these posts should be filled as a matter of urgency.

In April 2012 a new Board of Directors was appointed for the JDA. | would like to take this opportunity to thank Luthando Vutula and
Lesenyego Matlhape who served as Chairman and Director of the JDA for many years. They fulfilled their responsibilities to the
JDA with diligence and care, and they should be given credit for the sound state of governance and accountability in the
organisation. | look forward to working with the continuing and new members of the Board as we settle into the new Mayoral term of
office.

Since their appointment, the new Board members have been going through an induction programme. A day has been spent
developing an understanding of the roles and responsibilities of Board members and the management team in terms of the JDA
mandate and operating model, legislative compliance requirements, and monitoring and reporting systems. We will also visit JDA
projects and provide in depth briefings on financial management, supply chain management and other functions within the JDA
operation.

Financial Review

For the financial year under review, JDA revenue was R43.9million against a budget of R46.5million. The negative variance of
R2.6million is the net result of an under-recovery of R2.7million on the development management fees line item. The development
management fees are lower than budgeted due to only 73% of the budgeted annual CAPEX expenditure having been utilised.

Overall, 73% of the total capital budget for 2011/12 has been spent. The CoJ, ICF, NDPG and other funded projects achieved an
aggregate of 96% budget spent while BRT achieved a 69% overall budget spent.

This significant underspending in the Rea Vaya BRT portfolio of projects is due to a number of reasons. The two primary ones are:

o Firstly, there have been significant delays in the Rea Vaya implementation as a result of the Mayoral Committee decision
in May 2011 to reroute the third trunk route of the BRT service. Instead of running on the planned route from the inner city
to Sandton along Oxford Road, the trunk route will now run from the inner city to Alexandra along Louis Botha Avenue.
This resulted in a number of complications in the project implementation plan including the need for a new phase of
planning and detailed design along the new route; the need to cancel or renegotiate existing contracts with professional
teams; and other unforeseen technical design requirements including the need for new integrated bus stations that can
accommodate both low and high-floor buses.

e Secondly, budgets for other sections of the BRT were determined on the basis of previous construction costs. The
construction pricing in 2011/12 was significantly lower than anticipated. We believe that this is due to a number of factors
such as a better understanding of the technical aspects of the construction work, greater capacity in the construction
industry now that the 2010 construction boom is over, and the generally negative economic outlook for the building
industry resulting in keen competition for construction tenders. This resulted in significant savings against budgets
although the construction outputs were all completed as targeted.

For the financial year under review the JDA’s operating expenses were R45 million against a budget of R49.5million. The major
variances arose in the line items of employee costs; IT related expense, planning and strategy, repairs and maintenance and
telecommunication. The telecommunications line item is pure savings as a result of strict cost control measures implemented by
management. The variance in the employee costs line item is due to some of the vacant positions budgeted for not being filled
during the year under review due to a moratorium on the filling of vacant posts issued by the office of the City Manager.

THanduono Mendrew
Chief Executive Officer
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CHAPTER TWO: PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS
Section 2.1: Highlights and achievements

Set out below is an analysis of the JDA’s performance against its KPIs in 2011/12. The report analyses the performance of the JDA
in terms of the performance scorecard (as approved in June 2011), measuring performance in terms of both the JDA's service
delivery mandate and financial and other resource management processes.

Targets are agreed between the JDA management, Board and the CoJ acting through the Department of Development Planning.
These are developed with the aim of improving the organisation’s performance and efficiency and achieving longer-term goals that
have been set for specific developments, such as area based revitalisation. A number of targets are also set by the Shareholder
Unit in compliance with Auditor-General and MFMA requirements.

Key indicators such as jobs created and capital expenditure to date are measured and independently verified by professional team
members such as quantity surveyors or project managers for each of the JDA developments. In regard to job opportunities created
in terms of EPWP, CoJ’s Economic Development Department undertakes independent verifications of the JDA’s reported job
numbers on a monthly basis.

Key to indicators:
Target achieved (at least 75% rating)
Target partially achieved (at least 50% rating)
O Target not achieved (<50% rating)

Economic Development and Job Creation

This KPA is measured in three areas:
B Creation of short-term job opportunities
B BEE spend as a % of Total Procurement (OPEX and CAPEX)
B Procurement spend on SMME as a % of Opex Procurement.

Short-term Job Creation

This indicator measures the creation of new short term jobs attributable to JDA construction projects. In the JDA’s scorecard this
measure has been aligned to the definition of the Expanded Public Works Programme (EPWP) as adopted by the City’s
Department of Economic Development (DED) as being the number of individuals employed. The number of individuals employed is
recorded each month, and the quarterly number is the total for the three months in the quarter.

During 2011/12 the JDA reported the creation of 3 571 short term job opportunities in construction across its portfolio of projects.
This is higher than the target of 2 647 for the year.

2010/11 2011/12 2011/12 % Achievement Achievement of

Baseline Target Actual for year to date Target

Short-term jobs created 3538 2647 3571 135%

As this is a measure that is subject to various interpretations and time-scales, we have undertaken a comprehensive review of the
jobs data collected by the JDA during 2011/12. This data includes that names, ID numbers, gender, nationality, disability status,
age, amount of time worked, and remuneration received. The information is collected from the main contractor every month, and
independent verification is provided by the Community Liaison Officer employed on each project.

From our analysis of the primary data for the year the following can be confirmed.

‘ Number of individuals Number of person
employed days worked
Quarter 1 877 22 664
Quarter 2 699 16 495
Quarter 3 871 17 306
Quarter 4 1578 25 865
Total 4025 82330
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This means that the JDA understated the number of job opportunities created and 152% of the job creation target was achieved in
2011/12.

While this total for the year is consistent with our reporting protocols, we can also now calculate the actual number of individuals
employed in the year as a whole (many worked on JDA construction projects across more than one quarter).

In total 1 375 individuals worked on JDA projects in 2011/12. Of these 206 or 15% were female and 1 169 or 85% were male; and
45% were youths (aged 35 or younger).It should also be noted that 1 151 of the construction workers could be confirmed as being
South African citizens with valid and verified ID numbers. As the construction work is physically challenging, there are limited
opportunities for the employment of people with disabilities (fewer than 1%).

The key statistic is that the JDA created over 82 000 person days of work in 2011/12.
Procurement spend on SMME as a % of Total Procurement (OPEX only)

The 2011/12 target for SMME spend as a percentage of total operating expenditure (excluding employee costs, depreciation and
amortisation) is 40%. In the year to 30 June 2012 the JDA’s spend on contracts won by SMMEs was R 9.5 million (out of operating
expenditure of R22.8 million).This constitutes an achievement of 41% of operating expenditure or 103% of the target for the period
under review.

Q1 Q2 Q3
Achievem  Achievem  Achievem
entscore  entscore  entscore

Baseline 2011112
(2010/11) Target

201112 201112 Actual / Achievement
Target Actual target score

Key Performance Indicators

SMME procurement spend as a o o 0 o o
% of total OPEX Procurement 40% 40% . . . 40% 4% 103% .

Productive partnerships and stakeholder relations

This KPA is measured in terms of three indicators:
B The public perception of JDA and our development areas as expressed by positive media coverage
B The number of tours of JDA development areas
B The number of development events intended to attract public attention and communicate urban regeneration results

Baseline 2011/12 Actual / Achievement
(201011) 2011/12 Target 2011/12 Actual target score

Key Performance Indicators

Positive media reports as a % of the total
number of media reports on JDA na
development areas

Number of tours hosted by JDA to
promote development areas

Number of development events hosted by
the JDA or partners

>95% positive

stories 98% 103% .

na 15 20 133% o

na 5 6 120% o

In 2011/12 the JDA was mentioned in 80 print and on-line media reports. The data is collected through a media monitoring service
provided by an independent contractor called Meltwater News. Analysts from Meltwater News provide the rating of positive, neutral
or negative as an opinion on the tone of the article and views expressed about the JDA. 98% of all stories in 2011/12 were positive
(85%) or neutral (13%). Most of the media coverage was about the regeneration of the Johannesburg inner city.

JDA hosted 20 tours during 2011/12. This was more than the target of 15 tours for the year. The tours included investor tours in the
inner city and Diepsloot, a tour of the Rea Vaya trunk route and transit oriented nodes in Soweto for colleagues in the Economies of
Regions Learning Network. In all 404 people toured JDA developments in 2011/12. Of these 152 were development practitioners,
134 were educational partners from universities and other research agencies, and 23 were investors.

There were 6 development events in 2011/12, exceeding the target of 5 for the year. These included the Diepsloot public art
festival, an event to celebrate the tree planting along the Rea Vaya trunk route 1B, and the launch of Atwell Gardens Park in the

inner city.

In total the JDA managed to reach over 47 000 stakeholders directly through its full range of marketing and communication
strategies in 2011/12.
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Summary of stakeholders reached in 2011/12 47 764
Total number of people reached in person (attendees at JDA events) 6 487
Total number of people reached through tours 404
Total number of people reached through electronic media (website and social media) 40191
Total number of people reached through printed and branding material (books and reports

distributed) 682

Human Resources Management

This KPA is measured in five areas:
B Employment Equity
B Staff Turnover
®  HIV/AIDS Policy Compliance
B Occupational Health & Safety Compliance
B Expenditure on training and development of staff

Employment Equity

In respect of employment equity the JDA’s current targets are as follows:
B Black staff percentage - the target of 80% of total staff complement
B Female staff - target of 45% of total staff complement.

B Black females in management positions, target of 35% of total number of employees in management

Key : b @ Qs ,
Performance Baseline 201112 Achieve Achievem  Achievem 201112 201112 Actual/ = Achievement
) (2010/11) Target ment entscore | entscore Target Actual target score
Indicators score
Compliance in respect of the o 100% 0 o o
Employment Equity Plan: 100% compliance ® ® ® 100% 100% 100% ®
% Black staff as % of total staff 80% 80% o (] o 80% 88% 110% o
0, 0,
sAt)al;female staff as % of total 45% 45% . . . 45% 64% 142% .
0, 0,
% Black Female managers as % 35% 35% . . . 35% 56% 160% .

of total senior management

% Staff Turnover <10% <10% o (] o <10% 8% 100% o

The JDA has been consistent in achieving its employment equity targets every year. In the period under review, all the targets
were again exceeded by a significant margin. The JDA will continue to monitor its affirmative action and Employment Equity
practices to ensure that it retains its status as one of the best employment equity employers within the City of Johannesburg.
Average staff turnover (measured as departing employees as a percentage of total staff complement) was 8% in the year under
review as there were four resignations out of a staff complement of 50.

HIV and Aids Policy
The JDA’s wellness day, which takes place every six months was delayed to September 2012 as a result of deadlines related to the
end of the financial year in June, so the voluntary counselling and testing opportunity will be available to employees then.

The JDA’s HIV and Aids policy is fully aligned with that of the City of Joburg. In the year under review, a total of 41 e-mails were
circulated to all JDA staff from ICAS (the JDA’s employee assistance programme service provider) each newsletter dealt with some
topic related to HIV and Aids, including prevention strategies.

The HIV and Aids peer counsellors did not do a training session during the quarter. The JDA uses the services of the CoJ’s Health

Department for its peer counsellor training. The scheduled training for this quarter was cancelled as a result of the institutional
review process currently underway.
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Q1 Q2 Q3
Achievem  Achievem  Achievem
ent score ent score ent score

Baseline 201112

201112 201112  Actual/ = Achievement

Key Performance Indicators Target Actual target p——

(2010/11) Target

Number of HIV and Aids VCT

opportunities offered at JDA na 2 . . . 2 1 50% .
wellness days

Number of HIV and Aids

information shots sent to JDA na 4 . . . 4 M 1200% .
officials

Number of peer counsellor o
training sessions na 2 o ® o 2 0 0% ®

OHSACT

The last occupational health audit certificate for the JDA’s offices at the Bus Factory was issued in June 2012 and had put overall
compliance at 78% for the quarter. This is up from 72% in the third quarter, showing progress achieving a better compliance rating.
The JDA facilities manager continues to ensure that the JDA working environment is in line with the provisions of the Health and
Safety Act, and that tenants at the Bus Factory are also informed of OHS Act provisions. One injury was reported at the Bus
Factory in the fourth quarter (related to spilled cleaning fluid) and no injuries were reported on any of the JDA construction sites.

Q1 Q2 Q3
Achievem Achievem  Achievem
entscore  entscore  entscore

Baseline 2011112

201112 201112  Actual/  Achievement

Key Performance Indicators Target Actual target score

(2010/11) Target

% compliance with Occupational
Health and Safety Act at the Bus | 100% 100% () 100% 78% 78% o
Factory

Training and Development of Staff
The training expenditure target is a cumulative target for the year. By the end of the 4™ quarter we had spent 3.04% of payroll on
training and staff development activities.

Q1 Q3

Baseline 201112 201112 201112  Actual/ = Achievement

Target  Actual target score

Key Performance Indicators Achievem  Achievem  Achievem

el [ entscore  entscore  entscore

% payroll invested in training

0, 0, 0, 0, 0,
(cumulative, annual) 3% 3% ® ® ® 3% 3% 101% o

Financial Management & Corporate Governance

This KPA is measured in the following areas:

ICT network availability

Clean Audits

Operating Budget Management

Capital Budget Management

GRAP Compliance

Company Balances with MOEs

Company Balances with CoJ

Company Balances with Non-CoJ companies

ICT network availability
The JDA’s local area network continues to perform well. The LAN therefore has been up 100% of the time against a target of 70%.
Use is heaviest at night when the backups are done.
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MTN performance has not been pleasing particularly in the month of April where they claim to have had problems connecting to
London. This has disadvantaged the JDA. It must be noted that MTN only moved in to resolve the problem when the JDA
threatened to terminate the relationship prematurely. However for the latter part of April to the end of June 2012, performance has
improved.

Q1 Q2 Q3
Achievem  Achievem  Achievem
ent score ent score ent score

Baseline 201112
(2010/11) Target

201112 201112 Actual/ = Achievement
Target Actual target score

Key Performance Indicators

IT network availability - local

area ook y na 70% o o ® 70% | 100% | 143% ()

IT network availability na 70% ® o ® 70% 9% | 141% ()
Clean Audits

The 2011/12 annual external audit will commence on 01 August 2012. The JDA expects to obtain an unqualified audit report as has
been the norm in previous financial years. The JDA’s Audit Committee assisted by Internal Audit have continued to monitor the
JDA’s internal control environment and ensured that management continues to implement recommendations by Internal Audit in an
effort to achieve clean audits for the organisation. JDA has put in place measures that seek to correct all the issues that were
raised by the Auditor-General in the previous financial year's management letter.

Operating Budget Management
This measures effective budget control of operating costs (indicated by budget variances). In respect of effective budget control of
operating costs, a target of 0% over expenditure has been set.

201112 Target Actual % Achievement for Year Achievement of Target /
Budget to Date Actual
Revenue R'000) 49 595 49 595 47 886 97% ([ )
Costs (R'000) 49 595 49 595 45 425 92% o

During the period under review the JDA underachieved on the targeted revenue by 3%. This is mainly due to the variances that
have arisen from the management fees on capital expenditure for development projects.

Capital Budget Management

This measures effective capital budget management, in particular expenditure against set targets for project delivery. Targets of
100% expenditure have been set in respect of all funding sources for the financial year.
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Q2
) Baseline | 2011112 Ll Achieve g 201112 2011M2  Actual/  Achievement
Key Performance Indicators Achievement Achievem
(2010/111) | Target score ment ent score Target Actual target score
__score
% Capital budget spent: 100% 100% 100% 3% 73%
p get sp o o o o
Cod budget 100% 100% o @ 100% 100% 100% @
ICF budget 100% 100% [ ) 100% 96% 96% @
NDPG budget 100% 100% [ ) () [ ) 100% 92% 92% o
EPWP budget 100% 100% [ ) () () 100% 100% 100% o
Transportation budget 100% 100% [ ) o [ ) 100% 69% 69% o
Other capital budgets na 100% o 100% 98% 98% o
Of which
Blue IQ budget na 100% () [ ) 100% 105% 105% o
Environment buaget na 100% () [ ) 100% 90% 90% o
Health budget na 100% [ ) 100% 99% 99% o
Housing budget na 100% 100% 112% 112% o

Despite meeting expenditure targets in the first three quarters, the BRT portfolio ended the year with expenditure of 69% of the total budget for
2011/12.

The under-spending in the Rea Vaya BRT portfolio of projects is due to a number of reasons. The two primary ones are:

e Firstly, there have been significant delays in the Rea Vaya implementation as a result of the mayoral committee decision
in May 2011 to reroute the third trunk route of the BRT service. Instead of running on the planned route from the inner city
to Sandton along Oxford Road, the trunk route will now run from the inner city to Alexandra along Louis Botha Avenue.
This resulted in a number of complications in the project implementation plan including the need for a new phase of
planning and detailed design along the new route; the need to cancel or renegotiate existing contracts with professional
teams; and other unforeseen technical design requirements including the need for new integrated bus stations that can
accommodate both low and high-floor buses.

e Secondly, budgets for other sections of the BRT were determined on the basis of previous construction costs. The
construction pricing in 2011/12 was significantly lower than anticipated. We believe that this is due to a number of factors
such as a better understanding of the technical aspects of the construction work, greater capacity in the construction
industry now that the 2010 construction boom is over, and the generally negative economic outlook for the building
industry resulting in keen competition for construction tenders. This resulted in significant savings against budgets
although the construction outputs were all completed as targeted.

With the other portfolios expenditure was accelerated in the fourth quarter and most projects were completed as planned by the end of June
2012. There were some minor variations due to construction pricing. Overall, the JDA achieved capital expenditure of 73% against budget.

GRAP Compliance

This target is determined annually as it pertains to the finance reporting of the entity at the end of the financial year. In the
meantime, in order to improve the general skills of the JDA, the Chief Finance Officer, Finance Manager and Accountant attended a
GRAP update course on March 12 2012 organised by the South African Institute of Chartered Accountants (SAICA). This will
ensure that our employees are able to ensure continuous compliance by the entity with GRAP in its financial reporting processes.

Section 2.2: Performance against IDP and Scorecard
This indictor measures overall project implementation progress against project completion targets set for each quarter for all JDA
projects.

Projects are grouped by the source of funding. The aggregate score is calculated as a weighted average based on the relative

budget allocations for the projects in the group. For example, a small project with a relatively insignificant budget allocation will not
affect the aggregate completion score as much as a large project with a significant budget.
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JDA projects are weighted in the following way in 2011/12:

Project portfolio Weighting as % of
budget
CoJ Budget 3%
Of which:
JDA010/1: Kliptown Renewal Precinct 52
JDA048: Orlando East Station Precinct 48
ICF Budget 8%
Of which:
JDAQ55 ICF4: Commuter Links Upgrade (Art Gallery Rea Vaya 31
Station Precinct)
JDA058 ICF5: Westgate Station Precinct upgrade 40
JDAO059 ICF5: Transnet Land / Metro Park 29
NDPG Budget 3%
Of which:
JDAOQ37: Diepsloot Renewal Precinct 52
JDAO036/2: Stretford Station / Greater Orange Farm Renewal 48
Precinct
Transportation Budget 83%
Blue 1Q (Constitution Hill) 1%
Environment (Bruma Lake) 1%
Health (Joburg Clinics) 1%

Programme performance is measured according to project completion against the predetermined quarterly targets.
The performance scorecard for the JDA has been restructured in 2011/12 to separate construction progress clearly from overall
project completion rates.

The total JDA portfolio achieved a completion rate of 87% against project targets in 2011/12. The reasons for delays in the
completion of projects are discussed in more detail in this report.

After lagging behind project progress targets right up until the last quarter, the portfolio of projects in marginalised areas was
accelerated and overall this portfolio achieved 104% of target. The main reason is that the Orlando East and Orlando East
(Noordgesig) projects were extended by more than 22% each using funds in the contingency reserve. Other projects that achieved
completion include the Kliptown Development and Stretford Station Precinct upgrade. Only the Diepsloot Development has still got
to be completed in July.

The inner city portfolio achieved an overall completion rate of 89%. This is due to largely to some delays in the commuter links and
Transnet land projects, although both of these will be completed early in the new financial year.

The transportation portfolio ended the year on 85% complete as a result of delays in projects associated with the shift in the third
trunk route, and some delays in the Dobsonville Depot construction and the Station Precinct Upgrading project.

' Q1 Q2 Q3 :
Key Performance Indicators Baseline | 2011/12 Achievem | Achievem  Achievem 2011112 201112 Actual / Achievement
(2010M11) | Target Target Actual target score
ent score ent score ent score

% Construction progress 0 o 0 0 0

agzinst target 100% 100% [ ) [ ) [ ) 100% 87% 87% o
Inner city portfolio 100% 100% [ ) [ ) [ ) 100% 89% 89% o
Marginalised areas portfolio 100% 100% [ ) [ ) [ ) 100% 104% 104% o
Transportation portfolio 100% 100% [ ) [ ) [ ) 100% 85% 85% o

The following steps will be taken to improve construction progress results in 2012/13:
- Attention will be paid to ensure that procurement processes are carried out in a compliant and efficient way.
- Anew Enterprise Development Programme will be implemented in 2012/13 to improve the pool of competent construction
companies, especially small and medium sized companies who can bid for JDA tenders.
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- Construction monitoring and management systems will be strengthened to ensure that there is early warning of delays in
project progress, so that pre-emptive steps can be taken.

The detailed project progress measures for each project are presented below.

1 2 3 4
. Baseline 201112 . “ . « . « Q4 Actual / . g
Key Performance Area Key Performance Indicators (2010/11) Target Achievement Achievement Achievement Q4 Target Q4 Actual target Achievement
J score score score < score
COJ FUNDED PROJECTS 100% 11% 11%
% progress achieved in project Deta - -
etailed design completed and construction
delivery against targets: tender awarded 100% 100% [ ] [ ) [ ]
JDA010/1: Kliptown - - — "
Development Public environment upgrade in Kliptow n 100% of Phase 100% . . 100% 100% 100% .
(Phase 2.2) 21
Detailed d leted and tructi
% progress achieved in project ;dle es(\jgr;compe and constucton 100% 100% [ ] [ ] [ ] ([ ]
nder aw arde
delivery against argets: JDAOSS: Public environment upgrading in Orlando 100% of Phase
Il VI uj Ing It
Orlando East Phase 3 uole envirenment upgracing ° 100% Y ) 100% 122% 122% )
East Station precinct (Phase 3) 2
F‘ubli.c. environment upgrading in Noordgesig na 100% . 100% 121% 121% °®
(Additional w ork)

There are two projects funded through the COJ Capital grant in 2011/12: the Kliptown Development and Orlando East Station
Precinct. Construction contracts were awarded for both projects in January 2012. Although both projects were behind schedule in
the third quarter, the construction works was accelerated and completed before the end of June. In fact, work on the Orlando East
contracts was extended in order to spend all of the development contingency fees resulting in more than 120% completion against
target.

As a whole this portfolio achieved a completion rate of 111% against the original scope of works for 2011/12.

INNER CTY FUND PROJECTS 100% 89% 89%
% progress achieved in project [Detailed design completed and construction
100% 100%
delivery against targets: JDA056 |tender awarded ° o [ o o [ )
ICF4: Art Gallery (Rea Vaya)  [Public environment upgrading in the 100% of phase
Station Precinct Upgrade Commuter links (Art Gallery) precinct (Phase : | P 100% [ ) [ ) 100% 82% 82% [ ]
2)
% progress achieved in project Domlod dov p— -
delivery against targets: JDA058 et:| ¢ es;gr;compete and construction na 100% [ ) () (] [ ]
ICF5: Westgate Station {ender aw arde
Precinct upgrade Public environment upgrading (Phase 1) na 100% [ ) [ ) o 100% 100% 100% [ )
% progress achieved in project [Detailed design completed and construction
na 100%
delivery against targets: JDA059: | tender aw arded ’ e e e e
Transnet land / Metro Park Taxi fa.ciliﬁes and public environment na 100% Y ® ) 100% 95% 95% [}
upgrading (phase 1)

In the set of inner city regeneration projects that are funded through the inner city upgrading allocation on the budget of the
Department of Development Planning and Urban Management overall project completion was also accelerated in the 4" quarter
after having slipped behind schedule on two of the key projects at the end of the 3 quarter.

The 2011/12 phase of the Westgate Station Precinct project is was completed as planned in May 2012. This project will continue as
a multi-year project with annual construction phases in 2012/13 and 2013/14. Signs of private investment that is responding to the
public investment include the launch of Stimela Square, a mixed use property development by Abland and Standard Bank; and
progress that is being made in the redevelopment of the Westgate railway station by Inkanyeli developments.

The Transnet Land project (which involves the construction of a temporary taxi holding facility) made up ground to achieve a
completion rate of 95% by the end of June 2012. There is some finishing work to be done and the project should be 100% complete
by no later than August 2012. In addition to the original scope of works, a further R2.5 million was allocated by the Department of
Transportation for cooking facilities at the new taxi holding area. This is to accommodate the food vendors who make a living by
cooking for the taxi drivers and commuters and improve health and safety standards for the preparation of food.

The Inner city commuter links project in the Art Gallery Rea Vaya Station Precinct was intended to be completed by 22 June,
however an extension of time claim was granted to the contractor because of the complexity of the environment with high levels of
traffic and pedestrian congestion making this a very difficult project. The construction work is 82% complete and the final work was
completed by the end of July 2012. It should also be noted that the contractor did not meet the JDA standards of performance, and
some of the delays were as a result of poor workmanship that had to be redone. As a result it was not possible to allocate
additional work to expend the development contingency set-aside.
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In addition to the three major projects in this portfolio, R1 million was set aside to complete the Chancellor House upgrade that was
undertaken in 2010/11. This was intended specifically for finding a parking solution for the tenants of Chancellor House. The
intended tenants (a non-profit organisation established by the legal profession under the leadership of Advocate George Bizos)
have not been able to raise the necessary funds to take occupation of the building and begin running a law library and legal
advisory service. As a result of this the parking project was not implemented. Alternative tenanting options are being explored, and
a parking solution will be included in the Westgate Station Precinct upgrade that will continue to roll out in 2012/13 and 2013/14.

A further R1 million was also allocated to the preparation of the Kazerne parkade property for redevelopment. As a result of the
complex negotiations with the taxi operators currently using this building, and the project sequencing related to the construction of
the temporary taxi holding facility on the Transnet Land, there was no opportunity to spend this allocation. This project will continue
in 2012/13 and both the Department of Transportation and the JDA have budgeted for aspects of the longer term project to
redevelop the Kazerne property.

As a result of the delays in these two projects there are savings of R2 million in the inner city portfolio in 2011/12.

. Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4
; Baseline 2011112 . . . Q4 Actual / .
Key Performance Area Key Performance Indicators Achievement Achievement Achievement Q4 Target Q4 Actual Achievement
(2010/11) Target target
score score score score
NDPG FUNDED PROJECTS [ ) 100% 97% 97%
% Progress échieved in project | Detailed design completed and construction 100% 100% . .
delivery against targets: JDAO3T: | tender aw arded
Diepsloot Develop r‘ : i (?f public space upgrading in 100% of phase 100% ® ® 100% 5% 5% ®
district node in Diepsloot (phase 3) 2 completed
% progress achieved in project
delivery against targets:
JDA036/2: Stretford Station /  [Detailed design completed and construction 100% 100% ® P
Greater Orange Farm Renewal |tender aw arded
Completion l‘)f public épace upgrading in 100% of phase 100% . 100% 100% 100% .
Stretford Station Precinct (phase 3) 2 completed

The two NDPG funded projects have lagged behind construction progress targets for most of the year. In the fourth quarter these
projects were given special attention by the development managers and the Stretford Station Precinct development was completed
in June. The Diepsloot Development is almost there at 95% complete, and work will be finished in July 2012.

During the fourth quarter we also saw indications of private sector investment interest in these areas. The shopping centre in
Orange Farm is now under construction; and JDA hosted an investors seminar in Diepsloot that attracted some attention
particularly from local business operators who would like to expand and formalise their property investments.

TRANSPORTATION FUNDED PROJECTS 100% 85% 85%
Section 2 (4.25 kms construction
( ) 100% 100% (] (] o 100% 99% 99% o
Section 4 (0.26 kms construction) 80% of 10/11
busway 100% o o o 100% 100% 100% o
complete
Rissik and Harrison(0.50 kms construction) 190% of work 100% Y Y °® 100% 100% 100% Y
in 2010/11
Bus depot (Dobsonville civiils phase 2) 100% of civil
works on bus 100% [ ] o [ ) 100% 100% 100% o
depot complete
Pat Mbatha (2.12 kms construction) o " o o o
% progress achieved in project 100% 100% ® L ® 100% 100% 100% ®
delivery against targets: JDA045: | Road Underpass (construction)
Bus Rapid Transit 100% 100% () o o 100% 98% 98% o
Booy sens Reserve pedestrian bridge 100% 100% Y ® ® 100% 100% 100% ®
P ille pedestrian brid
ennyvile pedestian briage 100% 100% Y Y ® 100% 100% 100% Y
Bus depot (Dob: ill fruction ph
2)us lepot (Dobsonville construction phase 100% 100% P P ® 100% 0% 0% P
 bus siafons 100% 100% ) ) ) 100% 100% 100% )
N k (L lourisati
e work (Lane colourisaton) na 100% ® 100% 100% 100% ®
New work (Station precincts phase 1
w work (Stafon precincts phase 1) na 100% Y ® 30% 19% 62%

The multi-year Rea Vaya BRT projects have continued to perform relatively well against target and at the end of the financial year
the portfolio as a whole is at 85% complete. Projects that were completed in the course of the year include busway construction on
Section 4, Rissik and Harrison, and Pat Mbatha; and Section 2 of the busway is at 99% and will be completed in July 2012. The

21



2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

Johannesburg Development Agency

four bus stations that were targeted for construction have been completed as planned, as has the associated road and pedestrian
infrastructure like the road underpass, and two pedestrian bridges.

The largest single construction project in this portfolio this year is the Dobsonville Bus Depot. This project was split into phases and
the civil works phase is complete. The building works phase is at 80% complete, and as this is a multi-year project it will continue in
2012/13 and is scheduled to be handed over in October 2012. The project did experience some delays as a result of unanticipated
soil conditions that affected the earthworks, but the roof is already on the building and its scale is now apparent.

The only BRT project that has been substantially delayed is the planning and design of the third trunk route. As a result of the
Mayoral Committee decision to reroute the trunk route, planning work will have to be redone and professional team contracts will
have to be renegotiated or cancelled. This means that some of the planning outputs that were anticipated for completion in 2011/12
will only be done in the new financial year.

In addition to the projects that were planned for this year, additional projects have been implemented ahead of plans. The station
precinct development and lane colourisation projects are being funded through savings resulting from the change in the design of
trunk route. The lane colourisation work is complete, and the station precinct project is at 19% complete against a target of 30% for
the end of June. Delays have been due to changes in the scope of works as a result of the client Department, Transportation,
wishing to include universal access to stations and new signage requirements in the specifications. The project should be
completed in the new financial year however.

Projects funded through other sources

The JDA is implementing four other projects as technical assistance assignments on behalf of other Departments and Entities:

e The Constitution Hill refurbishment was completed in December 2011 on behalf of Blue I1Q and the Constitution Hill Devco.
In total R5.1 million was spent on upgrading and repairing various buildings, open spaces and the conference centre at
Constitution Hill.

e The Bruma Lake rehabilitation project is being implemented on behalf of the Environment Infrastructure and Services
Department. The design and project preparation has been completed and a first phase of rehabilitation work is underway.
Construction work for Phase 1 was delayed until after the rainy season as hydrological engineering projects such as this
cannot be implemented safely during periods of unpredictable run-off. As no funding has been allocated to this project
over the medium term expenditure framework, this means that the initial construction work will be reduced in scope and
the full project implementation plan will have to be delayed until funding is available. By the end of June R 4.4 million had
been spent on this project.

e In addition to the projects on the 2011/12 scorecard, the JDA is implementing a multi-year project to upgrade municipal
clinics for the CoJ Directorate of Health. Two clinics are being constructed (Petervale and Davidsonville) to full
specifications, and the roof of the Rosettenville Clinic is being repaired. In 2011/12 JDA spent R7.3 million on this project.
The funding allocation for 2012/13 has been confirmed by the Directorate of Health and JDA will continue to provide
project management services to oversee the construction and upgrading of 5 clinics in total.

e Finally, the CoJ Department of Housing has appointed JDA to implement a road upgrade as part of the Sol Plaatjie human

settlement development. Work has begun and R450 000 has been spent to initiate the works. This project will continue in
2012/13.
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CHAPTER THREE: KEY PROJECT DETAILS
3.1. Kliptown Public Environment Upgrade

The history of development proposals for Kliptown extends at least as far back as the early 1990s. Emergency services were
provided to the area in the early 1990s, and a plan was developed for Kliptown in 1996. In 2001 a new development project was
drawn up and this was (partially) implemented over the next five years. The Greater Kliptown Development Framework (1996)
made proposals for boosting Freedom Square as a historical tourism site, with a museum, public spaces, a park and a mix of shops
and informal trading.

The Greater Kliptown Development Project was initiated in November 2001 with funding from the Gauteng Province and the JDA
was appointed as implementing agent. The initial impetus for a Kliptown project was the idea of commemorating the 50"
anniversary of the adoption of Freedom Charter in Kliptown. This commemoration would centre on the upgrading of Freedom
Square. The first phase of the project involved an architectural competition for the design of Freedom Square in April 2002. (The
square was renamed the Walter Sisulu Square of Dedication -WSSD).

During the period 2001-2006 the project deliverables included:

e The Walter Sisulu Square of Dedication (WSSD) was developed. At the end of August 2006, the Square was handed over to
the managing agent with the City, the Johannesburg Property Company.

e A new taxi rank was constructed

e A portion of the K43, extending from Potchefstroom Road to Kliptown was built, providing direct access from Kliptown into the
heart of Soweto.

e Various environmental initiatives were undertaken along the Klipspruit including clean up campaigns and rehabilitation of the
wetlands. These programmes have been incorporated into the ongoing projects of the City’s Department of Environmental
Management

e A major upgrade to the sewer system was completed

Human development and training programmes including environmental education programmes, a metalworking manufacturing

project, a reed harvesting and craft making project, arts and crafts projects, and a women’s support project were undertaken

A community forum, the Greater Kliptown Development Forum (GKDF) was established.

A business support centre was developed and sited within the WSSD

A visitors’ centre was established in the WSSD

A community centre was established along Beacon Road

A museum commemorating the Congress of the People held in 1955 was established.

A traders market was developed within the square to accommodate hawkers trading in the square and along Union Street

Businesses operating along the northern side of Union Street were relocated to newly constructed facilities along Klipspruit

Valley Road, to make way for the construction of the south block of the WSSD

An additional business strip was developed north of the square, alongside the taxi rank

Beacon Road was upgraded

A social housing complex was developed by JOSHCO, northern of the WSSD

A subsidised housing development along the golf course was commenced

A susbsidised housing development was developed in the Pimville buffer strip, north of the WSSD to house relocates from the

Chris Hani informal settlement and this settlement was removed.

In 2009 the JDA commissioned an evaluation of the Kliptown Urban Development Framework. This report recommended that the
impact of the catalytic investment over the last ten years should be extended to the surrounding areas, that further investment and
facilitation is necessary to ensure that the use of the WSSD property and public open space is optimized, and that there are priority
development needs identified by the local community that should be addressed.

In 2010 the JDA implemented the first phase of a new multi-year project to upgrade the public environment in order to facilitate a
visibly improved public environment in Kliptown that will improve investor and community confidence in the area; and to provide
pedestrian infrastructure in order to make the pedestrian experience safer and more pleasant.

In 2010/11 and 2011/12 work was carried out at a cost of R10m per year that included the upgrading of the existing Union
Pedestrian Bridge and installation of new ramps; the creation of a new walkway along the Western Side of the Railway line;
refurbishment of the Study Centre, Creche, and Community Hall; upgrading of a number of local streets to ensure integration of
economic activity; CCTV installation on the WSSD and around the square; refurbishment of the Youth Centre; construction of
sports facilities; repair of tower mast lighting; and public art that is intended to strengthen the identity of the area.

The project was completed according to the defined and approved scope of works by 30 June 2012 and 59 local community
members were employed as construction workers on the project.

The key lesson learnt during 2011/12 implementation is that training for unskilled labour should be implemented as early as
possible in the project to optimise skills transfer during construction.

3.2. Orlando East Station Precinct (and Orlando East — Noordgesig upgrade)
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Orlando East is a project that is being implemented by the JDA because of its significance from a heritage perspective, the location
of the Orlando Stadium, its location on the Rea Vaya BRT route, its proximity Vilakazi Street and the OrlandoEkhaya projects. The
Orlando East Station Precinct is of significance to the surrounding communities due to its good accessibility and range of public
amenities. The area is undergoing major infrastructure changes through the introduction of the BRT system and redevelopment of
the Orlando East railway station. These changes have dramatically altered the role and experience of the area.

As part of the Orlando East Urban Design Framework (UDF) the Orlando East Station Precinct was identified as a major project

with the following broadly identified interventions:

e Public environment upgrades to improve pedestrian links between various transport modes in the Orlando Station / Mooki
Street precinct as well as provision of robust, clear, flexible space that accommodates the various activities (i.e. market facility,
pedestrian bridge upgrade).

e Public environment upgrades to improve pedestrian links from Mooki Street via Rathebe to Plantation square.

e Public environment upgrades to improve pedestrian links from Mooki to Mlamlankunzi Station and Noordgesig.

The objectives of the Orlando East Station Precinct project are:

¢ Integration of the area’s local economy with that of other parts of Soweto
Socio-economic improvements to the area

To contribute to Soweto’s economic development and revival

To stabilize these areas of decline and urban decay

To improve the quality of life of residents of Orlando East

In 2010/11, the JDA spent R9 million of the development of a public square, including a basketball court. In 2011/12 R5 million was
spent upgrading Rathebe Street, a strategic pedestrian link to the Orlando East transit facilities. Project outputs include lighting
(street and pedestrian), paving, landscaping, street furniture, street surfacing, storm water and trading facilities. In addition, a
further R4.385m was made available in 2011/12 for public environment upgrading of pedestrian links between Mlamankunzi Station
and the greater Orlando East / Noordgesig area.

Because of keen construction pricing it was possible to extend the original scope of works on the Orlando East development within
the existing budget, resulting in a completion rate of 120% against target for 2011/12. Fifty four local community members were
employed as general construction workers during the year.

The key lesson learnt during implementation in 2011/12 is the importance of on-going consultations with other municipal entities
throughout the project life cycle to ensure project co-ordination and a smooth handover of the completed project outputs.

3.3. Commuter Links / Art Gallery (Rea Vaya) Station Precinct

The Inner City Regeneration Charter, signed by the Mayor and all inner city stakeholders in 2007, was a strategic agreement which
outlined how all partners will address issues of urban regeneration and economic development in the inner city. To give effect to the
Charter, Council approved the Inner City Urban Design Implementation Plan (ICUDIP) in 2009. The ICUDIP reflects the
establishment of a walkable network of pedestrian friendly routes supported by good quality public open spaces that link people to
the public transportation interchanges and the range of private and public amenities in the inner city as a priority.

Against this backdrop, the JDA, Johannesburg Roads Agency, and the City of Johannesburg’s Departments of Transportation and
Development Planning and Urban Management, agreed that an appropriate traffic and transport plan was required for the inner
city. As a result, the Johannesburg Inner City Traffic and Transport Study was undertaken in 2010 and culminated in a vision for
traffic and transportation that is framed within the ICUDIP and Integrated Transport Plan. This study presented an analysis of
movement patterns, challenges and opportunities, and identified a set of strategic interventions that are required to achieve the
strategic transport objectives for the inner city. These proposals serve as the basis of the Inner City Commuter Links project, which
is focussed on the Art Gallery Rea Vaya Station Precinct and the pedestrian links that connect this precinct to the key mass public
transit services.

The purpose of the project is to create a pedestrian friendly and walkable urban environment through the establishment of a
network of public spaces, and improved circulation around and access to formal taxi, bus and rail facilities. The area experiences
high levels of physical and social disorder as well as a variety of criminal activities on a daily basis, which are exacerbated by the
high volumes of pedestrians, informal traders, and vehicles (both cars and taxis). The Johannesburg Safer City Programme has
undertaken detailed analysis of the crime and social disorder issues in the area, and this is a further input to the JDA’s design
process. In an attempt to alleviate some of the issues in the area, JDA will implement the principles of Crime Prevention through
Environmental Design (CPTED) as recommended.

The project is therefore intended to:

° Build an inner city that is functional and livable

° Create a safer and more walkable network in the inner city;

. Create continuity and connectivity for pedestrians towards and between places of work, public transport and other facilities in
a legible and effective way

° Optimise the use of existing facilities

° Improve the quality of the public realm contributing to enhanced safety and enhanced perceptions of safety

. Complement urban management initiatives to clean up and maintain the inner city;
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. Convey to inner city residents that the City of Joburg is intent on creating a safe and healthy urban environment in which they
can live in dignified circumstances;

) Increase investor confidence demonstrating the CoJ’s commitment to improving the inner city, and by showing that the Inner
City is a viable investment location in which future value returns are not at risk.

The detailed design work and implementation of upgrade initiatives has been phased over several financial years commencing in
2010/11. In 2010/11 the JDA implemented the first phase of the three year project at a cost of R38.35 million. The second phase
was completed in June 2012 at a cost of R15.8 million. Seventy four local community members were employed on the project.

An additional deliverable for 2011/12 was a precinct plan which provides a framework for implementation projects over the short,
medium, and long term, the implementation of which will be subject to budget allocations by the City of Johannesburg.

3.4 Westgate Station Precinct

The Westgate Station precinct is located in the South-Western corner of the Johannesburg inner city and is characterized by a
multimodal public transport interchange located centrally within the precinct. This includes the Westgate train station that is owned
and operated by the Passenger Rail Agency (Prasa), two Rea Vaya (Bus Rapid Transit) stations, a mini-bus taxi rank and holding
facilities for Metrobus as well as privately owned national long distance buses and cross border buses.

The precinct is also strategically located South of the Newtown Cultural Precinct, West of the Main Street Mall upgrade, and
adjacent to the Chinatown and Diagonal Street upgrades carried out by JDA in previous years, and the structural repair and
refurbishment of Chancellor House in 2010/11.

The transport interchange is surrounded by several large parcels of vacant and underdeveloped land, which are mostly privately
owned. Some of the owners are identified as Standard Bank for Ussher Site, iProp Limited for the land north east and west of the
Crown Interchange, and the Johannesburg Land Company for the land to the west of Zurich Insurance Building.

The Westgate Station precinct offers a unique opportunity to create a visual and physical gateway to the Johannesburg inner city
and to transform the precinct into a high intensity transit-oriented development node. Directly to the north and east of the Westgate
Precinct, lie the renewed Newtown Precinct and the A-grade Main Street Mall precinct. The Westgate Station precinct has some of
the last open and developable land within the inner city.

The main strategic focus of the Westgate Station precinct is:
a) To create a transit oriented hub for public transport users
b) To promote private property investment; and
c) To establish a gateway to the inner city of Johannesburg

The detailed design work and implementation of identified upgrade initiatives has been phased over three financial years from
2011/12 with final completion in 2013/14.

In 2011/12 the JDA implemented the first phase of the three year project which involved the following work at a cost of R19.2
million:

o A Traffic Impact Assessment (TIA) of the entire precinct, based on the SDF.

¢ A conceptual design of the entire precinct that identified design standards for the precinct.

e The design of a heritage trail through the precinct, in connection to the Newtown heritage walking trail.

e Phase 1 detailed design and implementation of identified initiatives.

Project outputs include paving of sidewalks, kerbing, resurfacing and road marking, stormwater inlets, installation of new street
furniture (including benches, bins, bollards, and signage), planting of street trees, and installation and upgrading of street and
pedestrian lighting and public art. 106 local labourers were employed on this project during the year.

The roll-out of the Westgate Station Precinct upgrade was without incident in 2011/12 mostly because of the absence of traffic and
pedestrian congestion in this part of the inner city; and also because of the intensive and early consultation with stakeholders and
implementation partners. This project also represents leading JDA practice in terms of internal processes to optimise administrative
efficiencies, such as entering into multi-year contracts with professionals in order to develop consistency and institutional
knowledge within the project.

35 Transnet Land / Metro Park

In June 2008 the Park Station Precinct Urban Design Framework was completed and identified that a key problem in the inner city
of Johannesburg is the lack of ranking space for international buses and taxi’s arriving from the southern African region. Park
Station, which is the traditional ranking site for national and international buses no longer has sufficient space for the many buses
that come in to Johannesburg. As a result, many buses are now ranking informally and illegally, both in Braamfontein and in the
CBD.

The Metromall taxi rank is currently estimated to cater for only 50% of the demand and the overflow taxis park on the Transnet
Land immediately to the north. The land is known as Portion 61 of the Farm Johannesburg 91 and is owned by Transnet
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Properties. It is situated to the North of Metro Mall (Gwigwi Mrwebi), South of the railway tracks and between Queen Elizabeth
Bridge and Ntemi Piliso Street.

The work completed during 2011/12 concentrated on creating a temporary taxi holding facility for the long distance taxis that are
currently using the Kazerne 2 Parking Garage as a holding area and rank at the Park Station Taxi Rank on Wanderers Street in
Joubert Park. However, the Transnet Land that was identified for this purpose was not sufficient and additional land needed to be
found. Additional land was identified in order to meet the requirement of the taxis which are currently parking at the Kaserne 2
Parking garage. A lease agreement is to be entered into with the Post Office for Ptn 27 Johannesburg (the Post Office Land), which
is a vacant property adjacent to the Kaserne 2 Parking facility. This facility will provide approximately 350 additional parking bays
for long distance taxis as a holding facility. This property will also be incorporated into the long term vision for the area as an
International Intermodal facility to be developed with the private sector as a Public Private Partnership through development
facilitation. In addition to the development of additional holding facilities for long distance taxis a park will be developed on the land
that has been procured from Transnet. This would be to service residents and children living in the Brickfields development as there
is not much park space in the area.

The precinct development is intended to further the objectives of regenerating the inner city and reinforcing its role as a key transit
node in the Gauteng City Region. More specifically, the aims and objectives for the redevelopment of the Kazerneparkade would
be:
e To develop an integrated Long distance Taxi Facility on the Kazerne site, including all vehicular and pedestrian
movements
e To cater for significant pedestrian movements across and alongside the site
e To capitalise on footfall to generate commercial uses
e To explore the viability of a mixed-use and Transit Orientated Development proposal
Improve inter-modal interchange integration
e The development of a public green public open space — Metro Park.

The project created 70 jobs and involved the installation of 20 000m? of paving, 10 lights and an ablution block that uses solar
lighting and geysers. Water points and permanent braai-stands were installed for a cooking facility to be managed by the MTC and
greening was done through grass planted with a two-year maintenance agreement. The cooking facility will be monitored at this site
with possible roll-out at other taxi and holding sites.

The completed facility has improved the view when crossing into the inner city over the Nelson Mandela Bridge. What was once an
empty, unused and polluted plot is now servicing the people who use this space. Beyond the use as an intermodal hub the
upgraded space can be used for events thanks to the ablution and cooking facilities built. During construction of this project the
lessons learnt included the need for more in-depth geotechnical analysis before initiating construction. Although some trial pits were
dug, the soil at the foundation of the ablution block was unsuitable for use and further funding was required for special raft
foundations.

3.6 Diepsloot Development

The Diepsloot Township was established in 1994, as a relocation area for informally settled households from Zevenfontein. It was
subsequently used to accommodate informal settlers removed from the Alexandra Far East Bank in 1995. Diepsloot covers
approximately 5.18kmz; it is located on the northern edge of the metropolitan council area, some 40km from the Johannesburg
Inner City and 20km north of Sandton. It is within close proximity to the Fourways Regional Node and the Midrand corridor.
Diepsloot is bordered by the N14 highway to the north and William Nicol to the east. The Diepsloot area falls under Region A in the
City of Johannesburg’s administration, comprising of Ward 95 and 96.

The Diepsloot area has an estimated population of 150 000 consisting of an estimated 24 737 informal dwellings or shacks.
Diepsloot society is characterised by high levels of multiple deprivation — Diepsloot Ward 95 is the thirteenth most deprived ward in
the City of Johannesburg. The Region A Spatial Development Framework completed in 2008 estimates that 74% of the housing
units in Diepsloot are informal structures. The key challenges in Diepsloot are:

High levels of unemployment;

High levels of informally settled households at very high densities;

Inadequate infrastructure and insufficient good public open spaces;

High levels of undocumented migrants in informal settlements (18% of the Diepsloot sample was of non-SA origin);

Few formal economic development facilities.

The City of Johannesburg’s Development Programme for Diepsloot intends to establish the area as a socially, economically and
environmentally sustainable human settlement that is spatially integrated into the City of Johannesburg. The project's overall
objectives are to:

° Support the development of a formal economy in Diepsloot;

. Create a safe and secure urban settlement which will attract investment and encourage sustainable development;

° Create quality public spaces to enhance the sense of community and to conserve environmental and cultural places of
interest;

° Ensure the legibility and identity of the area;

Identify and investigate opportunities for community interaction such as informal trading;
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. Provide guidelines to ensure effective transport and land use integration and to assess multi-modal transport opportunities
and existing infrastructure.

In 2007 the City of Johannesburg was allocated a multi-year capital grant through the National Treasury’s Neighbourhood
Development Partnership Grant (NDPG) for R10 million in 2009/10, R46 million in 2010/11; and R10 million in 2011/12.

The following initiatives have been implemented;

. In 2009/10, a public environment upgrade of a portion of Ingonyama Road was completed,;

. In 2010/11 the public environment upgrading along Ingonyama Road was continued, two pedestrian bridges were
constructed, and the taxi rank was upgraded. Pathways were also constructed as commuter links between the bridges and
Ingonyama Road funded through the EPWP incentive grant;

. In 2011/12 the public environment upgrade along Ingonyama Road was completed to the end of the formal road, and the
public art project was implemented in collaboration with local artists and recyclers. 149 local construction workers were
employed in the year.

The project has already had a visible positive impact on people’s lives in Diepsloot. Along Ingonyama Road there are people who
have started improving and extending their houses; and there are new businesses that appear to be thriving. People can also now
walk along Ingonyama Road more comfortably and safely at night because of the streetlights.

3.7. Stretford Station Precinct in Orange Farm

Stretford Station is situated in Orange Farm on the Johannesburg-Vereeniging boundary approximately 40km south of the
Johannesburg CBD. It falls in the Administrative Region G and is classified as a District Node in the regional Spatial Development
Framework. A District Node can serve a few neighbourhoods, but is mainly focused on fulfilling the needs of the local community.
The most critical issue to address in a District Node is easy access and interconnected pedestrian movement. Due to the strategic
position of Stretford Station in the node, it is envisaged to be a transport-based node which should be developed in line with the
principles of transport-oriented development.

The objective for the development of this Node is to create an environment that will allow the station to function as an efficient
public transport inter-modal facility and a local economic node. The thrust of the development is the creation of a node that not only
benefits the immediate community but also plays a catalytic role in stimulating further economic and social investment in the area.

The project’s specific objectives are:
e To contribute to Orange Farm’s economic development and revival
To stabilize these areas of decline and urban decay
To optimise the potential of Orange Farm
e To improve the quality of life of residents of Orange Farm

The City of Johannesburg applied to the Neighbourhood Development Partnership Grant (NDPG), administered by the National
Treasury, for funding for the project and was allocated R6.7 million in 2009/10 to construct the Ridge Walk. In 2010/11 the JDA
spent a further R14.8 million on stormwater infrastructure and public environment upgrading to reinforce the pedestrian links around
the Station. In 2011/12 the JDA spent R10 million on stormwaterinfrastructure and public environment upgrading along Orange
Farm link road leading up to the station precinct. Project outputs included paving of sidewalks, storm water upgrade, kerbing and
road surfacing for approximately 1.5km; installation of street lights and associated electrical cabling; landscaping and street
furniture.

3.8. Rea Vaya Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) infrastructure

The City of Johannesburg has adopted an urban development policy centred on the need to create compact cities and limit urban
sprawl in order to utilise urban infrastructure and land more efficiently and effectively.

One of the measures to support this policy involves the development of the Rea Vaya Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) system. BRT is
simply the idea of creating a rail-like performance using road-based technologies that are affordable to most cities. The first phase
of the Rea Vaya BRT project was approved by Council in 2007 and the JDA was appointed as the implementing agent for the
construction of infrastructure (busways, bus stations and associated infrastructure such as bus depots and pedestrian bridges).

The City of Johannesburg has received funding from the National Department of Transport through the Public Transport
Infrastructure and Systems Grant to fund the implementation of the Rea Vaya BRT.

The construction of the infrastructure for trunk routes 1a and 1b has been undertaken and the bus service on trunk route la has
been completed and in full operation since 2009. Construction of trunk route 1b has been largely completed and the remainder of
the work that needs to be undertaken is subject to confirmation of the launch of operations by the City of Johannesburg:
Transportation Department. The planned commencement date for trunk route 1b is anticipated to be June or September 2013.

In 2011/12 the JDA completed the following projects within the BRT portfolio:
e Completion of Sections 2 and 4 along Trunk Route 1b (including busways and stations);
e Completion of the civil works for the Dobsonville Bus Depot, and construction of about 80% of the buildings;
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e Construction of an underpass to improve vehicular connections that were disrupted by the bus way;
e Construction of two pedestrian bridges to improve access to BRT stations; and
e  Station precinct improvements along Trunk Route 1a.

Overall, this amounts to 86% of the planned work for 2011/12; and R362.6 million (or 73% of the available budget). This significant
underspending in the Rea Vaya BRT portfolio of projects is due to a number of reasons. The two primary ones are:

e Firstly, there have been significant delays in the Rea Vaya implementation as a result of the mayoral committee decision
in May 2011 to reroute the third trunk route of the BRT service. Instead of running on the planned route from the inner city
to Sandton along Oxford Road, the trunk route will now run from the inner city to Alexandra along Louis Botha Avenue.
This resulted in a number of complications in the project implementation plan including the need for a new phase of
planning and detailed design along the new route; the need to cancel or renegotiate existing contracts with professional
teams; and other unforeseen technical design requirements including the need for new integrated bus stations that can
accommodate both low and high-floor buses.

e Secondly, budgets for other sections of the BRT were determined on the basis of previous construction costs. The
construction pricing in 2011/12 was significantly lower than anticipated. We believe that this is due to a number of factors
such as a better understanding of the technical aspects of the construction work, greater capacity in the construction
industry now that the 2010 construction boom is over, and the generally negative economic outlook for the building
industry resulting in keen competition for construction tenders. This resulted in significant savings against budgets
although the construction outputs were all completed as targeted.

We expect project implementation to continue without pause in 2012/13 and expect multi-year targets to be achieved to ensure that
Trunk Route 1c from the inner city to Alex and Sandton is completed in the Integrated Development Plan implementation
timeframe.

3.9. Bruma Lake rehabilitation

Bruma Lake has been experiencing, environmental problems of pollution and siltation with associated bad smells and health risks.
This has had a negative impact on businesses around the lake. In recognition of the severity of the problem, the City of
Johannesburg’'s Environmental Department has taken action to address the problems relating to silt, litter and pollution in the short
term. But a longer term solution is required, and so they have developed a plan for sustainable restoration and rehabilitation of the
lake.

Sediment surveys and the need to improve the hydrological functioning of the lake supported a design solution that uses the
sediment in-situ to reshape of the basin of the lake. Initial funding of R4.9 million was allocated in 2011/12 to prepare a report that
details an approach and methodology for the rehabilitation of Bruma Lake and the Queens Wetland, reclamation and reinstatement
of a grassed channel with parkland on either side of the lake, and planning for the rehabilitation of the Queens Wetland. The capital
works to build the grassed channel was delayed until the end of the rainy season, and as a result construction was at 80% on 30
June 2012. Construction was completed at the end of September 2012. This was achieved with expenditure of 89.6% of the project
budget by the end of the financial year.
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CHAPTER FOUR: DIRECTORS’S REPORT AND GOVERNANCE

Section 4.1: Corporate Governance Statement

The Board of Directors of the JDA subscribes to the letter and spirit of good corporate governance expressed in King Code Ill and
the Code of Conduct for Directors referred to in section 93L of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (as amended). The Board
recognises the need to conduct the affairs of the municipal entity with integrity to ensure increased public confidence and the
confidence of its parent municipality. It is the policy of the Board to actively review and enhance the entity’s systems of control and
governance on a continuous basis to ensure that the entity is managed ethically and within prudently determined risk parameters.

Section 4.2: Assessment of Arrears on municipal taxes and service charges

Assessment of Municipal Taxes and Service Charges owed to JDA

Detail

181& over

Not applicable

0-30 days

31-60 days

61-90 days

91-180 days

\ Total

The JDA does not levy municipal taxes and services charges.

Amounts owed by JDA for service charges

Name of Entity Amount Owed Status Comments ‘
Johannesburg Water Nil Up to date N/A
City Power Nil Up to date N/A
City of Johannesburg Nil Up to date N/A

Assessment of Directors’ and senior managers’ municipal accounts

Name of
Director/Senior
Manager

Designation

Name of Municipality

Municipal Account
Name/ Number

Status as at 30 June2012

Comments

. Executive Manager: . . .
S Lewis Strategy & Planning City of Johannesburg 202365484 Nil Account paid up
Z Mafata Chief Finance Officer City of Johannesburg 206944274 Nil Account paid up
P Amott-Job ,\SAe”'or Development | i of Johannesburg 402576355 Nl Account paid up

anager

Acting Chief Executive . Hollyland (Pty) Ltd . .
T Mendrew Officer City of Johannesburg 201030171 Nil Account paid up

. Senior Development CodJ and Mangaung 1002979455 (Mangaung ) . .
VVoyi Manager Municipality 1983203459 (CoJ) Nil Account paid up
L Visagie I\Sﬂenlor Development City of Johannesburg 303385695 Nil Account paid up

anager

LN Matlhape (Retired R . . .
24 April 2012) Non-Executive Director | City of Johannesburg 403059582 Nil Account paid up

L Vutula (Retired 24 Non-Executive Director . . .
April 2012) (Chairperson) City of Tshwane 3320617299 Nil Account paid up

AR Roriston (Resigned L . I . .
1 October 2011) Non-Executive Director | Ekurhuleni Municipality 2603833155 Nil Account paid up
N Lila Non-Executive Director | City of Johannesburg 8686144681 Nil Account paid up
D Naidu Non-Executive Director | City of Johannesburg 504011192 Nil Account paid up
P Masilo Non-Executive Director | Ekurhuleni Municipality 2603356925 Nil Account paid up.

D Lewis (Resigned 5 L . . .
February 2012) Non-Executive Director | City of Johannesburg 403344639 Nil Account paid up
P Mashiane Non-Executive Director | Ekurhuleni Municipality 2603272804 Nil Account paid up
A Rajah Non-Executive Director | City of Johannesburg 201411723 Nil Account paid up
G Simelane Non-Executive Director | City of Johannesburg 401900792 Nil Account paid up

800156046
! L Ekurhuleni Municipality 1705254316 . Accounts all paid
W Thwala Non-Executive Director and Mogale City 1705290930 Nil up
008000356027018

29



2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

Johannesburg Development Agency

HEILE O] Municipal Account
Director/Senior Designation Name of Municipality P Status as at 30 June2012 Comments
Name/ Number
Manager
B Majola Non-Executive Director | Does not own property
P Kubu Non-Executive Director | Undeclared

Section 4.3: Board of Directors

The Duties of the Board

The JDA Board:
B Provides effective, transparent, accountable and coherent oversight of the JDA’s affairs;

B Ensures that the JDA complies with all applicable legislation, the Service Delivery Agreement and the various shareholder
policy directives issued by its parent municipality, from time to time;

B Deals with the parent municipality in good faith and communicates openly and promptly on all pertinent matters requiring
the attention of its shareholder;

B Determines and develops strategies that set out the purpose, and values in accordance with the shareholder mandate and
strategic documents such as the IDP;

B Review and approve financial objectives including significant capital allocations and expenditure as determined by the
parent municipality; and

B Consider and ensure that the entity’s size, diversity and skills make up are efficient to ensure that the entity is able to
achieve its strategic objectives.

Corporate Code of Conduct

The Johannesburg Development Agency is committed to:
B The highest standards of integrity and behaviour in all its dealings with its stakeholders and society at large;
B Carrying on business through fair commercial and competitive practices;

B Eliminating discrimination and enabling employees to realise their potential through continuous training and development
of their skills;

B Being responsible toward environmental and social issues; and

B Ensuring that each of its directors declare any direct or indirect personal or business interest that might adversely affect
such director in the proper performance of his/her stewardship of the entity

JDA Board of Directors

Capacity: Executive /

Board member Race Gender Board Committee Membership

Non-Executive

= Development & Risk

T Mendrew Acting CEO (Executive)|Black Male = Human Resources & Remuneration
= Audit (by invitation)
L Matihape(Retired 24 April2012) Non-executive Black Male = Human Resources & Remuneration (Chair)
L Vutula (Retired 24 April 2012) Non-gxecuhve Black Male = Human Resources & Remuneration
(Chairperson)
AR Roriston (Resigned 1 October 2011)  [Non-executive White Male = Development & Risk
NV Lila Non-executive Black Female | Audt(Chai)
P Masilo Non-executive Black Male " Aud
= Human Resources & Remuneration (Chair)
D Naidu Non-executive Black Male = Development & Risk (Chair)
D Lewis (Resigned 5 February 2012) Non-executive White Male = Development & Risk
G Simelane (Appointed 24 April 2012) Non_Executive Black Female e  Development & Risk
. . . . = Social & Ethics (Chair)

B Majola (Appointed 24 April 2012) Non-Executive Black Female «  Development & Risk
P Mashiane (Appointed 24 April 2012) Non-Executive Black Fema;le " Social & Ethics

. ) . = Development & Risk
P Kubu (Appointed 24 April 2012) Non-Executive Black Male «  Sociald Ethics

. . . , . = Human Resources and Remuneration

A Rajah (Appointed 24 April 2012) Non-Executive Indian Male = Social & Ethics
W Thwala (Professor) (Appointed 24 April Non-Executive Black Male = Development & Risk '
2012) = Human Resources and Remuneration
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Together, the JDA directors have a range of different skills and experience that they bring to bear for the benefit of the entity. These
include accounting, finance, legal, business management, human resources and labour relations, marketing and construction &

development management.

The Board meets regularly, retains full and effective control over the company and monitors the implementation of the company’s
strategic programmes by the executive management through a structured approach of reporting and accountability. It sets the
strategic direction of the JDA and monitors overall performance. All JDA’'s Board Committees are chaired by independent non-
executive directors. The Board meets not less than four times a year to consider matters specifically reserved for its attention.

The new JDA Board had a special meeting on 14 May 2012 to deal inter alia with
=  The allocation of directors to the various Board committees
=  The approval of the Board Charter
=  Presentations on the projects currently being undertaken

Board and Board Committees Meetings
The Board meets not less than four times a year to consider matters specifically reserved for its attention. Indicated in the table
below are the board meetings held during the period under review. Attendance at meetings held during the quarter under review

was as follows:

Board and Board Committees Meetings & Attendance: =July 2011 to June 2012

Board Meeting Development & Risk HR &Remco S:IC B Et:'c

&l o S| o 8| g & | o & | g
5|5 8|5|8|5|8|5|8|58/ 8| 5|8 |58\ 28|521581815
=|28|c|8|=|188|c|8|=|8|¢c| & = 2 S | 8= |28 |g |8
5| 2| <|s|E2||<|s|[&| | <|5| | |<|s |8 | |<
2= 2= 2| 2| = 2 |=

L Vutula (Retired 24 April 2012) 514 (110 -1]-|-1]- - - - - 2 2 0 0

L Matihape (Retired 24 April 2012) 51500 -] - -1 2120 - 2 0

AR Roriston (Resigned10ct2011) | 5 | 2 | 0 | O | - | - | - | - 2 2 0 - -

NV Lila 6 |5(1]0|7|7[0]0|5|5]0 0 -

P Masilo 65| 1|07 ]|7]0]0 - - 2 2 0 0

D Naidu 61600 |11 |-]-]61]F6 0

D Lewis (Resigned 5 February2012)| 5 | 2 | 1 | 0 | - - | - 5 | 1 2 -

G Simelane (Appointed 24 April 12) | 1 | 1 1 1

B Majola (Appointed 24 April 2012) | 1 1 1 1 1 0 1

P Mashiane (Appointed 24 April 1 1 1 1

2012)

A Rajah (Appointed 24 April 2012) 1 1 1 1

W Thwala (Appointed 24 April 2012) | 1 1 1 1

P Kubu (Appointed 24 April 2012) 111 1 1 1 1

T Mendrew 6|6 |0]| 07|52 6 | 5| 1 0 2 1 1 1 1

J Bo_ggenpoel (Independent. Audit) 0ol o

Resigned July 2011

K Moyo (Independent. Audit) 616l o0

(Retired 24 April 2012)

J Vergotine (Independent Audit) 1 1

(Appointed 24 April 2012)

N Selamolela (Independent Audit) 1 1

(Appointed 24 April 2012)

K Govgnder (Independent Audit) 1 1

(Appointed 24 April 2012)

Section 4.4: Board Committees

The following committees have been formed; a non-executive director chairs each committee.

[ | Audit Committee
[ | Human Resources and Remuneration Committee
B Development and Risk Committee
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[ | Social and Ethics Committee

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee, which consists of two non-executive directors and three independent members, meets not less than four
times a year. Most members of this committee are financially literate: the Chairperson, Nopasika Lila, is a Chartered Accountant,
Popo Masilo is a lawyer with a financial background, Krishna Govender is a businessman with an accounting practice, and Janine
Vergotine and Nokuthula Selamolela are businesswomen. Below is a list of audit committee members:

N. Lila (Chairperson)

P Masilo

K Govender (Appointed 24 April 2012)(Independent Member)
J Vergotine (Appointed 24 April 2012) (Independent Member)
J. Boggenpoel (Independent Member) (Resigned July 2011)

K Moyo (Independent Member) (Retired 24 April 2012

N Selamolela (Appointed 24 April 2012) (Independent Member)

The committee has specific responsibility for ensuring that all activities of the JDA are subject to independent and objective review
and financial performance oversight. The JDA Audit Committee has an Audit Committee Charter with clear terms of reference as
guided by the provisions of Section 166 of the MFMA.

The Committee has the following responsibilities:

B Reviewing JDA’s internal controls and published financial reports for statutory compliance and against standards of best
practice, and recommending appropriate disclosure to the Board. The external and internal auditors attend these
meetings, and have direct access to the Chairperson of the Committee and Chairperson of the Board;

B Reviewing reports from management, internal and external auditors, to provide reasonable assurance , but not absolute
assurance that control procedures are in place and are being followed;

B Reviewing the half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board, focussing particularly on any
changes in accounting policies and practices.

During the year under review the Audit Committee held 5 ordinary meetings and 2 special meetings.
Development and Risk Committee

The Committee is responsible for evaluating development proposals with a view to making recommendations for approval to the
Board. This entails examining risks associated with the proposed projects such as the financing, returns and risk profiles. The
Committee bears overall responsibility for evaluating the effectiveness of the risk management process in the organisation. It
recommends to the Board risk strategies and policies that need to be set to ensure effective risk management for the entire
organisation and the specific development projects. Below is a list of Development and Risk Committee members:

AR Roriston(Resigned w.e.f. 1 October 2011)

T Mendrew

N Lila (Moved from this committee at 14 May Board meeting)

D Naidu (Chairperson)

D Lewis (Resigned w.e.f. 5 February 2012)

L Matlhape (in a temporary capacity) (Retired 24 April 2012)

P Kubu (Appointed to this committee at 14 May Board meeting)

B Majola (Appointed to this committee at 14 May Board meeting)

G Simelane (Appointed to this committee at 14 May Board meeting)
W Thwala (Appointed to this committee at 14 May Board meeting)

Meetings are held on a bi-monthly basis or as required by the Chairperson. During the period under review this committee met 6
times to deliberate on matters focusing mainly on the new developments and the risks and challenges that these have on the
mandate and the delivery of the various developments of the JDA.

Human Resources & Remuneration Committee

In line with the best practice of corporate governance, the Board maintains a Human Resources & Remuneration Committee (HR
&RemCo), comprising 3 (three) non-executive directors and chaired by a non-executive Chairperson. It is responsible for directing
human resources policies and strategies for the organisation and approving the remuneration for the Chief Executive Officer, senior
executives and staff. Below is a list of names of the members of the committee.

32



Johannesburg Development Agency

L. Matlhape (Chairperson)(Retired 24 April 2012)

T Mendrew

L. Vutula (Retired 24 April 2012)
P Masilo (Appointed as Chairman at 14 May Board meeting)

A Rajah (Appointed to this committee at 14 May Board meeting)
W Thwala (Appointed to this committee at 14 May Board meeting)

The committee meets not less than 3 (three) times a year.

2011/12 Annual Report
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The executive directors are excluded from the HR &RemCo when

matters relating to their remuneration are discussed. The committee ensures that the remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer
and senior management are within the upper limits as determined by the City of Johannesburg in accordance with the provisions of
Section 89(a) of the MFMA.

The remuneration of the Chairperson, the non-executive directors and independent audit committee members is determined by the
parent municipality. This committee met 3 times during 2011/12.

Social and Ethics Committee

In terms of the new Company Act this committee was created at the 14 May Board meeting consisting of Buyiswa Majola (Chair)
Pam Mashiane, Boeta Rajah and Papi Kubu with the committee’s first meeting being held on 20 June 2012.

The items for discussion at this meeting were inter alia:-

=  The committee’s Terms of Reference.

=  Reputation Management

=  Employee Development and Training
= Company Ethics including both Employee Code of Ethics and Directors Code of Conduct.

Section 4.5: Director’s Remuneration

Board of Directors and senior management remuneration and allowances for year ended 30 June 2012

. Bonus/Board Travel
‘ Name Designation Salary/Board Fees Backpay Retention Fees AT Total ‘
Executive Directors & Senior Management
T. Mendrew Acting CEO 1194 984.56 5734.96 167 024.88 1367 744.40
L Bethlehem (Resigned 15
July 2010) 5124491 51 244,91
Z. Mafata CFO 1055 750.29 5066.75 154 878.43 121569547
S. Lewis EM: Strategy & Planning 868 017.38 13785.91 89 540.10 971 343.39
P. Arnott-Job Senior Development Manager 958 603.48 4 835.68 119 048.15 49 000. 1131487.31
V. Voyi Senior Development Manager 712 322.98 397733 94 200.00 78 000. 888 500.31
L. Visagie Senior Development Manager 723 940.80 5228.16 40875 75 000. 845 043.96
N. Manzana Chief Operations Back pay5 734.96
(Resigned 15 November Officer P 412 004.88 Leave Pay 124 171 238.58 45 000. 758 649.34
2011) 670.92
N Gudhluza (Resigned 31
July 2010) 26 664.00 26 664.00
18 600.81 (Paid to
. ) ) . . ) Zanele Mamba, the
S Monyai (Appointedin | Executive Manager: Marketing 107 015.70 previous EM - 12 600. 138 21651
Acting position 1 April 2012 |& Communication .
Marketing &
Communication)
Sub-Total 6 032 640.07 169 034.67 933 314.86 259 600 7 394 589.60
Non-Executive Directors & Independent Audit Committee Members
L %et"ed 24Aprl - ehairman 47620 . 33 062.50 80 682.50
AR. Roriston
(Resigned 1 Oct 2011) Board Member 15872 - - 15872
L.W.J. Matlhape (Retired )
24 April 2012) Board Member 44 644 16 533.33 61177.33
N. Lila Board Member 64 480 - 19 840 84 320
D. Naidu Board Member 104 170 - 19 840 124010
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Designation

Salary/Board Fees

Backpay

Bonus/Board
Retention Fees
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Travel
allowance

P. Masilo Board Member 67 460 - 19 840 87 300
D. Lewis (Resigned w.e.f 5 } }
February 2012) Board Member 13 890 13890
G Simelane (Appointed 24
April 2012) Board Member 13 890 13890
P Mashiane (Appointed 24
April 2012) Board Member 10912 10912
B Majola (Appointed 24
April 2012) Board Member 8930 8930
B Rajah (Appointed 24
Apil 2012) Board Member 8930 8930
W Thwala (Appointed 24
April 2012) Board Member 8930 8930
;’Of;t)’“ (Appointed 24 April |5 21 Member 12900 12900
J. Boggenpoel (Resigned Independent Audit Committee ) ) )

July 2011) Member
K Moyo (Retired 24 April Independent Audit Committee

2012) Member 39680 - 19 840 59 520
J Vergotine (Appointed 24 Independent Audit Committee

April 2012) Member 4960 4960
N Selamolela (Appointed Independent Audit Committee

24 April 2012) Member
K Govender (Appointed 24 |Independent Audit Committee

April 2012) Member 4960 4960
Sub-Total 462 308 - 128 955.83 591 263.83
TOTAL R6 494 948.07 169 034.67 R 1062 270.69 R259 600 R7 985 843.43

The directors’ emoluments were taxed according to South African Revenue Services’ guidelines. The performance bonuses for the
Executive Committee and Senior Development Managers in respect of 2010/11 were paid in March 2012.

Loans and advances

In accordance with the provisions of the MFMA, the JDA implements a strict policy which prohibits any provisions of loans or
advances to its all Directors and Employees. During the period under review, no loans or advances were made to any of the JDA’s
employees, members of the Board and the independent audit committee members. Further, the JDA has not provided any loans to
any organisation or person outside the employ of the JDA.

Directors and employee declarations of interest

In accordance with its Code of Conduct which is consistent with Schedulel of the Municipal Systems Act and the provisions of the
City of Johannesburg Corporate Governance Protocol for Municipal Entities JDA maintains a register of Directors’ Declarations.
The Register of Declarations is updated annually and as and when each Director’'s declared interests have changed. The JDA
ensures that a declaration register is also circulated at every Board and Board Committee meeting for the Directors to declare any
interests in relation to every matter that is to be discussed at a particular meeting.

In terms of the JDA’s Employee Code of Ethics and Terms and Conditions of Employment, all JDA employees are required to fill in
declarations of interest covering shareholding in private companies, membership of close corporations, directorships held,
partnerships and joint ventures, remunerative employment outside of the JDA, gifts and hospitality and the status of their municipal
accounts.

Directors’ declarations of interest for the current year have been done.

Section 4.6: Company Secretarial Function

The Company Secretary manages the processes that ensure the organisation complies with company legislation and regulations
and keeps board members informed of their legal responsibilities. The Company Secretary is responsible for calling board
meetings and ensuring the implementation of their decisions. It is also the responsibility of the Company Secretary to communicate
with the shareholder on matters dealing with governance and shareholder reporting.

A Company Secretary's work covers a wide variety of functions and is partly dependent on the company for which they work.
Typical work activities include:

B Organising, preparing agendas for, and taking minutes of meetings;
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B Dealing with correspondence, collating information, writing reports, ensuring decisions made are communicated to the
relevant people;

B Contributing to meeting discussions, as and when required
B Arranging the annual general meetings.

There were no matters that required liaison with the Registrar of Companies which the Company Secretary had to attend to.

Section 4.7: Risk Management and internal controls

The JDA Board monitors risk through the Development and Risk Committee. The Committee is responsible for evaluating
development proposals with a view to making recommendations for approval to the Board. This entails examining risks associated
with the proposed projects such as the risk financing, risk returns and risk profiles. Further, and primarily, the Committee bears
accountability for ensuring that, there is an effective risk management process and system within the organisation. This approach
does not relieve the JDA Board of its accountability and responsibility in ensuring that, an adequate and effective risk management
system and process is in place, as the Board is expected to exercise the duty of care, skill, and diligence identifying, assessing and
monitoring risks as presented by the Development and Risk Committee. It recommends to the Board risk strategies and policies
that need to be set, implemented and monitored.

JDA’s risk management strategy is guided by the principles of the enterprise-wide risk management system in terms of which all
identified risk areas are managed systematically and continuously at the departmental level. The JDA has a risk register in place
which is treated as a working risk management document of which the identified risks are constantly recorded and properly
managed. The JDA’'s management monitors and evaluates the implementation and efficiency of management’s controls and such
actions identified as actions to improve current controls in the risk register.

The JDA provides its risk management reports to the City’s Group Risk Management Committee (GRMC). The GRMC assesses
all risk affecting the City and its municipal entities in a holistic manner and provides advice and recommendations to the City
Manager and Council on the general effectiveness of risk management processes within the entire City.

During the period under review, the RCU undertook a risk assessment workshop. The workshop was attended by JDA Executive
and Senior Managers. The strategic risk assessment report was tabled at the JDA Development and Risk Committee which was
held on 02 August 2011. The Committee noted and approved the report for submission to the JDA Audit Committee and the JDA
Board.

A Strategic Risk Profile was developed based on the previous financial year's Risk Register as amended throughout the financial
year based on various Internal Audit reports and other proactive processes of Risk management. In total 12 Strategic Risks were
identified and assessed by management during the workshops. During the risk assessment workshop one additional risk (risk
number 5) was identified and risk number 4 was redefined at the strategic level.

During the period under review, the JDA updated the Strategic and Operational Risk Register in line with the mitigation plans
undertaken by management to improve the Risk Management System. The Risk and Development Committee continually monitors
the implementation of the Risk Tolerance Framework by management to ensure that the organisation operates within the
acceptable tolerance levels. This graph compares the residual risk of the entity between August 2011and risks updated by end of
June 2012. What is clear is that due to matters beyond JDA’s control (such as budget cuts). Risks number 4, (sustainable
operations), 7 (Fraudulent and corrupt activities) and 11 (Ability to deliver capital projects) and 12 (Inability to attract and retain
skilled employees) have been reassessed as high risk areas that need immediate attention in order to bring them back to an
acceptable level.

Inherent Risk vs. Residual Risk for August 2011 vs. Residual Risk for March 2012 VS June 2012 at Strategic Level

35



Johannesburg Development Agency

2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

25

20

15

10

12

H Inherent Risk

B Residual Risk for Aug 2011
1 Residual Risk for Mar 2012
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Table: JDA Top Strategic Risks

Failure to create

Non labour

Failure to meet

®)

within the
industry
Restrictive
Regulatory
environment
(CIDB,MFMA)
Lack of
enterprise
development
programme for
emerging
contractors

adequate number of intensive projects IDP goals of job
short term jobs Delay in creation.
implementation Negative political
of capital perception of
projects. JDA.
Use of Service delivery
undocumented protests against
labourers JDA.
2.| Fin Failure to meet the Limited BEE Future funding
BEE/SMME business within might be
procurement targets. the industry with jeopardised.
skill and Failure to create
experience for opportunity for
big projects. small contractors
Failure to identify leading to
PDI with distrust by the
specialized skills community

Inability to assist
in transforming
the construction
industry.
Reputational
damage to the

JDA and the City.

Failure to create
jobs.

o The Risk and Compliance
Unit will continuously
monitor the implementation
of EPWP guideline in
developments.

Minimum Requirement
for contractors to
appoint local
community for
unskilled work is
included in the tender
documents.

Monthly reporting for
short term jobs created
for the month.

Use of labour intensive
methods prioritised.

A number of small
contractors appointed
for small scale projects

nt
(0.20)

o Working closely with the City
SCM unit and DED on the
implementation of new
SMME guidelines from the
City.

o Closely Monitor work
allocated to SMME/BEE sub-
contractors.

e Finalise the BEE and SMME
audit by the first Quarter of
2011/2012

eImplementing the new
Preferential Procurement
Regulations effective from 07
Dec 2011

o DED to fund the Working

Capital of emerging
contractors.

A minimum of 30% of
the total contractor
value is set aside for
sub-contracting to BEE
Companies.

Efficient supply chain
process in place.

Skills audit of local
contractors
Appointments of clerks
of work for projects
management support
for emerging
contractors

Priority given to SMME
in Opex Projects.

An awareness
presentation about the
Implementation of the
new Preferential
Procurement
Regulations was done
during the business
training day

Good
(0.40)
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e The Risk and

Risk and

Compliance Unit will Audit going
continuously monitor the Officer,
implementation of EPWP Developm
guideline in developments. | ent
Managers

CFO | eWorking closely with the Supply June-
SMME for, City SCM unit Chain 12
and DED on the Manager
implementation of new

SMME guidelines from the
City.

o Closely Monitor work
allocated to SMME/BEE
sub-contractors.

*DED to fund the Working
Capital of emerging
contractors.

eImplementing the new
Preferential Procurement
Regulations effective from
07 Dec 2011

SCM policy will be reviewed
before the end of the current
financial year
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Failure of financial Lack of awareness Financial loss o Further training on the o Monthly Management | Excelle
management systems. |  of update of  Overspending of revised policy will be account report nt
Policies and the budget undertaken after the approval | e Greats Plain financial (0.20)
Procedures e Irregular of the policy by the Board. System
e Human error expenditure, o Developing individual o Staff at finance
e Non- fruitless Development Plan for currently study for
implementation of expenditure and finance staff. different financial
approved business unauthorised management courses.
process expenditure o MFMA monthly
o Unreliable compliance checklist
financial has been done.
information. o DMIS software
o Bad reputation upgrade
o An awareness
presentation on all
approved policies was
done during the
monthly business
training day
o All financial
transactions are
reviewed by two
senior officials
Sustainable operation e Operating budget eLoss of expertise o Undertake further l® Identification of other Fair
of the organisation short fall due to resignation feasibility studies for more | funding options including | (0.75)

® Recession and
reduced city and
national revenue

o Change in city
priorities

o Unbalanced budget
process from the
City

o JDA'’s funding
model (Minimum
capital budget
required by the
organisation to
sustain itself)

b Budget cut for

implementation of

Capital projects

caused by lack of
projects to be
implemented

o Lower staff

morale

o Lower impact of
projects
implemented by
the JDA

oReduced service
delivery

o Failure to pay for
operating
expenditure
including salaries.

o Closure of the
Entity

PPPs
o Explore other national
grant funding

o Work with DPUM in

accessing urban
settlement grant.

o |nstitutional strategy

discussion document
presented for Board
approval.

o Continue to seek technical

assistance assignments
such as implementation of
capital projects on behalf
of other CoJ departments

first allocation from
USDG.

l A pipeline of projects
developed and
advanced.

» Other development
facilitation functions, i.e.
implementation of project
on behalf of other COJ
entities and providing
technical assistance.

l® Institutional strategy
discussion document
approved by Board.

» JDA acknowledged as
implementing agent of
choice for sustainable

services cluster.
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e The current controls are

appropriate and we will 12
continue to monitor them

CEO | e Secure funding for JDA | EM: 30 June
developments from Planning 12
other govt grants & Strategy

(EPWP, Jobs Fund)

o Submit applications for

grants outside of
intergovernmental
system (Cities Alliance,
DBSA, PPIAF)

o Establish project

preparation capacity
through multi-year
contract and develop
pipeline of property
development projects.

o Get approval for new

partnership programmes
(inner city public places
and township retail)
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about the role of
the JDA
o Lack of formal
Stakeholder
management
process within the
organisation

5. o |Institutional review  |e New leadership o Loss of highly
of COJ and its within the group skilled personnel.
entities o Lower staff moral

o Organisation
instability and
uncertainty with
of employees

o Non-alignment
of organisation
mandate and
political priorities

e Change
Management

6. | Ml Ineffective Stakeholder | e Ineffective o Bad reputation.

management process consultation with | e Non-

within the organisation different implementation
stakeholders of decisions.
before and after | o Damage to the
the completion of infrastructure
the projects developed by

e Pooror JDA

ineffective
communication
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Analysis and o Institutional review Fair
recommendations discussion document (0.75)
discussed with Board and approved by Board
provided as input to the and submitted to SHU
CoJ institutional review and consultants as
process input to process.
Analysis and o Staff is continuously
recommendations on updated on the
reporting lines provided to progress of
MMC DPUM Institutional review
Institutional review process process and
and implications for JDA implications for JDA.
communicated to staff o JDA champion
Evidence based briefing appointed to the City's
material prepared for Institutional Review
incoming councilors and Forum
new city manager. o Briefing pack provided
to new executive
directors and board
members.
We are planning to have e EM: PS; CEO and Good
media training for on the COO are the (0.40)
spot interviews of designated
executives who interact spokespersons for
with the media. JDA.

JDA represented in
the Inner City Forum
and CID’s.

All JDA projects have
a community
consultant appointed.
Regular and timeous
response to all media
queries

JDA featured
positively in electronic
and print media in the
last quarter, e.g. BBC

CEO

o Analysis and
recommendations on
implications of
institutional review to
be refined and
updated as decisions
are made.

o [nstitutional review
process and
implications for JDA
communicated to staff

o New approach to
measuring impact of
JDA interventions to
be developed and
implemented.

EM:
Planning
& Strategy

EM:PS

Media training for on
the spot interviews of
executives who interact
with the media.
Generation of more
written evidence of
impact and process

Manager:
Marketing

On-
going
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RC Risk Description Cause Consequence IR
7. | F&C | Fraudulentand corrupt Weak internal Financial Loss to

activities. control the organisation
procedures Receiving poor
Collusion in quality goods
tender fraud and services
between Legal challenges
employees and from
service providers unsuccessful
Lack of or bidders.
Ineffective hotline Negative
reporting system publicity for the
Failure to declare organisation
business Appointment of
interests unsuitable
Submission of service
false supporting providers.
tender document Financial losses
by service to the entity.
providers Poor service
Internal Control delivery
Overriding by Harm or loss of
management life to
Dishonesty by communities as a
employees result of poor
responsible for quality work
projects and
procurement

8. | Com Non-compliance with Ineffective Financial

applicable laws and compliance penalties

regulations monitoring Criminal liability
Lack of Reputation
awareness of damage for the
new laws or organisation
amendments Costly litigations.
Lack of Liability of Board
understanding of members.
the requirement
of the relevant
law.

Mitigate strategy as per | Progress made to CE
original Risk mitigate the risk to
Assessment an acceptable level

to date

All tender documents will e There is an Anti-fraud | Fair

include the fraud hotline Hotline number for (0.75)

number in order to assist every tender

employees and stakeholders advertisement and

to report fraud and tender document.

corruption. o Annual declaration of

Finalise the Detailed Fraud business interest for

Risk Assessment report and all staff and during all

thereafter implement the Bid Committee

recommendations. meetings

Increase the awareness of o Verification of key

the new fraud hotline through information on all new

workshop and posters appointed companies.

around the JDA building e Fraud and Corruption

plan based in the
detailed Fraud Risk
assessment report in
place

o An awareness
presentation on fraud
and corruption was
done during the
annual break away

o Investigations by
Internal Audit of
allegations received
through hotline

Finalise the procurement of o Monthly MFMA Good

the Risk and Compliance compliance check list, | (0.40)

software by the end of the monthly SCM

Q1 of the 2011/2012 regulation checklist

financial year. including

Finalise the compilation of unauthorised,

the Regulatory Universe wasteful and fruitless

which will assist expenditure

management in prioritising confirmation

the applicable legislation that certificate by the CFO.

JDA must comply with. o Monthly conformation

certificate by manager
for payment with 30
days

o The Regulatory
Universe to be
approved by the

Resid
ual
risk

Amber

Risk Future actions to Action Time
Own | improve management Owner scale
er of the risk
CEO e The SCM policy will be Manager: | 30 June
reviewed before the end | Risk & 12
of the current financial Complianc
year e (internal
» Increase the awareness | audit)
of the new fraud hotline
through workshop and
posters around the JDA
building
CEO » A Compliance Auditon | All 30 June
the top ten legislations managers 12

will be conducted and it
is anticipated to be
completed by the end of
June 2012.
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Development and
Risk Committee

o The procurement of
Risk Management
and Compliance
Software has been
completed.

9. | KM Inadequate business Inappropriate IT o Decisions may
management govemance be based on
information. model. unreliable /

Lack of incomplete
information information
reporting (financial loss /
framework. reputational

Lack of quality damage).
assurance review | e Adverse audit

finding

10.| KIM Collapse of ICT Internal / o Disruption of JDA
environment. External disaster business

s (Natural. activities.

Hackers, etc.) o Loss of vital

information

11| SD Inability to delivery on  |¢ Downward budget | e Reduced scope

Capital projects.

adjustments
Inadequate project
management.
Lack of co-
operation by
stakeholders (e.g.
MOE's).
Inappropriate
project plan

Loss of critical
staff at crucial
points

Change in CoJ
priorities.

of projects.
Over/ under
expenditure on
budget.
Overrun on
project time
frames.
Negative
publicity
Poor service
delivery.

To implement the o IT Governance model | Good
performance information implemented through | (0.40)
management framework the IT governance
during the next financial year. Charter.
o Adoption and
implementation of the
COBIT framework
o To continue to test other Backup were done and Good
backup information to continue to be done with | (0.40)
ensure the successful users to confirm that data
restoring during disaster being backed up is done
recovers. so successfully .The
results are documented
and signed off. The same
procedure was done and
continues to be done for
servers, including server
images
e Development Managers e Monthly Area Fair
will continue to monitor Management (0.75)
implementation of the Meetings for three
multi-year projects to portfolios
ensure that these are o Operations manual
completed on time and in place.
within budget. o Stakeholder forums
in place.
o Adequate project
management team

and design capacity

Amber
)
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CEO

o Continual review of the

COBIT framework
implementation to make
sure it is improved.

Al
managers

30
June 12

CEO

o To continue to test

other backup
information to ensure
the successful
restoring during
disaster recovers.

o The department

continues to work with
the service provider to
come up with new
improved ways of
backing up

Manager:
IT

On-
going

CEO

e Development

Managers will
continue to monitor
implementation of the
multi-year projects to
ensure that these are
completed on time
and within budget.

SDM

30 June
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Inability to attract and
retain skilled
employees.

Inability to offer
attractive market
related salaries

o Poor relationship
between
managers and
employees

o Lack of sufficient
skills in the market

o Fixed term
contract and
uncertainty

e Poor succession
and retention
planning

o Salary disparities
within the City and
determination of
low salary limits

o Reduction of
budget, resulting in
reductions in
projects

o CoJ institutional
review process
uncertainty

o Absence of talent
management
philosophy

o No benchmarking
of internal skills
with the market

o Performance

management

policy not
addressing skills
retention

Johannesburg Development Agency

Failure to deliver

on the mandate.

Delay in

completion of

capital projects. .
High staff

turnover

High recruitment ®
and training &

development

cost

Loss of talent .
Rewards and

compensation

lagging behind .
market

Ad hoc non .

standardised
practices aimed
at dissuading
employees from
leaving.
Inconsistencies
in recognising
and appreciating
talent.

Management drafted an
action list in view of the
outcome of the climate
survey.

The EE Plan was
updated and
communicated to staff.
Salary benchmarking was
completed and will be
submitted to HR and
REMCO.

The Workplace Skills
Plan was finalised and
submitted to the SETA.
Training is taking place in
terms of the plan.

JDA Champion appointed

to the City's Institutional

Review Forum

Employee assistance
program and annual
organisational climate
survey.

Performance
incentives
programme.
Ensuring good and
productive work
environment.

Salary benchmarking
was completed
approved by HR and
REMCO.

The EE Plan was
updated and
communicated to
staff.

The Workplace Skills
Plan was finalised
and submitted to the
SETA which is
supported by the
budget amount equal
to 3% of the total
payroll. Training is
taking place in terms
of the plan. Two
employees have been
appointed in line with
EE plan

(0.75)

©)
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Management will be
implementing an
action list in view of
the outcome of the
climate survey.
Develop a talent
management strategy
Categorise employees
into (risk) profiles or
categories

Yearly reviews of
market vs JDA in
terms of remuneration
and employee
engagement levels

HR
Manager
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Section 4.8: Sustainability Report

Urban Environmental management is an integral part of the urban regeneration projects that JDA implements as evidenced
by the upgrading of parks, the construction, of storm water facilities and construction of public transport infrastructure and
facilities. The Rea Vaya Bus Rapid Transit service has the potential to reduce the City’s transport energy use and the
associated carbon emissions in the medium term. The service is currently being used by up to 34 000 people per day and
this number will increase as other phases are completed.

The JDA complies with environmental impact regulations in all its projects. In this year, other than the BRT busways and the
Bruma Lake rehabilitation project, there are no projects that require environmental impact assessments and no projects that
require heritage approvals.

In 2007 the JDA produced a practice guideline document on green urban development approaches that is included in our
operations manual. All professional teams involved in preparing detailed designs are required to consider the following
environmental considerations:
e The design of more permeable ground surfaces, and soak-aways or swales to reduce the storm water run-off in
areas upgraded by the JDA to achieve sustainable urban drainage standards;
¢ Indigenous and water-wise planting in all landscaping interventions in compliance with City Parks requirements;
e Environmental design for crime prevention guidelines as promoted by the City Safety Programme;
e Other environmental construction and infrastructure options such as energy efficient lighting and rainwater
harvesting; and
e Environmental health regulations for informal trading where the JDA upgrades trading and taxi facilities.

The JDA has also achieved some social development impacts through its annual Corporate Social Investment (CSI)
Programme. In 2011/12 the JDA made small grants amounting to almost R250 000 for projects ranging from rooftop food
gardens in the inner city to upgrading of school buildings and facilities.
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CHAPTER FIVE: HUMAN RESOURCES AND ORGANISATIONAL MANAGEMENT

JDA’s organisational structure is based on the following principles:

a flat, non-hierarchic structure

a medium-sized agency, with a minimum specialist employee complement

JDA operates as a matrix institution, with the CEO assisted in the functions by 5 (Five) executive managers
interacting together in pursuit of both the entity’s operational and development objectives.

JDA operates with a COO and a number of development teams, each with a Senior Development Manager (SDM)
who is responsible for overseeing the design and construction of developments and securing strategic input from
the COO relating to specific developments.

Illustrated below is the current top structure and staffing of the JDA.

Current JDA Organisation Structure

Chief Executive
Officer

Chief Financial EM: Marketing & EM: Risk, EM: Planning & Chief Operations

Finance Manager

Supply Chain & Risk &

Officer Communications Compliance & HR Strategy Officer

HR & Office

Manager = SDM: Portfolio A

Contracts Compliance = SDM: Portfolio B
Manager Manager

IT Systems
Manager

= SDM: Portfolio C

Company

Secretary

The following senior positions remain either frozen or there is an acting person in the role:

Chief Executive Officer: Thanduxolo Mendrew continues to act as the CEO. He has been in this acting capacity
since July 2010.

Chief Operating Officer: This position remains frozen since Nkosinathi Manzana resigned in November 2011. The
three Senior Development Managers who used to report into this role now report directly to the CEO.

Executive Manager: Risk, Compliance and Human Resources: Thanduxolo Mendrew vacated this position when
he was appointed acting CEO in July 2010. The two managers continue to report directly to him in his role as acting
CEO.

Executive Manager: Marketing and Communications: The management responsibilities were fulfilled by the EM:
Planning and Strategy in a care-taking role until March 2012. Since then one of the Marketing Managers has acted
in the role.

HR Manager: A temporary short-term consulting contract appointment was made to ensure that HR functions were
fulfilled from February to June 2012.

The number of vacant positions at executive level for such a long time is unusual and poses a serious risk should the people
in these acting positions resign. It is important to note that:

While the people are appointed in acting positions, their primary jobs need to be taken care of, often resulting in
shared responsibilities cascading down within the reporting lines placing everyone in the team under strain.
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- The continued acting arrangements, whether on a month to month basis or for a defined period, beyond a period of
six months is contrary to the JDA’s and the CoJ’s policies.

- Itis hoped that with the CoJ high level institutional reform process drawing to its completion, the vacant positions
will be filled to ensure the effective and efficient delivery of service.

Section 5.1: Human Resource Management

As at year end, the JDA’s total full time staff was 50 employees. In terms of the organogram which was approved in the
business plan, there are 15 vacancies at the JDA. However, as prompted by the City’s call to departments and MOEs to
reduce operational expenditure, the JDA resolved to freeze some of these vacancies.

The affected vacancies are:

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Operating Officer

Executive Manager: Marketing and Communications
HR Manager

Accountant

Development Managers (5 posts)

Assistant Development Managers (2 posts)
Development Coordinators (2 posts)

Housekeeper / Cleaner

Three positions were filled during 2011/12: an IT and IS admin officer post was filled on 1 December 2011; and the facilities
manager and a supply chain and contracts coordinator posts were filled on 1 January 2012. There were also two internal
promotions.

Staff movement July 2011 to June 2012
African Coloured Indian WANES

Staff Movements Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female Total
Appointments 0 0 1 0 2 0 0 0 3
Resignations 2 1 0 0 0 0 1 0 4
Dismissals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Retirements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Termination / Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

1 0 2 0 0

Section 5.2: Employment Equity

The JDA is committed to the principles of equity, anti-discrimination and diversity as enshrined in the Constitution the
Employment Equity Act (EEA). In this context, the JDA seeks to create an institution that reflects the diversity of South
African society, and contributes to maximising the human resource potential of all our people.

JDA has implemented employment policies and practices designed to achieve the advancement and adequate protection of
persons previously disadvantaged by unfair discrimination. In line with this, the JDA has adopted an Employment Equity
Policy. In terms of this policy JDA plans its annual Employment Equity (EE) targets and reports to the Department of Labour
in accordance with the provisions of the EEA.

JDA’s Employment Equity Plan (EEP) is driven by the Chief Executive Officer and supported by all managers. This is filtered
down to all employees to ensure commitment throughout the organisation.

The overall goal at the JDA with regard to human resources practice and EE is to:

B Promote an environment and culture that supports open communication where everyone is encouraged to express
one’s views without fear of being victimised

B Ensure fair and consistent application and implementation of all employment practices and procedures

B Whilst the JDA has far exceeded its EE targets and prides itself with having a workforce that is truly representative
of the country’s demographics, the JDA continuously endeavours to improve equitable representation of people
from designated groups in senior management positions.

B The JDA has also introduced affirmative mechanisms targeted at addressing the development needs of previously
disadvantaged individuals by providing unique opportunities for career advancement, growth and training and
development.

The following principles continue to guide our employment equity initiatives:
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B Appropriate structures and adequate resources have been put in place to coordinate and monitor employment
equity implementation across the organisation. The JDA undertakes an annual review of its EE process and

general employment practices.

2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

B The Employment Equity Statistics — are sourced to review progress and provide direction regarding progress in the
implementation of the employment equity plan.
[ | To ensure focus, the Executive Committee and the Board’s Human Resources and Remuneration Committee also
provide regular input to the strategies and initiatives regarding EE and its implementation in the organisation.

Race & Gender Spread
43%
25%
0, 8% 0,
2% 4% 6% 6% 4%
— ] H =
AM CcM IM WM AF CF IF WF
EAP AM CM IM WM AF CF IF WF
GP EAP 44.60% 2.10% 1.40% 8.90% 33.30% 1.70% 0.80% 7.30%
RSAEAP | 4050% |  6.00% |  190% |  670% | 3340% |  500% |  1.30% |  540%

Source: Statistics South Africa, 2010

The thrust of the Employment Equity Act is for Organisations or businesses to reflect the demographics of the country or
provinces where they operate. Organisations with a national footprint will use the national EAP figures.

With the exception of White females (WF) women are over represented in JDA in comparison to the current applicable EAP
numbers. African males and White males are under-represented at JDA. It is a rare and indeed a unique reality in that
women are exceeding both the regional and national EAP numbers as reported above. Males in all other national spheres
dominate employment numbers.

One Black woman or 2% of Black females is classified as a foreign national.

Employment Equity Demographics Status as at 30June 2012

Employment Equity Status
(Demographics)

Levels African \ Coloured Indian White Total
Male | Female | Male  Female @ Male  Female Male = Female
Executive & 1 3 1 1 0 1 1 1 9
Senior
Management
Middle 4 4 1 3 1 0 2 1 16
Management
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Levels Indian White Total

Technical / Co- 3 11 1 1 1 2 0 0 19
ordination /

Administration

Housekeepers / 1 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 6
Cleaners

Total
% of Total

Gender Equity
Levels Black ~ White Total

Male Female | Male Female
Executive &
Senior
Management 2 5 1 1 9
Middle
Management 6 7 2 1 16 = Male
Technical /Co- Female
ordination / 66%
Administration 5 14 0 0 19 L3
Housekeepers /
Cleaners 1 5 0 0 6

Total 14
% of Total 28% 62%
Black 90%

Male 34%
Black Female
Management

Management Level
Demographics

Levels Total ‘ African Coloured 16% Indian 12% White 10%
‘ Male Male Female Male Female @ Male Female
Executive & Senior
Management
Middle 16 4 3 1 3 1 1 2 1
Management

Total 25 ‘

% of Total 100% ‘ 20%

Staff Turnover

Total Staff 50

Movements (excl.

Appointments) 4 8%
Levels JDA Positions

Chief Executive Officer, Chief Operations Officer, Chief Finance Officer, Executive Manager: Planning and
Strategy, Executive Manager: Marketing & Communications; Executive Manager: Risk, Compliance and HR,
Senior Development Managers, Human Resources and Office Manager, Supply Chain and Contracts Manager,
Finance Manager and IT, Risk and Manager Compliance and Systems Manager.

Development Managers, Accountants, Audit & Risk Officer, Procurement Officer, Marketing Managers,
Assistant Development Managers and Company Secretary.

Coordinators, Receptionist, Personal Assistants, Accounts Payable Officer, Accounts Receivable Officer, IT
Officers, Fixed Asset Register Officer, Messenger/Caretaker, Procurement Co-ordinator

Housekeeping Housekeepers, Cleaners

Executive &Senior Management:

Middle Management

Co-ordination/Administrative:
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B The JDA currently has 90% Black staff, which far exceeds the target of 80% provided in the Employment Equity
Plan.
B The JDA currently has 56% Black females in management positions against a target of 35%.

The JDA currently employs 2 employees with physical disabilities. This constitutes 4% of the total JDA staff compliment.
This exceeds the City’s strategic target of ensuring that at least 2% of all CoJ employees should be people within disabilities.

Section 5.3: Skills Development and Training

JDA is committed to sustaining a continuous programme of training and development for its management and staff in order
to advance with changing times and technology, and thus ensure professional delivery and a competitive edge.

Our vision is to provide an integrated learning experience to our employees that will strengthen their commitment to JDA’s
values, enhance the leadership capability and improve capacity to meet current and future business requirements. The
learning strategy is based on four pillars:

understanding the educational requirements of the organisation based on competency assessments;

best practice learning design;

timeous and appropriate learning delivery; and

Assessment of the impact of learning interventions on overall company performance.

As at the end of June 2012, 82% (R698 699) of the budget of R850 000 has been spent on staff development. This figure
may change as some invoices get captured after the last day of June 2012.

A Workplace Skills Plan has been finalised and submitted to the Local Government Sector Education and Training Authority
(LGSETA) in accordance with the Skills Development Act and the Skills Development Levies Act. The JDA also submitted
its Annual Training plan before the deadline of 30 June 2011.

JDA makes funds available for appropriate on-going training and development for programmes that are practical and
outcomes based. JDA has created a culture of on-the-job and off-the job learning in the organisation and every single
employee embraces this. Training is an on-going process of improving employees’ knowledge, skills and attitude with the
view to improve either job performance and/or competitiveness for growth, career advancement and internal promotions.
The JDA supports the attainment of further educational qualifications by employees in order to improve their productivity.

Section 5.4: Succession Policy and Retention

Succession Planning
Due to the small size of the JDA, it is not possible to employ replacement staff for each critical position within the
organisation. However, the training and development of staff is aimed at preparing them for positions above their own level.

Employee Retention Scheme

The JDA plans to formalise a retention scheme for the organisation. The annual salary benchmarking exercise is aimed at
ensuring that the JDA pays market related salaries for its staff. The annual organisational climate survey is also of critical
importance to the JDA to ensure that management is in touch with perceptions and expectations of staff. The 2011 climate
survey indicated that the JDA staff was in general very committed to the organisational goals.

Section 5.5: HIV/AIDS on the Workplace

JDA provides an outsourced comprehensive Employee Assistant Programme administered by ICAS, which covers
behavioural risk management, free trauma counselling, free legal and financial advice to all its employees.

ICAS provides a confidential, 24-hours a day, 365 days a year personal support and information service which each
employee, his/her partner and immediate family may access by calling a toll free phone number to assist them to deal with
everyday situations or more serious concerns. The service is provided by qualified, experienced counsellors either over the
phone in the required language or face-to-face counselling if necessary. Issues which employees may need assistance with
may include the following:

Stress: work or personal

Financial: money management; debt

Legal: legal matters; maintenance; child custody; divorce law

Relationships: family; work; partners; friends

Substance abuse: alcohol; drugs

Family matters: childcare and care of the elderly; education; state benefits and allowances

Health issues: AIDS counselling, illness

Work: stress management; career matters; maternity; harassment; dealing with a direct supervisor; managing
others.
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In order to monitor the sorts of issues which are of concern to employees, JDA receives statistical information on general
usage to assist the organisation to focus on the provision of solutions to those issues raised. The identities of the people
who made use of the programme are never disclosed.

The JDA held a wellness day on 1 December. Employees were offered the opportunity to have their basic health assessed
with regards to blood pressure, blood sugar levels, cholesterol, body mass index, body fat percentage, general fitness and
work stress. Employees received feedback on their assessments as well as guidance and counselling in terms of corrective
measures. This initiative displays the keen assistance of the organisation towards a physically and mentally healthy
workforce

The JDA is committed to maintaining the health and welfare of all its employees as well as providing a safe and hygienic
working environment. The JDA’s policy on HIV/AIDS ensures that no employee is discriminated against based on their HIV
status. The JDA will not unfairly discriminate against an employee or an applicant for employment on the basis of HIV or
other life threatening illness, as long as the person is capable of performing the inherent requirements of the job for an
agreed reasonable length of time.

All managers and employees must respect the confidentiality of information regarding existing or potential employees with
life threatening illness. An employee who divulges information without the employee’s informed knowledge or consent will be
disciplined under the disciplinary code. The JDA reserves the right to request medical advice or intervention in instances
where an employee’s performance becomes adversely affected as a result of their illness, or where an employee claims that
working in certain situations will not be appropriate due to his/her illness. All employees are encouraged to know their HIV
status and to remain healthy if they are infected by HIV.

Our HIV and AIDS programme covers awareness and educational campaigns, the provision of free condoms, videos and
free help lines. JDA’s HIV and AIDS Programme provides assistance to employees who may contract a life-threatening
lliness; to provide consistent guidelines and to ensure fair and consistent treatment of all employees with life-threatening
illnesses; to inform them of their rights and benefits; and to provide an education framework for HIV and AIDS. The JDA HIV
and AIDS Coordinator attend regular meetings of the CoJ HIV and AIDS Committee of the CoJ. After these meetings the
internal JDA HIV and AIDS Committee meets to discuss the CoJ programme and to plan and implement the relevant
initiatives.

Section 5.6: Employee Benefits

All new JDA staff join the E-Joburg Retirement Fund. Existing staff were offered a 12 month window period in order to join
the fund. Other benefits provided to staff are the following: Educational Grant Scheme and company cell phones for those
determined by the JDA Exco.

Bonus payment and Performance management—

The performance management system (PMS) is designed to ensure that the JDA’s business strategy is translated into
measurable key performance areas and indicators (KPAs and KPIs) for employees. Each employee has concluded a
performance management contract with a scorecard and a performance review will be finalised during the next month to
determine employee’s progress against the goals contained in their scorecards. Where areas of poor work performance
have been identified, corrective actions were put in place to improve employee performance against the scorecard. This has
increased employee awareness of their performance, which is highly relevant given that the incentives of employees are
directly linked to their level of performance. The JDA paid performance bonuses during December 2011 to those employees
who qualified.
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CHAPTER SIX: FINANCIAL ASSESSMENT

Section 6.1: Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible Assets

Deferred Tax

Current assets

Loans to Shareholders

Trade and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves
Contribution from Owners
Accumulated Surplus (Deficit)

Non-current liabilities

Finance lease obligation
Deferred taxation
Project funds available

Current liabilities

Loans from shareholders
Trade and other payables
Net VAT payable
Provisions — bonus
Finance lease obligations

Total equity and liabilities

2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

R’000 R’000
Actual Actual
30 June 2012 June 2011
7 383 7 044
6318 5952
39 194
1027 898
187 999 372 394
57 303 102 457
129 449 268 741
1247 1196
195 382 379 438
50 770 46 778
16 278 16 278
34 493 30 500
13 000 19 719
285 0
2 689 4 001
10 026 15 718
131 611 312 942
54 804 56 477
64 975 244 080
9214 10 320
2 477 2036
141 29
195 382 379438
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Section 6.2: Statement of Financial Performance

STATEMENT OF FINANACIAL PERFORMANCE
For the year ended 30 June 2012

2012 2012 2012

Actual Budget Variance

R’000 R’000 R’000
Gross revenue 43 993 46 595 (2 602)
Operating costs (45 254) (49 495) 4241
Gross (deficit)/surplus (1 261) (2 900) 1639
Operating (deficit)/surplus (1 261) (2 900) 1639
Interest Expense (79) (100) 21
Interest Income 3892 3 000 892
Surplus /(Deficit)before tax 2552 0 2461
Deferred Taxation 1441 0 1687
Surplus/(Deficit) after tax 3993 0 4148

Overall Financial Performance

For the financial year under review, the JDA revenue was R43.9million against a budget of R46.5million. The negative
variance of R2.6million is the net result of an under-recovery of R2.7million on the development management fees line item.
The development management fees are lower than budgeted due to only 73% of the budgeted annual CAPEX expenditure
having been utilised. The mayoral committee decision to prioritise the Alex/Louis Botha route over the scheduled Parktown
to Sandton route resulted in the implementation of the Parktown to Sandton route being halted which then affected capital
spending. This had a negative impact on the fee earning capacity of the JDA. Furthermore budgets on other sections of the
BRT were set at higher levels given past experiences however aggressive bidding resulted in tender prices being far below
what was expected which resulted in projects being completed at a far lower price than initially budgeted. The actual
management fee earned was thus based on lower actual capital expenditure than initially budgeted. Interest earned is higher
than budget due to positive bank balance maintained throughout the financial year due to prompt settlement of claims by
City of Johannesburg and the balance of the BRT/Bertrams Priority Block land acquisition funds which were transferred into
the JDA’s bank account by the City of Johannesburg.

For the financial year under review the JDA’s operating expenses were R45.3 million against a budget of R49.4million. The
major variances arose in the line items of employee costs, IT related expense, planning & strategy, repairs &maintenance
and telecommunication. The telecommunications line item is pure savings as a result of strict cost control measures
implemented by management. The variance in the employee cost line item is due to some of the vacant positions that have
not been filled Included in the operating costs.
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Section 6.3: Cash Flow Statement

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

For the financial year ending 30 June 2012

Cash flows from operating activities

Receipts

Grants

Interest received

Cash receipts fromCapex funding
Other receipts

Payments

Employee costs

Suppliers

Interest paid

Cash payments from CAPEX funding

Cash flows from investing activities

Expenditure to maintain operating
capacity

Property, plant and equipment acquired
Proceeds from sale of property, plant
and equipment

Purchase of intangible assets

Cash flows from financing activities

Movement in project funds payable
Movement in CAPEX VAT
Repayments of shareholders loan
Finance lease repayments

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the year

R’000
Actual
30 June 2012

2011/12 Annual Report
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R’000
Actual
30 June 2011

(36 946) (36 205)
24 110 21 637
3892 6 736
579 144 836 001
1053 752
(27 419) (24 938)
(617 648) (878 370)
(79) (23)

0 0

(737) (454)
(737) (366)
(88)

37 734 36 710
(5 692) 2 941
0 (8 262)

43 481 42 072
(54) (42)

51 50
1196 1146
1247 1196
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Section 6.4: Supply Chain Management

Supply Chain Management Policy

The JDA’s Supply Chain Management Policy (SCM) uses committee systems for procurement of services and goods above
specified limits. Existing committees include:

e Bid Specification Committee
e  Bid Evaluation Committee and
e Bid Adjudication Committee.

There are two Bid Adjudication Committees (BACs), one for CAPEX and the other for OPEX. The members for BAC are the
Chief Financial Officer (Chair), Executive Manager: Risk and Compliance, two Senior Development Managers (whose bid is
not being adjudicated on), and the Procurement Manager. The members for OPEX BAC are the Chief Financial Officer
(Chair), the Procurement Manager, the Executive Manager: Marketing, and the Executive Manager: Risk and Compliance.
Both BAC’s are not authorised to make any procurement decisions above R10 million instead a recommendation to the
Chief Executive Officer for procurement in excess of R10 million is made.

Section 6.6: Internal Audit and Auditor General Management Letter Issues

The JDA Internal Audit is a co-sourced function with an external service provider in accordance with the provisions of
Section 165 of the MFMA. The JDA ensures an effective internal control system which is tested continuously in order to
improve efficiencies and identify possible breaches on time.

Internal Audit provides objective and independent assurance, via the Audit Committees, to the Management and Board of
Directors about Risk Management, Internal Control Environment and Corporate Governance. Internal Audit activities are
governed through an internal audit charter, approved by the audit committee and reviewed annually. The charter defines the
purpose, authority and responsibilities of the internal audit.

Internal Audit reports are presented at Audit Committee meetings. Internal Audit has a direct reporting line to the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee. They operate independently of executive management but also have access to the
Chief Executive Officer for administrative reporting.

Annually, Internal Audit develops a comprehensive risk-based audit plan which is derived from the approved Business Plan,
Strategic and Operational Risk register. The risk-based audit plan is validated by executive management and approved by
the Audit Committee. There is an on-going focus on identifying fraud risk given JDA’s dependence on procurement
management process. Internal Audit also liaises with the External Auditors and other assurance providers to enhance
efficiencies in terms of combined assurance.

The annual plan is reviewed regularly to ensure it remains relevant and responsive, given the changes in the operating
environment. The Audit Committee approves any changes to the plan as necessary based on their risk assumptions.
Internal Audit had successfully executed the audits as per the approved Risk-based Internal Audit Plan. There were no
limitations placed on the scope of the work of the Internal Audit in the course of conducting its business. The audit findings in
respect of each review, together with their recommendations for action to improve on the systems of internal controls and
the management response were set out in our detailed reports, which have been presented to management and the Audit
Committee during the course of the year. There are no significant unresolved differences of opinion between the Internal
Audit and the Executive Management in respect of acceptance of residual risk. The table below contains all reports that
were tabled and approved by the Audit Committee in terms of the approved plan.

The approved annual Internal Audit Plan for 2011/12 was successfully completed and three reports were submitted to the
Audit Committee for approval during the July meeting.

Below is the summary of all internal audits completed during 2011/12

ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN (2011/12) Month to. Status Overall Rating
start audit
1 Strategic Planning Oct 2011 and Feb 2012 Audit pfc_)stpor_led to the next N/A
inancial year.
2 Contract Administration Nov 2011 Completed 3
3 IT General Control Review Nov 2011 Completed 1
4 Supply Chain Management Apr2012 Completed 2
5 Payroll Feb 2012 Completed 3
Audit postponed to the next
6 N/A
Performance Payment Nov 2011 financial year.
7 Performance Against Objectives Quarter 4- 2010/2011 (August 2011) Completed 2

53




Johannesburg Development Agency 1 Jufﬁtl)lllft?gglﬁlniezpocirzt

ANNUAL AUDIT PLAN (2011/12) Month to Status Overall Rating
start audit
8 | Performance Against Objectives Quarter 1 (Nov 2011) Completed 2
9 Performance Against Objectives Quarter 2 (Feb 2012) Completed 2
10. | Performance Against Objectives Quarter 3 (May 2012) Completed 2
11 Follow-up Application Control Review Oct 2011 Completed 2
12 Follow up Audit ( Auditor General Audit Findings Nov 2011 Completed 1
and Internal Audit Findings)

The following rating system was used to formulate our overall audit opinion:

Audit Rating Reporting Monitoring Results Probable

Risk

Audit objectives were satisfactorily met
Evaluation of the Management Processes provides reasonable assurance that:

= Implementation of the business objectives is effective across the business and exceeds the
1 present targets; No

= Reporting of business information (i.e. financial) is accurate;

= Implementation of Preventative, Continuous Improvement; Risk Detection and Correction
measures is effective.

Audit objectives were met, but there are isolated or not material incidents that need to be
corrected

Evaluation of the Management Processes provides reasonable assurance that:

= |mplementation of the business objectives is effective, in some parts of the business

2 process/(es); Possible

= Reporting of business information (i.e. financial) is accurate, in some parts of the business
process/(es);

= Implementation of Preventative, Continuous Improvement; Risk Detection and Correction
measures is effective, in some parts of the business process/ (es).

Audit objectives were only partly met, as there are significant exposures that need to be
corrected

Evaluation of the Management Processes provides reasonable assurance that:

= |mplementation of the business objectives is both effective and ineffective throughout the
3 business processl/(es); Yes

= Reporting of business information (i.e. financial) is both accurate and inaccurate throughout
the business process/(es);

= |mplementation of Preventative, Continuous Improvement; Risk Detection and Correction
measures is both effective and ineffective throughout the business process/ (es).

Audit objectives were not met

Evaluation of the Management Processes provides reasonable assurance that:

= Implementation of the business objectives is poor and ineffective, in most parts of the
business process/(es);

= Reporting of business information (i.e. financial) is inaccurate in most parts of the business
process/(es);

= |Implementation of Preventative, Continuous Improvement; Risk Detection and Correction
measures is poor and ineffective in most parts of the business process/ (es).

Yes

Overall Internal Audit Opinion

In line with the International Standards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing, Internal Audit is required to provide
an overall assurance assessment of the internal control environment within the JDA at the end of each financial year. This
provides both Management and Board of Directors with an indication of the robustness of the internal control, Corporate
Governance and Risk Management in environment. This provides assurance that the Annual Governance Statement can be
signed.

On the basis of the audit work, the Internal Audit considers that JDA’s governance, risk management and internal control
arrangements are generally adequate and effective. Certain weaknesses and exceptions were highlighted by Internal Audit,
only three of which was considered as fundamental. These matters have been discussed with management, to whom they
have made a number of recommendations. All of these have been, or are in the process of being addressed.
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The overall Internal Audit Opinion is outline under three categories as stated below:

Audit opinion on the environment Adequacy / Effectiveness Rating

1 Control environment Adequate and effective with improvements noted.
2 Risk Management Adequate and effective

3 Corporate Governance Adequate and effective with improvements noted

In order to understand the classification of rating between adequacy and effectiveness, the definitions of the two
terms are:

Adequate “Present if management has planned and organised (designed) in a manner that provides reasonable
assurance that the organisation's risks have been managed effectively and that the organisation’s goals
and objectives will be achieved efficiently and economically.”™ The process has sufficient key controls in
place to mitigate the risk”.

Effective  “The extent to which program outcome objectives have been met.?” It is therefore when the process and

system of internal controls is working as intended to achieve the stated goals and objectives and to

ensure that the risks are mitigated.

Control environment

During the year under review, the JDA internal audit opined that, the internal control environment is partly adequate and
partly effective for the areas reviewed. Certain significant matters and/or areas for improvement were identified within the
two key processes reviewed, namely contract administration and payroll. Processes that were considered in the formulation
of their opinion were inclusive of all the audits as per the internal audit plan for 2011/12. They opined further that they have
also performed a follow-up review on the all the previous weaknesses noted and comfortable to say that the matters
previously raised did received the necessary attention. In cases were significant matters were noted i.e. performance
information, issues were corrected as far as possible in the next quarter.

Risk Management

On risk management, the function has assured the JDA that the risk management of JDA is adequate and effective. Great
effort was made with the development of risk management within the company and by auditing the specific processes; they
provided adequate assurance that risk management is effectively embedded in the day-to-day operations of the entity.

Governance Processes

A formal governance review was performed during the previous financial year and the 2011/12 follow-up did indicate that
improvements were made to the identified matters in general. A follow up on the IT Governance was undertaken and were
satisfied that all matters are adequately addressed. They further opined that governance process is partly adequate but
effective as a result of the significant issue that is still to be concluded in relation to Business Continuity and Disaster
Recovery process. Additional to the abovementioned, Internal Audit conducted an audit on the ten high risks laws and
regulations applicable to the JDA. The overall result indicates that JDA achieved 97.8% compliance level. Based on the
above results, the general control environment around the compliance processes are adequate in providing reasonable
assurance that the high-risk laws and regulations are properly managed and controlled in order for JDA to achieve its
business and operational goals.

In arriving at the overall Internal Audit Opinion, the following matters were taken into account:

e The results of all audits undertaken during the year ended 30 June 2012;

e The results of follow-up action taken in respect of audits from previous years;

Whether or not any significant recommendations have not been accepted by management and the consequent
risks;

The effects of any material changes in the organisation’s objectives or activities;

Matters arising from previous reports to the Audit Committee and/or by the Auditor-General;

Whether or not any limitations have been placed on the scope of internal audit; and

Whether there have been any resource constraints imposed upon them which may have impinged on their ability to
meet the full internal audit needs of the organisation.
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The Internal Audit monitors implementation of all its recommendations and verifies the reported Implementation, where
possible, during subsequent audit visits. Recommendations have been accepted positively by Executive Management, and
the Internal Audit is generally satisfied with the overall disposition of the significant audit recommendations.

Management Letter issues (AG)

The JDA’s external audit by the Auditor-General for 2010/11 was completed in November 2011.

Below is the JDA response to the AG’s findings in the audit report Of 2010/11.
Management’s response

Audit Issue Raised

Deadline

1. The normal procurement process was not
followed to award a tender to Koor Dindaar
Mothei for the Stretford Station Node
Project for an amount of R376 905,56
(excluding VAT).

Management notes and acknowledges
the finding. The classification of the
expenditure as a ratification was due to
misinterpretation of regulation 36(1)(b) of
the supply chain regulations. The
disclosure in annual financial statements
will be updated to reflect the irregular
expenditure.

Date

On-going

Progress to Date

At the November Training Day the
contents of the AG’s management
letter were communicated to all staff
members. Compliance with SCM
process was particularly emphasised
and the provisions of regulation
36(1)(b) and the correct interpretation
thereof was further explained to
employees. Employees were also
notified that failure to adhere to SCM
processes may result in disciplinary
action taken against an employee.
The financial statements were adjusted
to show the disclosure of irregular
expenditure.

Internal audit has conducted a
compliance exercise to track progress
on compliance. The register will be
implemented in the first month of the
new financial year.

2. The contract between JDA and Gestetner
Finance has existed for a period more than
three years (from 26 November 2007 to 25
November 2010) and the contract is still
active to date. There is no evidence that the
contract was reviewed after the period of
three years as required by Section 116(1)(iii)
of MFMA.

The contract was reviewed and an
extension for a period of 1 year was
issued to the service provider and
documentation will be made available to
the AG. A tender process of appointing a
new service provider is currently being
finalized.

2010/2011

The contract with the new service
provider (Ricoh) for provision of
printing services commenced in
January 2012. The SCM unit has
developed a contract register which
reflect the status quo of the contract
(date to expire) on radar to ensure that
tender processes for contracts that are
coming to an end are initiated.

Ricoh has been appointed as the new
service provider for printing services.
Furthermore guidelines on what
constitutes irregular expenditure were
formulated and communicated to the
staff.

3.Contracts were amended or extended
without tabling the reasons before council
and/or notifying the public as required by the
MFMA and in some instances to the extent
that procurement processes were
circumvented

3 Fifteen

The approval for the extension of 3
Fifteen was approved at a BAC meeting
held on 22 May 2009. The resolution
was that the annual service level
agreement be approved for renewal on a
yearly basis. The AG was given a
contract that was signed during March
2009 for a period of twelve months. A
contract for 2010 will be made available
to the AG. No contract was concluded
for 2011 as the service provider was
informed on the 4 May 2011 regarding
termination of the contract.

Kiklo Risk Management Solutions

The approval for the extension of Kiklo
was approved at a BAC meeting held on
22 May 2009. The resolution was that a

2010/2011

3 Fifteen

The contract of services between 3
FiFteen was terminated on the 4t of
June 2011, but was also appointed for
DIMS support on the 21 December
2011.

Kiklo Risk Management Solutions

The contract of services between Kiklo
and Jda was terminated on 10 April
2012.

Datacentrix

The contract of services between
Datacentrix and Jda was terminated on
2 February 2012.

Metrofile

The metro file contract is still activity
since the movement of documentation
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Audit Issue Raised

Management’s response

2 year contract be concluded with Kiklo.
For 2010 no contract was concluded as
the initial contract included a duration
clause which allows for the contract
renewal on the anniversary for
successive periods of twelve months
subject to escalation in fees. During the
year under review i.e. 2010/11 a letter of
appointment was signed between JDA
and the service provider for a period of
twelve months with reference to the
original contract's terms and conditions.
Datacentrix

An extension for a period of twelve
months for 2010/11 was concluded with
the service provider. For all of the above
services two tender processes were
undertaken in the year under review i.e.
2010/11. The responses from the first
tender process were deemed to be non-
responsive and a recommendation by
BEC to BAC to go through under tender
process was upheld. The second tender
process was undertaken and the
submissions are being evaluated.

Metro file

Moving of archives from one service
provider to another service provider
poses a risk of documents being lost and
or misplaced. Itis management’s view
that archive services cannot be chopped
and changed from one year to the other.
The original contract with Metro file was
signed in 2006.

Deadline
Date

2011/12 Annual Report
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Progress to Date

poses a risk of documents being lost
and/ or misplaced. However the Jda
will go out on tender to seek for a new
service provider.

Furthermore guidelines on what
constitutes irregular expenditure were
formulated and communicated to the
staff.

4.The bonuses for the Johannesburg
Development Agency (SOC) Ltd were
disclosed as a contingent liability in the
financial statements; however this meets the
definition of a provision.

Although management notes the finding
and will correct the annual financial
statements accordingly by processing
the recommended journals,
management would like to point out that
the treatment of accounting for bonuses
as a contingent liability and not as a
provision in terms of GRAP 19 was
adopted by the JDA two financial years.
This was after long discussions between
the AG and management around the
conditions under which the JDA bonuses
became due and payable. Management
hopes that there will not be any further
confusion around the treatment of
bonuses and that any future change of
treatment will be guided by the GRAP
standards

Year-End

The provision for bonuses will be
raised at year end in order to comply
with reporting requirements.

Also by year end, there will be more
clarity as to the recognition and
measurement of the provision to be
raised thereby decreasing estimation
uncertainty.

5. During our audit of the cash flow statement,
we noted misstatements within the cash flows
from operating activities.

Contrary to section 122(1) of the MFMA, we
have determined by recalculation that the
cash flow statement of the Johannesburg
Development Agency (SOC) Ltd (JDA) does
not fairly present the line items making up
cash flow from operating activities. The net
effect on the cash flow from operating
activities is however, nil.

The reclassification of the suppliers’
payments was correctly input at year
end, but the effect on the employee
costs was not taken into account (debit
and credit) for the 3 months of the 4t
quarter. The figures shown at year end
(for the balances mentioned) were
carried forward from the 3 quarter Cash
Flow Statement.

The review carried out by management
was performed, but due to the fact that

On-going

Finance team has continued to
exercise due care in the preparation of
financial statements for reporting. The
financial information is compiled by the
finance unit and checked prior to
submission of a caseware file to the
COJ monthly. COJ checks for
completeness of the information and to
ensure that the figures are captured
correctly.

The accuracy of financial information
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Audit Issue Raised Management’s response Deadline
Date Progress to Date
the net effect was Rnil, this error was not presented monthly, quarterly and
picked up on the high-level review as the annually is being checked thoroughly
Cash Flow statement was in balance to ensure that such information is free
and the net effect was correct. of error. The quarterly reporting is
The above differences have a net effect vested with the EM: Planning &
of Rnil on the Cash Flow information. Strategy who collects information from
various unit responsible for quarterly
reporting. Once the report is compiled
and complete the verification of the
correctness of the information is done
by the CEO, CFO, company secretary
and Risk & Compliance Manager. This
process is also applicable for the
annual report as well.
6.Creditor’s balances outstanding for more Management notes the finding by the 27 October A very strict policy of payment under
than 30days and invoices paid after 30 days | AG and would like to point out that 2010. 30 days has been implemented.
invoices were held back because the Awareness of the seriousness of any
development manager was not happy contravention from this policy has been
with the work done by the service emphasised to all employees at
providers. Invoices are only paid when it various meetings and formal business
is accepted by the JDA that the services training days.
rendered meet the required standards To date, a list of payments that were
made in a period exceeding the 30 day
window has been kept. These invoices
have valid reasons for the JDA waiting
to pay the suppliers. The February and
March list indicates that there were no
invoices paid after 30 days.
Where balances have been carried
forward from prior years due to system
errors or disagreement with suppliers,
a subsidiary ledger clean-up is being
performed so as to eliminate incorrect
long-outstanding balances being
reflected.
7.In terms of GRAP 3 paragraph 05: Management acknowledges the finding. | October 2011 | The CFO together with the two
When a standard of GRAP specifically applies | It must be emphasized that this was an accountants attended a GRAP update
to a transaction, other event or condition the oversight as due care was taken in in March 2012. This will enhance their
accounting policy or policies applied to that ensuring the completeness of the annual understanding of the standard and
item shall be determined by applying the financial statements from general enlighten them on the correct treatment
standard and considering any relevant information up to disclosure. The and disclosure of disclosable items in
interpretations issued by the ASB for the revenue accounting policy note in the the annual financial statements.
Standard. annual financial statement will be The financial statements will also be
There are two standards for revenue, adjusted to distinguish between the prepared using the Group Annual
namely, revenue from exchange transactions | "€Vénue from exchange transactions and Financial Statements as a template for
(GRAP 9) and revenue from non-exchange revenue from non-exchange disclosure requirements.
transactions (GRAP 23) which are both transactions
approved and effective.
The revenue accounting policy in the financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2011
does not distinguish between the revenue
from exchange transactions and revenue from
non-exchange transactions and therefore the
applicable standard for each revenue stream
was not considered when determining the
accounting policy.
8.During the audit of trade and other Management notes the finding by the 2‘8¥$mber Amounts that are likely to be recovered

receivables the following were established:

The amounts in the table below

are refundable deposits paid by the
Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC)
Ltd (JDA). These amounts have been

AG. These are however deposits that
were paid for one or other reason. Some
of these payments predate the current
members in the finance department.
Documentation pertaining to these
transactions to determine what the

have been followed up and this has
resulted in the amount of R150,000,
held by Werksmans Attorney been
recovered with interest of R32,851.
Management is still in liaison with
Nemai Consulting cc to recover the
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Audit Issue Raised Management’s response Deadline p
Date rogress to Date

outstanding for more than a period of two deposit was for can prove to be a R107,344 held by them. Additional

years and their recoverability has not been challenge. Where practical, information has been found which

assessed during the year under review. management will contact the client explains what the deposit was for. The

e Werksmans Attorneys R150 000 companies to follow up on the payment City Power deposit of R11,000 will

« Nemai Consulting CC R107 344 of these deposits. coqtmue to be reﬂected as a deposit

. until the account is closed. The

o City Power R11 000 amounts paid to Ukhamba Property

o Ukhamba Property Investment R 7 879 Investment and the Joburg Sewing

Johannesburg Sewing Centre R 825 Centre have been written off as efforts
to get hold of these organisations have
not been successful. The phone
numbers dialled are no longer in
existence.

9.In terms of paragraph 32 of the Taking into account our reporting November In 2011/12 the bank reconciliations

Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC) timelines to CoJ which is the 7t of each | 2011 were prepared by one accountant and

Ltd's (JDA) financial policies and procedures
manual, accounting procedures (bank
reconciliations):

Review of reconciliation: If the reconciliation is
not done by the Finance Manager but by a
delegate, the reconciliation should be
scrutinised and checked by the Finance
Manager, who should initial/sign it as proof of
review.

Where the reconciliation is performed by the
Finance Manager, the Chief Financial Officer
should scrutinise and check the reconciliation
and sign it off as reviewed.

We have observed that the December 2010
bank reconciliation was not reviewed by the
appropriate official. The reconciliation was
prepared by the finance manager and also
reviewed by her. There was therefore no
proper segregation of duties.

month following the month end and that
most employees were on leave during
the first week of January we still had to
meet the submission deadline for the NT
reports. Having one bank reconciliation
not reviewed out of 12 does not mean
that controls over the reviewing of
reconciliations are not operating
effectively

checked by another to ensure
segregation. This was performed in
early January 2012. The final review
was performed by the CFO upon her
return from leave in January
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Key Performance Area

Key Performance Indicators

Baseline
(2010111)

2011/12
Target

Q1 Target Q1 Actual

Actual /
target

Q1
Achievem Q2 Target Q2 Actual
ent score

Q2 Actual
| target
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Q2
Achievem Q3 Target Q3 Actual
ent score

Q3 Actual
| target

Q3
Achievem Q4 Target Q4 Actual
ent score

Q4 Actual
| target

Achievem
ent score

Evidence

Validation Methodology

Number of short-term EPWP job opportunities .
. Quarterly development progress |External confirmation by
created in JDA projects (number of 3538 2647 798 843 106% [ ) 150 1109| 739% [ ) 794 875 110% [ ) 1059 744 70% — ——
individuals employed per quarter) . i
9 Number of short-term EPWP job opportunities .
1 .Economic empowerment . Quarterly development progress |External confirmation by
. created in JDA projects (per quarter 3538 2647 798 843|  106% . 948 1952 206% 1588 2306 145% 2647 3571 135% .
through the structuring and ive) reports professional
cumulative,
procurement of JDA projects
BEE procurement spend as a % of total SCM quarterly performance JDA quarterly finance
p 2 ° 70% 0% 0% | 4% | 1% 0% | 6% | 8% 0% | 8% | 11w | @ | 7o% | st% | 11e% R "
lativ e) reports reports
MME t % of total M I DA ly fi
s 40% 4% wn | o | 1% | @ | won | am | von | @ | o | o | 0w | @ | 4w | 4 | 1o | @ [P e peromance  UDAquarer fance
OPEX expenditure e) reports reports

Key Performance Area

2. Productive partnerships
and cooperation between all
relevant stakeholders

Q1 Q2 4
Baseli 2011/12 Actual 2 Actual Actual 4 Actual
Key Performance Indicators aseline 5 Q1 Target Q1 Actual Gl Achievem Q2 Target Q2 Act: T Achievem Q3 Target Q3 Actual N Achievem Q4 Target Q4 Actual T Achievem Evidence Validation Methodology
(2010/11) Target target | target | target | target
ent score ent score ent score ent score
Positive media reports as a % of the total >95% e L
numnt;e; of media reports on JDA (per na p(:sit.ive >95% | 100% | 100% [ ) >95% 98% 100% [ ) >95% 98% 98% [ ) >95% | 100% | 100% [ ) S — Media reports
quarter) stories
" . " >95%
REREE R EOEALIMEDE na ositive | >05% 100% 100% [ ) >95% 99% 99% [ ) >95% 98% 98% [ ) >95% 98% 98% [ ) and Media reports
reports on JDA (cumulative) pl |.|v ’ . : ° . . ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ° quarterly performance report ! P
stories
Number of tours hosted by JDA to promote and Signed
15 3 3[ 100% 3 4] 133% 5 4| 80% 4 5| 125%
dev elopment areas (per quarter) na : . ° . ’ . . . quarterly performance report registers
Number of tours hosted by JDA to promote and ication: Signed
1 1007 7| 1179 1 111 100% 1 1 1079
dev elopment areas (cumulative) na g S S e . 9 i . Gl . g & L . quarterly performance report registers
Number of devel it ts hosted by i d icat Ph hic evidk f
umber of dev elopment events hosted by a 5 2 dl Y 3 o — ® o al P P Al i P an evidence of
the JDA or partners (per quarter) quarterly performance report event
Number of dev elopment events hosted by and ication: Pl phic evidence of
na 5 3 3| 100% 3 4 133% 3 4 133% 5 6| 120%
the JDA or partners (cumulative) ’ . ’ . : . : . quarterly performance report event
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3. Human Resources

, at () a3
Key Performance Indicators Baseline 201112 Q1 Target Q1 Actual Actual | Achievem Q2 Target Q2 Actual L] Achievem Q3 Target Q3 Actual CHET] Achievem Q4 Target Q4 Actual T Achievem Evidence Validation Methodology
(2010/11) Target target | target I target | target
ent score ent score ent score ent score
Jiance i f the Employment 1009
Complance i respect of the Employment | 4y, % 1 o | to% | to% | @ | 1% | to0% | to0% | @ | to0% | t00% | 100% | @ | 1o0% | 100% | 100% | @ |MRrepors St st
Equity Plan: compliance
% Black staf as % of lal st (year (0
:’ ‘e)ac staffas % of tofal siaf(y ear 80% 80% 0% | se% | 10% | @ | so% | es% | 10w | @ | so% | ss% | 110% 0% | 8% | 110% | @ [HRreporss Staf st
gl
%F prprre
: det:)a‘e sefies % oftoil sbif(year | gy, a5% as% | eo% | e | @ | 45% | es% | taas | @ | 4% | 5% | 12 | @ | 4% | 5% | 12r% | @ [HRrepors St st
al
% Black Femal % of ot
% Black Female managers 36 % o 3% 3% s | 4% | 0% | @ | s% | 4% | 114w | @ | % | 4% | 1% | @ | % | 4% | 114% | @ [HRrepors St st
senior management (y ear to date)
% Staf Tumover (per quarter <10% <10% 2% | t00% | 100% | @ | <% | 4% | t00% | @ | <% [ 2% | t00% | @ | <% | 0% | 100% | @ [HRreporss St st
% Staf Tumover (cumulative) <10% <10% 2% | 100% | 100% | @ | <% | 6% | 100% | @ | <io% | e | 0% | @ | <% | 8% | 100% | @ [HRreporss St st
Number of HIV and Aids VCT i
umber of IV and Aids VCT opportnifes na 2 0 0 0w | @ 1 1 0% | @ 0 0 0% | @ 1 0 % | @ |[HRrepors Wellness day programme
offered at JDA wellness days (per quarter)
Number of HIV and Aids VCT opportunii
umber o} i and Ads VT opporkuniies na 2 0 0 0% | @ 1 1 0% | @ 1 1 0% | @ 2 1 50% FR reports Welless day programme
offered at JDA wellness days €)
——
Number of IV and Ads ifomaton shots na 4 1 0 | 1000% | @ 1 0 | 1000% | @ 1 0 | 100% | @ 1 12 | 1200% | @ [HR repors Copies of e-mails
sent to JDA officials (per quarter)
Number of HIV and Aids inormaton shos
urber o1 and A inbrmaton sho na 4 1 0 | 100% | @ 2 2 | w00 | @ 3 0 | 100 | @ 4 02 | 1050% | @ [HRrepors Copies of e-mails
sent to JDA officials (cumulative)
Number of lor Faii Training worksh
umber of peer counsellor training sessions na 2 0 0 100% . 4 0 0% . 0 0 100% . 1 0 0% . HR reports | I'aklﬂlfﬁg workshop
(per quarter) invitations
Number of peer counsellor training sessions Training w orkshop
na 2 0 0 100% 1 0 0% 1 0 0% 2 0 0% HR reports
(cumulative) ’ . ’ . i . i . 2 invitations
7 complance wih Occupatonal ealh and |, 100% | to0% | Se% | 58% 100% | 5% | 56% 00% | 7% | T2 00% | 78% | 78% | @  |HRQuartery repors CEDEIR (e
Safety Act at the Bus Factory (cumulative) ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ ’ 5 Larerly repo bus factory
rerly HR reports and Audied financial
% payroll invested in taining (cumulative) 3% 3% 0% o | 0% | @ 1% ® | w0% | @ 2% z | 0% | @ 3% w | 0% | @ S_”a " o
Inancial s men S men

Key Performance Area

Key Performance Indicators

Baseline
(2010/11)

Q1 Q2
2011112 Actual / Actual /
Q1 Target Q1 Actual ctua Achievem Q2 Target Q2 Actual ctud Achievem Q3 Target Q3 Actual
Target target target

ent score ent score

Q3 Actual
| target

4 Actt
S Achievem
| target

Q3
Achievem Q4 Target Q4 Actual Evidence

ent score ent score

Validation Methodology

4. Financial management and
corporate governance

External Auditors & Audit
Unqualified audit repors 100% 100% 100% Audit report xtemal Audiors & Audl
Committee
% Overspending against operating budget 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% [ ) 0% 0% 100% [ ) 0% 0% 100% [ ) 0% 0% 100% @ | Opex expenditure Report Finance reports
\Written objections received to contract aw ard na <5% 5% 0 100% . <% 0% 100% . <% % 100% . <% % 100% . SCM quarterly performance Written objef:hons and
as a % of all contracts aw arded reports. contract register
EXCO d quarterl,
Fully GRAP-Compliant Asset Register 100% 100% 100% | 100% | 100% | @ | 100% | 100% | t00% | @ | 100% | t00% | 100% | @ | 100% | t00% | 100% | @ |compiantAssetRegister n aperoveciquarerly
repol
IT network availability - local area network na 70% 70% 90% 129% . 70% 100% 143% . 70% 100% 143% . 70% 100% 143% . IT Quarterly report Availability reports
IT network availability na 70% 70% 90% 129% [ ) 70% 99% 141% [ ) 70% 99% 141% [ ) 0% 98% 140% @ | Quarterly report Availability reports
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Key Performance Area

Key Performance Indicators

Baseline
(2010/11)

201112
Target

Q1 Target Q1 Actual

Actual /
rget

Q
Achievem Q2 Target Q2 Actual

ent score

Actual /
target

2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

Q2

Achievem Q3 Target Q3 Actual

ent score

Q3 Actual
| target

Q3
Achievem Q4 Target Q4 Actual
ent score

Q4 Actual
| target

Achievem
ent score

Evidence

Validation Methodology

% Construction progress against target

100%

100%

25%

25%

102%

35%

64%

184%

59%

2%

123%

® | 100%

87%

87%

Development quarterly reports

External confirmation of
source data by
jonal

Inner city portfolio

100%

100%

0%

4%

360%

20%

22%

110%

56%

47%

83%

® | 100%

89%

89%

Development quarterly reports

External confirmation of
source data by
professional

Marginalised areas portfolio

100%

100%

0%

0%

100%

30%

0%

0%

60%

26%

43%

104%

® | 100%

104%

Dev elopment quarterly reports

External confirmation of
source data by
professional

Transportation portfolio

100%

100%

32%

32%

100%

38%

75%

198%

60%

79%

132%

85%

® | 100%

85%

Dev elopment quarterly reports

External confirmation of
source data by
professional

Key Performance Area

Key Performance Indicators

Baseline
(2010/11)

2011112
Target

Q1 Target Q1 Actual

Actual /

Q1
Achievem Q2 Target Q2 Actu

ent score

Actual /
target

Q2
Achievem Q3 Target Q3 Actual

ent score

Q3 Actual
| target

Q3
Achievem Q4 Target Q4 Actual
ent score

Q4 Actual
| target

Achievem
ent score

Evidence

Validation Methodology

COJ FUNDED PROJECTS 0% 100% 0% 60% 20% 33% 111%
% progress achieved in project Detai
tailed design completed and construction
delivery against targets: ender awar dge J P 100% 100% 80% 0% 0% [ ] 100% 90% 90% [ ) 100% 100% 100% [ ) 100% 100% 100% @ |Development quarterly reports  |Signed contract
JDA010/1: Kliptown
— — " -
Development Publc env ronment upgrad in Kiptown 100%of 1 400y, 0% 25% 0% 0% 60% | 20% | 33% 100% | 100% | 100% Development quartery reports | o2 confmation by
(Phase 2.2) Phase 2.1 professional
Detailed desi leted and constructi
% progress achieved i proect | d'e es(‘jg';mmpee and constuetion 1450 100% 100% | 0% 0% ® | 0% | 9% 90% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% @ |Development quarterly reports  |Signed contract
naer aw arde
delivery against targets: JDA048:
Wes Y Public environment upgrading in Orlando 100% of External confirmation by
Orlando East Phase 3 X i 100% 0% 25% 0% 0% [ ] 60% 20% 33% [ ] 100% 122% 122% @  [Development quarterly reports R
East Station precinct (Phase 3) Phase 2 professional
Public envi t upgrading in Noordgesi External confirmation by
ublic environment upgrading in Noorcgesig -, 100% 30% 9% 30% ® | 100w | 1219 | 121% @ |Development quartery reports [ o conrmaton by
(Additional work) professional
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Qt Q2 Q3
Baseli 201112 A | A | A | 4 A |
Key Performance Area Key Performance Indicators asefine 011l Q1 Target Q1 Actual ctual | Achievem Q2 Target Q2 Actual ctual | Achievem Q3 Target Q3 Actual (BT Achievem Q4 Target Q4 Actual T Achievem Evidence Validation Methodology
(2010/11) Target target target I target | target
ent score ent score ent score ent score
INNER CTY FUND PROJECTS 376% 20% 22% 110% 56% 47% 83% 89% 89%
% progress achieved in project |Detailed d leted and truct
dnel?ve?y againsnargets-F.)JDJAOSS m'erea Z:f;wmpe and constiueton | 4o, 100% 80% | 30% | 38% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% @ |Development quarterly reports  [Signed contract
3 W
ICF4: Art Gallery (Rea Vaya) i i ing i
: : y ( ya)  [Public envu.onment upgrading in ﬂ?e 100% of Extemal confirmation by
Station Precinct Upgrade Commuter links (Art Gallery) precinct (Phase phase 1 100% 0% 12% 1200% [ ) 25% 29% 114% [ ] 60% 30% 50% 100% 82% 82% @ | Development quarterly reports professional
2
% progress achieved in project
delivery against targets: JDA051 100% of
o .g e Parking solution for tenants of Chancellor OOA © External confirmation by
ICF4: Chinatown - Chancellor House building 100% 0% 0% 0% [ ] 0% 0% 0% [ ] 0% 0% 0% [ ] 100% 0% 0% @  [Development quarterly reports professional
House refurbi
% progress achieved in project
delivery against targets: JDA052: | Feasibility stud leted and i
! casibllly study completed and preparaton | -, 100% 0% 0% | 100% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 100% | 0% 0% Development quarterly reporls | Tender adv erfisement
Kazerr:e sglle redSelopment of property
% progress achieved in project p— od and
delivery against targets: JDA058 m':'erea ::i’;“mpe‘e and construction na 100% 100% | 98% 98% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% @ |Development quarterly reports | Signed contract
W
ICF5: Westgate Station
q External confirmation b
Precinct upgrade Public environment upgrading (Phase 1) na 100% 0% 0% 100% ® | 3% | 3% | 136% ® | so% 81% | 135% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% @  |Development quarterly reports Xfema_ °°|" rmaton by
professiona
% progress achieved in project [Detailed desi leted and truct
d"elfve?y againsnarges":IDJA o d'e es(‘jg"dmmpe and constucton na 100% 80% | 10% | 13% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 0% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% @ |Development quarterly reports  [Signed contract
N *|tender aw arde
Transnet land / Metro Park i faciliti i i
T:;';:i':":;::j :))“b"c environment na 100% 0% 0% | 100% ® | % 0% 0% ® | 5% | 2% | 4% ® | 00w | ww | os% @ |Development quarterly reports s;::‘::;:rﬁ'mm" by
Uj I [

Q Q2 Q3
Baseli 2011/12 A | A | A | 4 A |
Key Performance Area Key Performance Indicators asefine 011l Q1 Target Q1 Actual ctual | Achievem Q2 Target Q1 Actual ctual | Achievem Q3 Target Q3 Actual (HAETE] Achievem Q4 Target Q4 Actual e Achievem Evidence Validation Methodology
(2010/11) Target target target | target | target
ent score ent score ent score ent score
NDPG FUNDED PROJECTS 100%. 0% 60% 32% 53% 100%. 97%
. . . Detailed desi leted and truct
% progress achieved in project ed cesign compleled and consTLCOn |4, 100% 80% | 80% | 100% ® | 0% | ow% | % ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% @  |Development quartery reports  [Signed contract
delivery against targets: JDA037: tender aw arded
conel. . . 100% of

Diep " Complefon of pubic space upgracing n EMoz 100% 0% 0% 0% [ 25% 0% 0% [ 60% 29% 48% ) 100% 95% 95% @ |Quarterly Reports Exiemal rpart andfor

district node in Diepsloot (phase 3) sza;;ed ’ ’ ’ ’ : : : : . . ’ ’ ’ uarierly Repo external sign-off
% progress achieved in project
delivery against targets:
JDAO036/2: Stretford Station /  [Detailed desi leted and truct

retiord Stafion e design compleled and consiucton | 4500, 100% 80% 0% 0% ® | 0% | % 95% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% @  |Development quarterly reports  [Signed contract
Greater Orange Farm Renewal |tender awarded
. . 100% of
Complefon of pubic space upgracing n hase 2 100% 0% 0% 0% [ ] 25% 0% 0% [ ] 60% 35% 58% 100% 100% 100% @ [Quarterly Reports Extemal report andfor
Stretford Station Precinct (phase 3) szasl;d ’ ’ ’ ’ : : : . . . ’ ’ ’ uarierly Repo external sign-off
P!
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a1 @ Q3 4
Baseli 2011112 Actual Actual Actual 4 Actual
Key Performance Area Key Performance Indicators ;;:;1": : ! . Q1 Target Q1 Actual tctua‘/ Achievem Q2 Target Q2 Actual tctuatl Achievem Q3 Target Q3 Actual QIS( ctu: Achievem Q4 Target Q4 Actual Q“ c!u: Achievem Evidence Validation Methodology
( ) arge argel ent score argel ent score arge ent score arge ent score
TRANSPORTATION FUNDED PROJECTS 100% 198% 137% 85%
Section 2 (4.25 kms construction) External report and/or
100% 100% 0% | s1% | 170% ® | s% | % | 149% ® | oo% | esw | 142% ® | 00w | ow% | 9% ® |auerterly Reporis ‘
external sign-off
Section 4 (0.26 kms construction)
80% of 10/11
busway 100% | 100% | 98% | 9% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 10o% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® |Quarterly Reporis ::ZE:: ;?::i:”dw
complete
Rissik and Harrison(0.50 kms construction) 100% of
External report and/or
work in 100% 80% | 8% | 109% ® | 9% | 9% | 10% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® |ouarterly Reporis xtomal signa
201011
Bus depot (Dobsonville civiils phase 2) 100% of civil
K Extemal report and/
worRS On - yoger | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® |auarterly Reports xlemat report ancior
bus depot external sign-off
0 n 8 lete
% progress achieved in project - comp
delivery against argets: JDA04s; P2 Mbata (212 kms consinicn) 100% 100% 0% | 100% | 143% ® | % | t00% | 1% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® |Quarterly Reporis Extomal report and/or
Bus Rapid Transit external sign-of "
Road Und truct Extemal report and
oad Underpass (constructon) 100% 100% 0% | 72% | 102% ® | oo% | % | o ® | 100% | 95% 95% ® | 100% | 98% 98% ® |ouarterly Reports lema report andior
external sign-off
B R destrian brid Extemal report and/
a0y sens Reserve pedesran bricge 100% 100% | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® |auarterly Reports xtemal report anclor
external sign-off
Pennyville pedestian brid Extemal report
enny ville pedestian bridge 100% 100% 80% | 80% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | r00% | 100% | 100% ® |Quarterly Reports xfemal report and/or
external sign-off
Bus depot (Dobsonvlle construction ph Extemal report and/
us depot (Dobsonville constructon phase | 100% 0% 0% | 100% ® | % | sow | 333% ® | so% | % | 70% ® | 0% | 8% | so0% ® |auarterly Reports Kiema feport andior
2) external sign-off
n " Extemal
bus siatons w00 | t00% | 0% | 0% | t00% | @ | 2% | 3% | s | @ | eo% | 0% | 1% | @ | t00% | 100% | 100% | @ |auarery Repors e::;‘; ;::2:”‘”‘"
New work (Lane colourisali Extemal report and/
ow work (Lane coloursaton) na 100% 0% 15% | 150% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% @ |Quarterly Reports X‘emal repo ;” o
external sign-o
New work (St s phase 1 Extemal report and/
ew work (Staton precincts phase 1) na 100% 50% | 0% | 180% ® | 100% | 100% | 100% ® | 3% 19% | 6% Quarterly Reports exte:::l Sregp:ﬂ:n or
X /[
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1. WORKFORCE PROFILE
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1.1 Please report the total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following

occupational levels: Note: A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites

Occupational Levels Male Female Foreign Nationals Total
A c | A c | w Male Female
Top management 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Senior management 0 1 0 1 3 1 1 1 0 0 8
Prof§s§|onally qugllﬂed and experienced 4 y 1 2 3 3 0 1 0 1 16
specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior management, 2 1 1 0 9 1 1 0 0 0 16
Jsupervisors, foremen, & superintendents
|Sern_|-sk|||ed and discretionary decision y 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 4
making
JUnskilled and defined decision making 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 6
TOTAL PERMANENT 9 3 2 3 22 5 3 2 0 1 50
Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
IGRAND TOTAL 9 3 2 3 22 5 3 2 0 1 50

1.2 Please report the total number of employees with disabilities only in each of the following occupational levels: Note:

A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites

Male

Female

Foreign Nationals

Occupational Levels Total
A c | W A c | w Male Female
Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Professionally qualified and experienced 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified
workers, junior management, supervisors, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
foremen, and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision
Imaking 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Unskilled and defined decision making 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL PERMANENT 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
2. Recruitment
Please report the total number of new recruits, including people with disabilities. Note: A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians
and W=Whites
Occupational Levels Male Female Foreign Nationals Total
A c | W A c | w Male Female
Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Professionally qualified and experienced
specialists and mid-management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Skilled technical and academically qualified
workers, junior management, supervisors, 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Jforemen, and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
making
JUnskilled and defined decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL PERMANENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL 0 1 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3
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3. Promotion
Please report the total number of promotions into each occupational level, including people with disabilities. Note:
A=Africans, C=Coloureds, |=Indians and W=Whites

Occupational Levels Male Female Foreign Nationals Total
A c I W A c | w Male Female
Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1
Profgsglonally qugllﬂed and experienced 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified
workers, junior management, supervisors, 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Jforemen, and superintendents
|Sem|-sk|lled and discretionary decision 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
making
JUnskilled and defined decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL PERMANENT 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
IGRAND TOTAL 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 2
4. Termination

Please report the total number of terminations in each occupational level, including people with disabilities. Note:
A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites

Occupational Levels Male Female Foreign Nationals Total
A c I W A c I w Male Female
Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior management 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 3
IProfgss_ionaIIy quglified and experienced 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
specialists and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically
ualified workers, junior management,
gupervisors, foren{en, and ’ 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Isuperintendents
|Semi-ski||ed and discretionary decision 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
making
JUnskilled and defined decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
TOTAL PERMANENT 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 4
Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 4

Please report the total number of terminations, including people with disabilities, in each termination category below. Note:
A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites

Terminations Male Female Foreign Nationals Total
A c | W A c | w Male Female

Resignation 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 4
Non-renewal of contract 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
retre_nchment - Operational 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
requirements
Dismissal - misconduct 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Dismissal - incapacity 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Retirement 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Death 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 2 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 0 4
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5. Skills Development

Please report the total number of people from the designated groups, including people with disabilities, who received training
solely for the purpose of achieving the numerical goals, and not the number of training courses attended by individuals.
Note: A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites

Occupational Levels Male Female Total
A c | W A c | w

Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Profes_smnally qualified and experienced specialists 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
and mid-management

Skilled technical and academically qualified

workers, junior management, supervisors, foremen, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
and superintendents

Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
JUnskilled and defined decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PERMANENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Please report the total number of people with disabilities only who received training solely for the purpose of achieving
the numerical goals, and not the number of training courses attended by individuals. Note: A=Africans, C=Coloureds,
I=Indians and W=Whites

Occupational Levels Male Female Total
A c I W A c | w

Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
ProfesIS|onaIIy qualified and experienced specialists 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
and mid-management
Skilled technical and academically qualified workers,

Jiunior management, supervisors, foremen, and 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Unskilled and defined decision making 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL PERMANENT 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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6. Numerical goals
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Please indicate the numerical goals (i.e. the workforce profile) you project to achieve for the total number of employees,
including people with disabilities, at the end of your current employment equity plan in terms of occupational levels. Note:

A=Africans, C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites:

Male

Female

Occupational Levels Foreign Nationals Total
A c | W A I w Male Female
Top management 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Senior management 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4
Professionally qualified and experienced
specialists and mid-management 5 1 1 3 5 2 0 2 0 0 19
Skilled technical and academically qualified
workers, junior management, supervisors,
Jforemen, and superintendents 4 1 1 0 10 2 0 0 0 20
|Semi-skilled and discretionary decision
making 1 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 4
JUnskilled and defined decision making 2 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 7
TOTAL PERMANENT 13 3 3 3 24 4 3 2 0 0 55
Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL 13 3 3 3 24 4 3 2 0 0 55

ity plan in terms of occupational levels.

Please indicate the numerical goals (i.e. the workforce profile) you project to achieve for the total number of employees with
disabilities only at the end of your current employment equ

Male

Female

Occupational Levels Foreign Nationals Total
A c I W A c | w Male Female
Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Professionally qualified and experienced
Ispecialists and mid-management 0 0 0 0 ! 0 0 0 0 0 !
Skilled technical and academically qualified
workers, junior management, supervisors, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Jforemen, and superintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision
making 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
JUnskilled and defined decision making 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL PERMANENT 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3
Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3

7. Numerical targets

Please indicate the numerical targets (i.e. the workforce profile) you project to achieve for the total number of employees,

including people with disabilities, at the end of the next reporting in terms of occupational levels. Note: A=Africans,
C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites

Occupational Levels Male Female Foreign Nationals Total
A C | W A C | W Male Female
Top management 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1
Senior management 1 1 1 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 4
Professionally qualified and experienced
specialists and mid-management 5 1 1 3 5 2 0 2 0 0 19
Skilled technical and academically qualified
workers, junior management, supervisors,
Jforemen, and superintendents 4 1 1 0 10 2 2 0 0 0 20
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision
making 1 0 0 0 2 0 1 0 0 0 4
JUnskilled and defined decision making 2 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 7
TOTAL PERMANENT 13 3 3 3 4 4 3 9 0 0 55
Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL 13 3 3 3 24 3 2 2 0 0 55
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Please indicate the numerical targets (i.e. the workforce profile) you project to achieve for the total number of employees

with disabilities only at the end of the next reporting period in terms of occupational levels. Note: A=Africans,
C=Coloureds, I=Indians and W=Whites

Occupational Levels Male Female Foreign Nationals Total
A c I W A c | w Male Female
Top management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Senior management 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Professionally qualified and experienced
specialists and mid-management 0 0 0 0 ! 0 0 0 0 0 !
Skilled technical and academically
qualified workers, junior management, 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
supervisors, foremen, and
Isuperintendents
Semi-skilled and discretionary decision
|making 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Junskilled and defined decision making 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
TOTAL PERMANENT 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3
Temporary employees 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
GRAND TOTAL 2 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 3
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Annual Financial Statemants for tha year endad 30 June 2012

General Information

COUNTRY OF INCORPORATION AND DOMICGILE South Africa

HATURE OF BUSINESS AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES  Regeneraling the Gity of Johanneshurg thraugh facilitaling andfor
Investing in devalopiment projacts.

MAYORAL COMMITTEE
Exacutiva Mayor P Tauw (Chairparson)
Coundlbars [ Bovu {Houwsing)
R, Greeff (Development Planning and Urban Managament)
5 Leman (Public Safely]
G Makhuba (Finance)
R Mathang (Economiz Development)
) Milkes (Enviranment and Infrastrocture Services)
M Mobaela (Heaith)
i Mckoana (Corparate and Shared Services)
[ Moceajee (Transport)
C viondo (Community Development)

DIRECTORS
G Simelana (Chalnperson)
T Mendraw {Acking Chlef Exsculive
Officer)
P Kubu
W Lila
B Majola
F idashiana
P Miasio
[ Maidu
A Rajah
W Thwala

REGISTERED OFFICE The Baes Fachary
3 Prasident Straet
Mewdenn
Johannesbung
2000

BUSINESS ADDRESS The Bus Faclory
3 Prasidenl Sireet
PaLaram
Johannesturg
2000
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General Infarmation

FOSTAL ADDRESS

CONTROLLING ENTITY

AUDITORS

SECRETARY
COMPANY REGISTRATION NUMBER

P O Box 81877
e rshalilawn
Johanneburg
200

The City of Johannesturg Metropolitan Muricipality
incorporabed in South Africa

Auditar-Genaral of South Aliica
Registerad Auditora

A Galdsmith
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Index

The reports and statements £at ol below camprise the annual inancial statements presenied 1o the sharaholder:

Inclax Fage
Direclors' Responsibilias and Approval . 4
Audit Commiittes Repor G-G
Report of the Auditar General 7-3
Directors' Report 11-15
Company Sacretary's Carification 16
Statarnent of Financial Position 17
Stalement of Financial Parformance 18
Stalemant of Changes in Mat Assels 18
Cash Flow Statemant 20
Accounting Policies 1 -37
Mates 1o the Anaual Financlal Statemsnts 3662

Abbreviations
G
Coln
CRR
SAGAAP
GRAP
IAS
IPEAS
ME'a
MK
MFEMA

BAC

Cily of Johannesburg Matropolitan Municipality

Compensation for Oooupatonal Injuries and Diseases

Capital Replacarment Reserve

Sauth Affican Stalemenls of Gensrally Accepled Accouniing Practice
Ganerally Recognised Accounting Practics

Intarnational Accounting Standards

Imtemational Public Secior Accounling Standards

Municipal Entliizs

Member of the Mayoral Gommillese

Municipal Finance Management Act

Bid Ajudication Commilies
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Directors' Responsibilities and Approval

The diractors are required by the Mumicipal Finance Managemend Acl (Aol 56 of 2003), te maintain adaguate accaunting
records and are responsible for fiw content and inlegrity of the annual financial statemente and related financial information
Ineluded in thiz rapart, Jt s the responsibility of e directors fo ensure that the annesl financial statements firky pressnt tha
stata of affairs of he entity 35 al (e end of the financial year and tha reaulis of ite operations and cash flows for the perod then
ended. The axtermal audilars are angaged ta express an independent opinion an the annual financial statements and was givan
unresiricied access lo &l financial records and ralated data.

The annual Tnancial stataments have been prepared in accordance wilh Soulh African Statements of Generally Retogrisad
Accounting Fraclice (GRAP) including any Inlerpretations, guidelines and diractives pssued by the Accounting Standards
Baard,

The annusl Fnancal staterments are based upsn appropriste sccounting policies consistantly applled and supparled by
regzonable and prodent judgements and estimatas.

The diractsrs acknewledge that they are ulimataly respensible for the aystam of intemal financial controls establishad by the
enlily and place considerable Importancs on malilaining & strang contral environmant. To enable the directors to meet thesa
responsibiliies, the dreciors set standards for Internal conlrols almed at reducing lhe risk of arror or deficil in a coat affeclive
manner, Tha standards include the proper delegaticn of responsibilities within a deerly dafined framework, effecive accaunting
procedures snd adequate segregation of dulies to ersure an acceptable leval of fsk, These controls ars muonitored througheout
the entity and all employess are required fo maintals the highast ethical standards in ensuring the entity's busineas is
comducted in @ rrannar at in all reasonable circumstances 12 gbove reproach. The focus of sk management in the enly le
ot identifying, assessing, managing and manitoring all known forms of risk across the enfity, While operating risk connal b
fully eliminated, the entity endeavours 1o minimise it by ensufing that appropriate infrasirecture, conlrols, systems and affical
hehaulour are appliad and managed within predetermined proceduras and canslrainis.

The directors are of e aplnion, basad an the information and explanalions glven by managetnant, that the systam of Internal
controls provide ressonsble sssurance that the financial recends may be ralied an lor the preparation of the annual financial
stalemente. Howevar, any system of inlemal financlal confrol can provide only reasonable, and not sbsolufe, sssurance
against material misstatement or dafleil,

Tha diracless have reviewad the onliy'e budget for the year 1o 30 June 2013 and, In the light of this review and the eurrent
financial pasition, they are satisfied thal the enlly has access to adequale rescurces to conlinue In operational existenca for
the foresesatide future,

The amlity |s substantially dependent on the Gity OF Johanneshurg tetropolitan Bunicipslity for conlinued funding of
operations. The annual financial stalements are preparad on the basis that the enfity & & going concern and (sl the: City OF
Johanneshurg Metropofitan Munlclpality hae neilher the intsnfion nor tiv need to lipedate or curtail materially tha scalo of Ine
entity.

Although the disecters are primarity respensible for the financial affairs of the entity, they are supported by the anlity's extannal
audilons,

The external auditors are responsible for independantly reviewing and reporting on the enlily's annual financial staterments. The
annual nanclal statemants have been examinad by the entity's &demal auditars and thelr reporl is prasented on page 7o 14,

The annual finsncial stalement set aus on pages 11 1o 82, which have besn preparsd on the going concern basis, were
appraved by the diractors on 30 Mevernber 2012 and weare signed on Its bahalf by:

TRajdiw
{Actitlg Chief Exeautive Officer)
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Audit Committee Report

IMTRODUCTION

W are pleased to present aur repart for (he financial year ended 30 June 2012,

Audit commities members and attendance

The audit commites consists of the membars |sked hereunder and should meel al leest 4 fimes per annum as per its approved
terms of reference, During the curent year 5 scheduled and 2 special meelings were held,

Mame of membar Humber of meetings attendad

W M Lila (Chalrpersan) 7

fie J Boggenpos! (ndependent Membar-Resigned 3.July 0

2011)

Mr ¥ Govender {Indapendant Mamber-Appoinited 24 Apri

2012)
fudr # Magile (Mon-Exaculive Directos) T
¥ Maoyn (Indepandant Member-Ratired 24 April 2012) [
tie M Selsmalala (Independant Wember-Appointed 24 Aol 0
2012y
te J Vergotine (indepondant Member-Appointad 24 Apl 1
2012)

Audit committes reaponsibility

We report it we have sdepted approprats formal terms of referenca in our charber in line with the requiremants of asctian
16B(2)(=) of tha MFRA have conductad our alfalrs in compliance with this charter and have discharged our responsibilites
accordingly. The terms of refarence are set out in te Audil Commiltes Chartar, wilch have been approved by the Board snd
continuoushy reviewsd and updated for changes in legislation and comorale governance praciices.

The effectivensss of internal cantrol

Tha aystem of internal controls apalied by the entity over financial and risk management is effective, sfficient and
transgarent, In ling with the MFMA and the King Il Repart on Corporate Govemance requiraments, Intermal Audit provides
the audit commitien and managemand wilh reasoneble assurance thal the Intemaid contrale are appropriate end effeclive,
Thig Is achieved by means of the risk based audit process, aswell as the idenlification of comective actions and suggested
anhancamants o the controls and processes, From the various regons of the Intemal fudiors, the Audit Rapord on the
anmual inancial statements, and tha mansgament repor of the Auditor-Goneral South Africa, it was nefod that no matters
wera raparted that indicate any materal deficienclea in tha system of Internal candral ar any devialions therefrom,
Accordingly, we can report that the system of intemal control over financial reporting for the pericd under review wes
adaquate and affective.

Wa are satisfieg with tha qusiily of management quarierly repors submitted in Lemms of the BAFRLA,

W are safisfied with the contert and quality of guarterhy reports prepared and issued by the internal auditors of the entity
during the year under review,

Evaluation of annual financial statements

Tha audit commitlee has:
o roviewad and discussed the audied annual finandial slaterments 1o be included In the anaual regor, with the Auditor-
tzeneral and the board direchons;
renviewrad e Auditor-Caneral of South Aflcs's managemenl report &nd management's responss thersdo;
reviewed changas In accounding policies and praclices and;
raviewed the entites compliance wilh legal and regulatory provisions.
revlewsd significant adjustmants resuliing from the audit,
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Audit Committee Report

Intzrnal audit

W ara satisfed thal the intemal audit funetien |8 operating effactively and that it has addressed the risks perinent 1o the enfity
and fs audls,

e have:

- Approved the cne year operalional and fhres year sirafeglc intemal sudit plan and maonitored Inbermal Audil's adharence (o lis
annual programme.

- Received and revlewed reports from intesnal auditors concerning effectiveness and adequacy of the company's nfernal
coniral enwironment, syslems and processss.

- Rewewead (he adequacy and appropristensss of management's cormactive acllan plan 88 8 consequUence of the swdil indings.

- Reviewad the fllow-up audit report for the detennination and satisfaction perlaining to the cormeclive actions implementad by

management as a mnmqu;cz al g audit fndings.

N Lila v
[Chalrparss e Audit Commithes)

Data: 30 f; it ]r./ ZofE
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REFORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE GAUTENG PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE AND
THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF JOHANNESBURG METROPOLITAN MUNICIPALITY ON
JOHANNESBURG DEVELOPMENT AGENCY S0OC LTD

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Intraduction

1,

| have audited the financlal statements of the Johannesburg Development Agency SOC Litd sat
out on pages ... ta ..., which comprise the statemant of financial position as at 30 June 2012, the
statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and the cash flevr
statement for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatery Infermation

Accounting officer's responsibility for the financial statements

2.

Tha accounting officer Is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
gtatermants in accordznce with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting
Practice {SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Municipal Finance Maragament
Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act Mo, 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and the Companies Act of South Afiica, 2008
{Act Na. 71 of 2008), and for such intemal control as the accounting officer determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether dus to fraud ar error., )

Auditor-General's rasponsibility

3,

My reszonzibility Is to express an opinion on thesa financial statemeants based on my audit. |
conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act Ne. 23 of
2004} (PAA), the Goneral Notice iszued in terms thereof and Internaticnal Standerds on
Auditing. Those standards require that | comply with ethical requirements and plan and parfarm
the audit fa obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements ara free fram
materlal misstatement,

& audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financlal statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether dua to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal conirel relevant o the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures thet are appropriate in the cireumstances, but not
for the purpose of exprassing an apinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal conirol. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropristensss of accounting policies used and the
reasorableness of accounling estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial siatements.

| balieve that the audit evidenca | have obtzined Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
far my audit opinion,

2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
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Qpinlon

. Inmy opinien, the financial stetements present fairly, in all matarial respects, the financial
position of tha Johannesburg Development Agency SOC Limited as at 30 June 2012, and its
financlal performance and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with Stardards of
Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAF) and the requiraments of the MEFMA.

Emphasis of matter
7. | draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modifiad in respect of these matters,
Restatement of corresponding figures

8. As disclosed in note xx to the financial statements, the corrasponding figures for June 2011 have
been restated as a result of an errar discovered during 2012 in the financlal statements of the
Johannesburg Development Agency SOC Lid for the year ended 30 June 2091

Additional matters
9. | draw aliention to the matters below, My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Unaudited supplementary schedule

The supplementary information set out on pages .. fo ... does nal farm part of the financial
statements and is presented as additional information. | have not audited this schedule and,
accordingly, | do net express an opinien thereon.

Other reports required by the Companies Act

10. As part of our audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2012, | have read the
Directors’' Report, the Audit Cemmittes's Report and the Company Secretary's Certificate for the
purpose of dentifying whether there are material Inconsistencies between thesa raports and the
auditad financial statements. These reports are the responsibility of the respective preparers.
Based on reading these reports, | have not identified material inconsistencies between the
reparts and the audited financial statements. | have not audited the reperts and accordingly do
not express an opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

FAA REQUIREMENTS

11, I accardance with the PAS and the General Nolice issued in terms thereof, | report the fallowing
findings relevant to parformance agalnst predatermined objectives, compliance with laws and
regulations and Internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion.

Predetermined objectives

12, | performed proceduras to obtain evidence about the us=fulness and raliability of the information
in the annual perfarmance report as set out on pages .. to ... of the annual report.
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13. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall
criteria of usefulnesas and refiability. The usefulnass of information in the annual parformance
report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the National Treasury annual
reporting principles and whether the reperted performance is consistent with the planned
objectives, The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and targets are
measurable (i.e. well defined, veriflable, specific, measurabls and time bound) and relevant as
required by the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information
(FMMPI),

The rellabllity of the information in respect of the selected objectives is assessed to determine
whether It adeguately reflects the facts (i.e, whather it is valid, sccurate and complate).

14. There ware ne material findings on the annual performance report concerning the usefulness
and reliability of the infarmation.

Compliance with laws and regulations

15. | performed procedures to abtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable laws and
regulations regarding financial matters, financial management and other related mattars. My
findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations,
as set out in the General Notice issusd in terms of the PAA, are as follows:

Annual financial statemeants

18. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not preparad in all material respacts in
accordance with the requirements of section 122{1) of the MFM&. Material misstalements
relating to cash flow statement, project funds payable and assets identified by the auditors wers
subsaquently corrected, resulting in the financial statements receiving an ungualified aucht
apinian,

Expenditure managament

17. Maoney owing by the municipal entity was not always paid within 30 days of receiving an invaice
of slatemeant, as reguired by section $9(2)(b) of the MFEMA.

16, The accounting officer did not take ressonabla steps to prevent irregular expenditure, as
raguired by section 62(1){d) of the MFMA.

Internal control

19, 1 considerad internal contrad relavant to my audit of the financial statements, performance report
and compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the fundameantals
of internal confral are limited to the significant deflelencies that resulted in the findings on the
annual performancs repori and the findings on compliance with laws and regulations includad in
this report,

Leadership

20. The accounting officer did not adequatsly exerclse oversight respensibility regarding financial
reparting and compliance with applicable laws and ragulations.
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Financial and performance management

21. Management did not prepare accurats and complete financial reports as material misstataments
were identified during the audit and corrected by management.

22, Management did not adequaiely manitor compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Aoy otibor Gemerad
Johannesburg

30 November 2012

“‘
Sl

AL DI TR - S EME R AL
S UTH AFRICA

Aucliling ta bwld public confidence
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Johanneshurg Development Agency (SOC) Ltd
[Registration number 2001005901107
Annual Financizl Stalemants for e year ended 30 June 2012

Directors' Report

The direciors submit thelr repad for the year ended 30 June 2012

INCORPORATION

The entity was Incorporated on 07 March 2001 and oblained its cerificate to commence busineaa on the same day.
REVIEW QF ACTIVITIES

Main business and aparations

The company ls a Municipal Enflly, The principal acllvily of the company s the regensrafion of the Cily of
Joharnashurg hrough Taciilating andlor ewesting in development projects that are geared lowards sparking opfimism
and renewing confidence in thae viatillly of all sectars of the city, thereby allracting commercial, retad, rranufaciuring,
residontial and crealive industies 1o fhe clty, wih & view fo strengthening its position as the econamic hub ef South
Alrica and posiiicning the city a5 & premler national and international destinatlon for investmants.

Jokanneshurg Development Agency (S0C) Lid manages its reseurces judiciousty, adharing lo the prescripts of its
Supply Chain Managemenl poficies. To hal end, the Johannesburg Devalopment Agency (SOC) Ltd follows hest
praclice, balencing the need to suppon suppliers and ensure their continued survival and sustainabdity whila
simultanesusly ensuring dmeous delivary and execution to the Johannasburg Development Agency (SO0) Lbd,
ansuring valua for money s received,

During the year under review parenl municipality initisted an nstititional Review procass which was aimed at
improving the City's gevemnance modal. This also entalled the rationalization of the number of municipal entities
cwnid By the City together with & re-definitian of tha mandates and roles of e municipal entities. In regard 1o tha
Johannesbury Development Agency (S0C) Lid, the Parent Municipaity resalved to extend the mandate to includa he
respansibility of facilitation and implementaion of all City's capital projects expect for spacialist projects such as thosa
of Cily Power Johannesburg (S0C) Lid, Johannesburg Water (S0C) Lid, Fikilup Johanneshurg (50C) Lid,
Jehanneshurg Cly Parks and Zoo (SOC) Lid and the Johannesburg Roads Agency (SOC) Lid. Ta facilitate the
implamentalion of the resolution of the parent municipsality, the entity would have to underake a service dalvery
review process as contemplated by Seclion 78 of the Municipal Systerns Acl and develop a feasikiily study for
adopiion by the Board of Direclors and Council of the Parent Municipality.

The operaing results and stale of affairs of the enlity are fully gat out in the attached annmeal financa! stataments and
do not i owr opinion raquine any furter comment.

et surplus of the ontily was R 3§83 482 (2041 surplis R 8 079 408).

O 11 July 2091 the JOA baliluled a new anli-fraud and corruption strategy by inlroducing 8 new “lip-off* Holfne for
reparing of any inchdents of fraud, semuplien or mal-administeation. For the period under review tha JOW Holline recelvad
4 separate anonymous lp-offs, All of thess allsgations have bezen tharoughly invesligaled by the JOA attorneys and
Internal Auditars, Mo fnencal loss was sulfered by the arganisation howeves, investgations are =il on-going Lo delermina
whethar fthare walld be 2 need 1o ingtitvte disciplinary processes in Instances whars indicalions of empliyes nogligenes
have been found. Managament will be Implemanting the recommeandalions corlained in the finding reports of the lawnyers
and Internal Auditors,

GOING CONCERN

The company i3 subatsnfially éependant on the Cily of Johannesburg Melropolten Municipality for funds for fa
operations.

The annual financlal stalements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concerm.
This basle presumes that funds will be avellable to finance fulire operatiens and thet the realisation of wesete and
selilement of liabilifes, contingent obligations and commitments will aceur in the erdnary course of business.

POST STATEMENT OF FINANCLAL POSITION EVENTS

There wire o known post statement of financlal peslfion avents reguiring disclosure al the fime of preparing the annual
financial stalemants. :

i1
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Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC) Ltd

{Regisiration ramber 2004 005101 07)
Annual Finencial Statemants for the year endad 30 June 2012

Directors' Report

8  ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The annual finansal statements re prepared In accordance wilh the prescribed Standards of Generally Recognised
Accouniing Prachices (GRAP) lssued by the Acsounting Stendards Board as the prescribed Eramework by Naticnal
Treasury.

5. EXPLANATORY MOTE ON THE NEW COMPAMNIES ACT
The Companias Act, 2008 (hot 71 of 2008) became effsctive on 1 hay 2011 as per proclamalion F. 32 published in
Governmant Gezeite 32238 an 28 Aprl 2011, The Comoanies Act, 2008 repealed he whola of the Companies Act,
1873 (hel 81 af 1873), except for Chapler 14 in as far as Il deals with the liquidation ard winding-up of insobsaent
compenies.
In terms of ltem 4013 of Schodule & (Transifional Arangements) fo the Companies Act, 2008, the comparry i
decmed to have smanded Its Memarandum of Incorporafion as of the general effaclive dale o have changed ils name

in g0 far as requined fo comply with seckion 11(3), Therefora, as from 1 May 2011, the name of lhe company is
Johanneshurg Development Agency (3007 Lid.

Al referencas 1o the Companies Act in these annual fnancizl statements are to tie Companles Act, 2008, unless
otherwize indiated,

7. CONTRIBUTION FROM SHAREHOLDER
There were 1o changes In the avihorised or Bsued share capilal of the enlily during the year under rewew.
B, DIVIDENDS
e dividends were declared or pald 10 the sharsholdar durng the year under review.
9. DIRECTORS PERSOMAL FINAMNCIAL INTEREST
The directors of the company did not have persenal linanclal intersat in contracls entered into by tha company.
10. DIRECTORS

The directars of the enlity during the year and 10 he date of this report are s folows;

Mama Hatlonglily Changes

L Wutula {Chairperson} Soulh African Resigned 24 Apd 2012

G Simelana (Chaitpereany South African Appoanted 24 April 2012

T bdendraw (Acting Chisf Execulive Officer)  Soulh African

P Kulba Sourtih African Appointed 24 April 2012

M Lila South Alrican

D Lewis South African Resigned 05 Febmany 2012

B Malola Souls African Appointed 24 April 2042

F Mastians South African Appoinied 24 Apeil 2012

P iasio Soulh African

L Matlhape South African Resigned 24 April 2012

I3 Maldu South Alrican

AR Rosiston South African Raslgned 1 Oclober 2011

A Rajah Soulh Alrican Appointed 24 April 2002

W Theaala Sauth African Appolnied 24 April 2012
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Directors' Report

1.

12.

SECRETARY
The secretary of the entity is A Goldsmith of:

Business address
The Bus Faciary
3 Presldent Sirasd
Mawtown
Jonannesburg
2000

Paostal address
PO Box 1677
Barshailiman
Johanneshurg
2001

CORPORATE GOVERMANCE
Ganeral

The dirsctors ane commilied lo business inlegrly, franzparency and profassionalism in all its acliviiies. As parl of this
cormitment, the direciore supports (he highest standards of corparale govemance and the ongolng developmant of boest
praciica.

The enfity confirms and acknowledgas its respanaibilty ta tolal complance with the Code of Corporate Practices and
Conduct (“he Cade®) lald out in the King 11l Repart on Corporate Governanca for South Alriea 2009, The directors dECLEs
{ha respansibiliies of managemant at Board meetings and mendlor the entity's compliance with the code on a guarterdy
basis.

Tive saliant faatures of the entity's adoption of the Code i2 outlined Below,
Eoard of directors

The Board:

»  relains full conlral ever the antily, Itz plans and sirategy,

«  acknowledpes ita responaibilifies as to slralegy, complancs w th imternal palicies, lews and regulations, effaclive risk
managemant and performance measuremant, iransparency and efectve communication both infemally and
axtarnally by the anlity;

+ Iz of @ unitary struciure comprising:

a nan-execufive directors (2011: 7 hon-esecutive directars), all of wham are indepandant direciors a5 defned in
Ihe Gode; and
1 execufive direchon.

v has estehished & Board directorship fraining programme through the annusl induction pragramme and attendance

of applicatle courses for diractors with the Instute of Directors.

Chairperson and chief executive
The Chalrperson is a non-exscutive and independent directar (as dafined by the King Code).

The rlas of Chaitperson and Chief Execulive are soparate, with responaibilitios dvided between therm, so that ne
individua] has unfatbered powers of discretion,

Board maatings

The board has mat on B seperate accasiong during the financial year, The directors ara scheduled to mest at least 4
timea per annur. The follawing board commilless wers affzcsive during the year undsr review:

- Audit Gommitles

= Human Resource and Remuneratlion Commiites

- Davelopment and Risk Commiltae

- Sockal and Elhics Commitize

pion-orsculive drectors have accass to all members of management of the entity.
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Directors' Report
Mama Board At Development  Soclal and HR: and
maating aammittes & Rlek Ethics Remunaration
- muzeting committes committer  commitboe
meeting meating maating
Total number af mesatings held | T 1 ]
(3 Simalane (Chairparson) 1 1
L wudula (Ex-Chalrparaan) 4 2
P Masia 5 T 2
A Rajah 1 1
P Magzhiane 1 1
P Kubu 1 i 1
A R Roriston 2 1
B Majola 1 (|
W Thwala 1 1
L Matlhape 5 2 2
T bendrew (Acting Chilel [i] § = 1
Exaculive Officar)
W Lila 5 7 3
O aidu [ 1 G

Audit committes

The marbers of the audil committes are: Ms N Lila, Mr P Masio, Mr K Govender, Ma J Vergotine and Ms N Selamolela.

Tha chairpersen of the audit commiltes s Ms N Lila, who is a MaN-EXecLy
membars Ler Mr K Govender (1 mesting attended); Ma J Vargoline (7

we direcior. The commiftes has 3 Independent
meeling stendsd) and Ms N Selamalela {no

meelings atfended), Ms J Soggenpoel {rasignad 03 July 2011 - no meetings attendied). Mr K Govendar, Ms J Wergating
and 4 B Selamalels were appalnted an 24 Apdl 2012, Mr K Moyo (relied in 24 Apedl 2012 - 8 meelings altended), The
audit commiltes has met on 7 schaduled mestings which were helg during the 201172012 financial yaar to reulew matters
necassary 1o fulfil its robe including the approval of financial statemants,

Development and Risk comimittes

The members of the development and risk commilies are: Mr 0 Maidy, Ms G Simelans, Mr P Foubw, br W Theala, MrT
Mendraw and Mz B Majola. The chalrperson of the development and rigk commiliee Is Bir D Maidu, who s a non
axecillve director, The members attended 8 scneduled meetings during the 20112012 financial year Lo review mallors
necaszary fo Tl Hs rols including examining the risks associated with the proposed projects such as the financing,

ratunns and risk profiles.

HR and Remunaration Committes

The mambers of the remunsrstion commitles are Mr @ Masiio, Mr A Rajsh and Mr W Thwala. The chaiperson of the
hurnan resoures snd remuneralian comrmitiaa is Mr P Masiio who s & non-execulive director,

The rermunaration of e Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer fa detarmined oy the Board of Diractors
withir e epper bmits detarmined by the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Musisipality.

Social and Ethlce Commitiae

The membears of the sacial and ehlos commiltae ase Mr P Kubu, Mr A Rajah, Ms B Mejola , Mr T Mendrew and Ms P
Mashiana. The chairperson of the social and ethics commiltee is Ms B Majola whao s a nan-executive director,

Internal audit

The enfty has co-sourced s intamal awdil funclion with Gobade Forenaic and Irestigative Acoounting (Pty) Lid (GFIA)
and an internal resource constitefing the internal audit funcfion of Ine enlty. This is in compliance with the Municipal
Finance Managemeant Act, 2003, During the period under roview GFIA sold and ransfecesd lis internal audil division to

Sokelatonsulting (Phy) Lid (Sekela) with effect from Movembar 20771, The entily aought

and ahtained legal advice on the

implications of sale and tranafar of he GFLA division on the service contract wilh Fhe entity, Having analysed the impact
an the JIA the entity determined that thers would e minkmum impact on the qualily of sanvice expacled fram the service
providars &3 ihe team membears, heir skills and exparience provided remained the same a3 ey wera prior b the tansfsr
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Directors' Report

13, CONTROLLING ENTITY

The antity’s controlling entily is The City of Johanneshurg Matropalitan Mumicipafity.
14, SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

Maone,
15, BANKERS

ABSA Bank Limited

Tha management of the easury funclion within the Cempany is managed under the suspices of the Clty of
Johannashurg Medropoftan Municipalily's Treasury departmant and Ageets and Liabilies Committe.

16, AUDITORS

Auditer-Cenaral of Soulh Afica, Johannesberg will confinueg in office in accordance wih the Public Audit Ack Mo 25,
saction %2 of the Municipal Financs Menegement Act No 56 of 2003 and section 90 of the Cempanles Act,

17. FUMDS HELD BY THE CITY OF JOHANNESBURG METROPOLITAN MUNICIRALITY

Dwrlng the 2008/2008 financisl year, (he Johannesburg Develaprment Agency (SOC) Lid held manay in the Attorney's
Trust sesaunt for the purchase of knd for reeds widening for Uve Bus Ragéd Transll and the Barrarms Priority Block, Al the
and of lhe 2008/Z008 financlal yaar, thess funds were fransfered ko the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan unicipality
and then subsequently transfarrod back inte the Johanneshurg Developmant Agency's ewsseping accounl,

BRT Land Northern Gataway Bertrams Priority Total
Acquisition BRT Troyevilla Priority Bleck
Balance af tha baginning
of the year S, 3 203 2,789,472 14,604 823 56,477,508
Mewernent through the year {41,491} = {1,6:32.1411 _ [1ETI835)
Ealanca al the end of the vaar 34,951,712 2. 7HS 472 17,062, 782 ) 54 803,058
15

C85



Johannesburg Development Agency 2011/12 Annual Report

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC) Ltd
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Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2072

Company Secretary's Certification

Declaration by the company searetary [n respact of Section 83{2)(e) of the Companies Ast

In terms of Sectlon S8(2)(a) of the Compenias Act 71 of 2008, as emended and the Municipal Fingnce Manegement Acl, Act 63
of 20043, 1 certify that the company has ladged with the Commizsioner all such returns ag are required of a public company in
terma of the Companies Act and that all such raturns are e, correct and up to date.

Galdsmih

Company Sacrebary

Johanneshurg
30 Movembar 2012
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Statement of Financial Position

Flieguras in Rand ’ Maote{s) 2miz 2011
ASBETS
Current Assets
Loans bo shereholdars 2 57 302 B40 402 458 BA7
Trade and athar recehables from exchange transaclions 3 120 448 TET 265 741 227
Cagh and cash aquivalents 4 1247 473 1148 081
187 G898 770 2TZ2J94 205
Han-Currant Assats
Property, plant and aquipment 5 6317 574 5953 294
Intangible sssats 5] g a2 1935 748
Deferrad fax T 1 027 308 BOT 064
7aB3 454 7044 006
Tatal Assets ) 185 382 224 379 436 211
LIABILITIES
Currant Liabilities
Loans fram shareholders 2 54 802 988 56477 500
Financs lease obligation 8 140 707 28 816
Trade and other payables from exchange ransaclions 4 B4 974 TIT 244 072 B11
Mat WAT payasle 10 S2i4154 10320438
Provisions - bonus M 2477 939 2035 G945
121 611 483 312 942 355
Mon-Currant Liabilitles )
Finance lease obligation B 265 143 -
Crefemed bax 7 2 GEO Z88 44 000 985
Project Funds payable 12 i0o@5 800 A5 TT 582
T qzesEeld 19 Ti8 538
Total Liabilities T 444 B11 414 332 660 893
Het Assals 50 770 810 46 TIT 318
MWET ASSETS
Contribution fram sharehalder 13 16 277 624 16 277 624
Accumulated swrplus 34 493 186 30 490 &84
Total Nat Assets 50 770 810 46 77T 318
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Statement of Financial Performance

Figures in Rand Hate(s) 2012 2011
Revante
Renderng of senices 14 1B 800298 0437427
Govermment granis 18 24410000 21 83T 000
Tandar fee incorme 2460 942 332839
Bus fachory income 411 Q4B 37127
Bad debls previoushy wiitten off - 25 480
Sundry incoms 314 078 436 264
Inberes! racaivad - Invastmant 18 3802 280 6 T3 027
Total Revenues 47 EE5565 B9 975164
Expanditure
Employes related cosls : 1w (27 483 0106) (29 985 839)
Administration 16 (264 734) (443 778)
[epreciation and amorlisalion 14 (1013348) (1 182 325)
Finance costs 20 (78 847} (&2 B85)
Allowance far impairment of curmant receivables 22 {107 344) -
Repairs and mainlenanca {353 363) (737 TTE)
Loss on disposal of asssts {23 69T} (B 2T5)
Geners Expenzes | (18007 887} (23 741 262)
Tatal Expanditure {45 333 143) (52 074 0ED)
Draferred Taxation 23 1 441 040 1 B84 165
Surplus for the yaar © 34983492 9484 269
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets

2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

Meleds) Share capilal  Shase Talal share Accurnlated Total aguily
Figures in Rand prsamium capital surplus
Dalanca at 01 July 2010 a8 restated B0 16277 564 16 277824 M 048 328 37 182045
Chanpas i nel agaals
Surplus for the year . - - 9484 388 D484 168
Tatal changes - - - (484380 0484 258
Oparing balanca as pravicusly rmpaned 60 1B 27T EE4 G277 24 3DO0EG T3 48 364 257
Adjusbments
Prior yaar adjustments 32 - - - 412 81 412 981
Balance st 01 July 2041 as restated B0 18 277 66d 16277624 30499 654 46777 318
Charges i nel asasts
Surpius far the yaar - - 3gE14E2 39034
Tols! changes - - 3eEa4E2  30ad4E2
Balanca at 30 Juna 2012 B0 16277 664 16 277 624 34402988 EOTTOAEI0
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Annual Finsncial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2012

Cash Flow Statement

Figures in Ramd Morbe]s) 2z 2011

CASH FLOWS FROM OFERATING ACTIVITIES

Recelpts .
Grants 24 110000 21 837 000
Ierast Income 3 892 2680 6 736 027
Other recaipis . 1 083 336 751 740
C:ash recaipts from capex funding 679144 322 535 000 985
B0A 195938 BG5S 125 781
Payments
Employes costs (27 418 700) (24 036 0BF)
Suppliers (A17 B48 258) (BTE 370 463)
Inkarest pald (78 847} (22 6&8)
(Gi45 145 813) (801 331 251)
Mat cash flows fram operating activities ) (36 945 975)  [36 208 490
CASH FLOWS FROMN INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchasa of propaerty, plant and squipment i {78 945) (356 224)
Purchase of olher infangible assels & - (B8 200)
Mot cash Mows from investing actlvities (T35 945) {454 424)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINAHCING ACTIVITIES
Movarment i projact funds payable (5602053 2941450
sovernent In capes vat . (& 281 048]
wovernent in shareholdars laan 42480785 42071835
Firance lesse paymsnis (54 3680) (41 E4T)
Met cash flows from lnancing activities 47734312 IGT0ATES
Mel Increaseldacreasa) in cagh and cash equivalants 51382 49 B84
C:ash and cash eguivalenls at the beginning of the year 1 188 081 1 148 187
Cash and cash equivalanis at the end of the year 4 1247 472 1 196 084
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Annuzsl Financlal Stalements for the year anded 30 June 2012

Accounting Policies

4. Pressntation of Annual Financlal Statements

The annual financial stalements have besn prepared in aceordencs with the Standerds of Generally Recognised
Accounting Praclice (GRAP) inchiding any interpretations, guidelines and directives isswed by the Accaunfing Standards
Board.

Thess annual financial statements have been prepased on an accrosl basis of accounting and are in accordancs wilh
histerical ensl convention wiless spacifed olherwise, They are presented in Soulh Affcan Fand.

A summary of tha signifeant agoounting poficies, which have besn eamsistantly applied, are disclozed Delow,
Thise accounting policies are consistent with the pravious period.
The following GRAP standards heve been approved and are affectve:

GRAP 1 - Prasantation of finsncal slalements

GRAP 2 - Cashilov siatements

GRAP 3 - Accounting policles, changes In accounting estimates and amors
GRAP 4 - The affecte of changes In foreign exchange rates

GRAP § - Bomowing cosls

GRAP & - Consolidated and separate financial statemenls

GRAP T - Invesimens in associates

GRAP 8 - Interast in joint vaniures

G3FRAP @ - Revanua from exchange ransactions

GRAP 10 - Financlal repodting in hyperinflafionary econemies

GRAF 11 - Conatruction confracts

GRAP 12 - wentarles

GRAP 13 - Leases

GRAF 14 - Evants afier the reporling date

ARAP 16 - Imvestmant property

GRAF 17 - Properly, plant ang equipment

GRAP 19 - Provisions,contingent lisbiiies and contingent assets

GRAP 100 - Nen-currand assels held for sabs and discontinued oparations
GRAP 101 - Agricubiure

GRAP 102 - IMangible assels

The follawing GRAP statements hava been approved but ate not yel effective:

3HAP 18 - Segmant reporing

ORAF 21 - Impaismeant of non-cash generziing assels

GRAP 23 - Fevenus from nan-exchange ransactions

GRAP 24 - Presentation of budgel information

GRAP 25 - Employes henefils

GRAP 26 - Impalmrent of cash-generating assels

(GRAP 103 - Herifage assels

GRAP 104 = Financial Instramants

GRAR 105 - Trensfar of functions betwesn entities under cormmaon conirol
GRAP 106 - Transfer of funciions betwean enfifies not undsr common cantrol
GRAP 107 - Mergors

|
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Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC) Ltd
{Registration number 2001/005101/07)
Annual Financial Stalaments for the year ended 20 June 2012

Accounting Policies

1.1

1.2

1.3

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertalnty

In preparing the annual financial statements, managemeant is required to make esfimates and assumpilons that affect the
amounits reprasenied B the annual financial slatements and refated disclosures. Use of availabie information and (e
applieation of fudgement s inherend In the formation of estimales, Actugl rasults in the future could differ from these
eafimetas which may be materlal fo the annual financlal statements. Significant judgements include:

Banus provisian

Bonus provision was raised and management determined an esbmate based on the infermation availabla. Additional
disclesure of thesa estimales of provisions are included in note 14 - Provisions.

Prajects payabla

Thie represents funds recelved in advance frem COJ and other funders, The funds are to bo uzed for the idenbfisd
projects. Refer o nota 12 for details,

Ralatisnshlp with majority shareholder and classification as agent

The Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC) L (JOA) ls an agent of e Cly of Johsnnesburg Metropolitan
Municipalily {0J) as & municipal enlity. The JOA implements c2pdal projects es parl of ha City's infrastruclhse
peogramme. The City makes eapitel budgat available for hese projacts. The JOW conbracts with supplisrs and delvars
thase projecis. The JDA pays suppliers, and then claims the capitel expenditure against the budget fram the COJ. The
00 then reirbursas the JOA, after the invoices have been submilied and scrulinised as correct.

Since the JOA doss not get any reward for this wark, becauss COJ cepitalises all ‘Wl in Progress’, i.e. as Invoices ara
gant for reimbursemen, tha JDA is of the view that this revenua, which ls received in arrears, cannel be classiied a8
\geant revenus’. Furlhemore, COJ dose not recoghise fis ae &n expenas paid to the JOA or grant. COJ benedls totally
from sl implemaestation work done by the JOA, as at the complation of each project they add yel ancther asset fo their
reglslar, A far as risks are concemed, tha risk ultimately lies with GO bacause [f e JOA was o exparience difflcuty,
00 would have la asaiat 23 it s the sole shareholder, The JOW's only assets are compuber egquipment, fumiturs and
impravements to the office bullding, All thesa are paid fram the operstional funding and capilalisad in the statement of
fimancial position,

Property, plant and eguipment

Properly, plant &nd equipment are tanglble non-current assels (neluding infrastnrcture assels) that are held for use in the
preduction or supply of gooda or sanvices, renlad to olhers, or for adminisirallve purposes, and ane expected to ba used
during more than one period.

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipanant &5 recognisad as an assal when:
- it 12 probable that fulure econormie benelits or sendice potential assaclated with the itam will Bow 10 e entity, and
+  the eost of the fem can be mesaursd reliably,

Proparty, plant and equipment ig initially measured at cost.

The cost of an item of progerty, plant and equipment |s the purchase price and ather costs atlibulable 1o btng tha asset
o the lecatian and condifion necessany for it fo be capable of eperating in the manner inlendad by managarment, Trade
digcounta and rebales are deducted in arriving al ihe cost.

Where an assel ts acquired at no cost, ar for a nominal cost, #s cost s s falr valuws as ai dale of acqulsition.

Wihara an llam of propery, plant and equipment Is acquired in exchangs for 8 non-monetary assel ar manstary assets, or
a combination of monetary and non-manekary assels, the assst scouired is inilially measured at fair valse (he cost). If the
acauired den's falr valus was not determinabls, s desrmed cost is Ihe canrying amount of the asaaiia) given up.

When significant compenants of an item of propedy, plainl and equisment have differant uzeful lives, they are accounted
for as separats flems (major components) of property, plant and aquipment.

Costs include cosls [neerred initially b acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs Incurred
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or servica 1L, If a replacement cost is recogrised [n the carrying amaunt of an ltem
of property, plant and equipment, tha carrying arurt of the replacad part is derecognised.
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Annual Financisl Statermants for the year ended 30 June 2012

Accounting Policies

1.2 Property, plant and & quipment {continued)

Proparty, plant aned eouipment is caried al cost less scoumulated depreclafion and any impelnnent losaes.

Tha residual walue and ussful fife of property, plant and equipment are reviawad at guery repodting date,

&f mach reparting date all ilems of property, plant and agquipment are reviewsd foe any indication (et it may be Impeairad.
An Impalrment exizsis when an assel's carmying ameount 1s greater than its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of
an assed or cash generaiing unit is the higher of Hs Tair vslue kss costs to sell and Ik varhue in uae. If there is an indicetion
of Imgairment, the assel's recoverable amount i calculated. An impairment logs f2 racognised in the Statament of
Financial Perfarmance and the deprecalion charge relabing to the asset is adjusted far fulure periods.

Property, planl and equipment are deprecatad on ihe staight line basis over their expected useful lives to their eatimated
regidusl value.

The usehd lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed s follows:

Item Average ueeful life
Leasehold property 20 yaars

Furnilure and fxtures 10 years

hertar veticles 5 years

Oiffice equiprment 10 years

Compular Equigment 5 yaars

Prindars, hatwork and esrvers & years

Lessed Asgels - Printars 3 years

The residual value and the waebul Fe of sach aseet are raviewed al Ine end of sach reporling date, If the expactaticns
differ from previous estimales, the change is accounled for as a change in secounting estimate.

feviewing the useful lifa of an asset on an annual basis does not reguire the entily te amend the previous eslimate uniass
expactations difar from the previows estimate.

Each part of an lem of propery, plant and equipmeant with 2 cest thal i significant In retation fo tive total cost of the item
s degpreciated saparately,

The depraciafion charge lor each period is recognized in surplus or deficil unlass it is included in the earrying amount of
ancibiar assel,

Mems of propery, plant and egulpment are derecoghized when tho asset is disposad of or whan there are no further
aconomic banells of sendoe potential expected from the use of the sssel,

The galn or lass arlsing fram the derecognition of an iterm of property, plant and equipment is included in surphes or defict
when the ltem is derecogrised. The gain or loss arlsing from the derecognitlon of an item of property, plant and
equipment is delermined a3 the diffarence batwsen the net dispesal proceeds, if any, and the canrying emount of the ftem.
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Accounting Policies

1.4 Intangible assets

An aaaet is idantified as an intangible assel when [t

+  is capable of being separaled or divided from an entity end sold, ranaferrad, licensed, rented or axchangsd,
elther individually of together with & relaled contract, assets ar liability: or

«  arises from coniractual fights ar ofhar bagal rights, regandless whether those rights are ransferable or scparale
fram the entity or from other rights and obligationa.

An Intangible assol is recognisad when:
. itis probable that the expecled fulure aconamic benefits or ganvies potenfisl hat are aliibutable 1o the assel wil

flowr fo the enifity; and
«  the cost or fair valus of the aseet can ba measured relisbly.

Intanglile assate are inifially recognised at cost,
A Inkangible asset acquired 81 no or nominal cost, the cost shak be its falr vahe a5 al the date of acquisticn.
Expenditure an research (or on the research phase of an intesnal project ks recogaised az an expanse whan itie incurred.

An Intangibls assel arsing from davelspment (or from the development phase of an intarnal projest) s recognised

wihan:
« It technically feasible to complate the seset ao that il will be avalsble for use of szle.
o fhere & an infention to complete and usa or sell 1,
. thera is an abilily o wae or sall 1L
+  jiwill generate probable fulure ecanamile benellls or 2ervice polankial,
thera ars avaiable lechnical, financal and other resources o complete the development and 1o use or sell the

asael.
the expandiure atiibutable to the asset during its development can ha measured reliabhy.

Inangile assels are carried &l cosl kess any accurnulated amortisation and zny impalrment losses.

An intengible assel js regarded a5 having an ivdefinile useful Fe when, based on all relevant factors, these Is no
faraseeable it to the perod over which the asset fs expecled lo genersts net cash Inflows or sarica potantial.
Armnortization is net provided for these intanglble sssots, bul they ara tastad for impairmant annualy and whenever e |5
an indcation that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amodisation s provided on a glrakght line
basis evar thalr useful lifa.

The amarlisation period and the amortisation method far iMangible assels are reviewsd at each reporting date.

Reassessing lhe uaeful life of an intangible assel with 2 finite ussful life afer it was classlied 28 indefinite is an indicator
that the assat may be impaired, As @ result the assal is lested for impairment and the remaining carying amount 18
amartised aver Ita useful like,

Internally generaled brands, mastheads, publishing titlas, cuslomer ligte and ilems similar in substance are net
recognised as intangible essats.

Amortisation s provided fo write down the intangible assels, ana siraight Tine basia, to thair residual values as follows:

ftam Useful lifo
Computer aothware, Imemally gensraled Jyaars
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1.8 Financial inatruments
Initial recognition and measurament

Financlal Instruments are recognised nifialy when the enlity becomes a pady o the contractual provisions of iha
Ingtrurmenls,

The enlily elassifies financial irstrurments, or their companant parts, on initlal recagnilion as a financlal assat, a financial
liahllity ar an aquity instrument In accordanes with the substance of the contraciual arangement.

Finandal insirumenls are measured initislly al falr value, except for squily iwestments for which a falr value is not
determinakle, which are measured at cost and ara classified as availzble-for-sale financial 25sels,

For financlal Instruments which are net at fair valua thraugh surphus or defic, ransaction costs &re included in The initial
messuremant of the instrurnent.

Fair value determination

The fair values of quated investments are baged on current bid proes. If the market for a financial asset is nat active (and
for unlisted securilies), the entity establishes fair value by using veluation techninues. These includa the use of recant
arm's length Fansactons, referance to olber insiruments that are substantialy the same, discounted cagh low analysis,
and aption pricing maodeds making madmum vge of markel inputa and ralying as lile a5 possible on enlity-specic Inpults.
Impalrment of financial assets

A% each and of the repering period the antity assesses all financial assels, olher than those at fair value through surples
or deficil, 1o detarming whather there is objective evidance that a financial ssset or group of financial assets has been
Impaired,

For amounts due to he enfity, significant fnanclal difficulies of the detitor, probability that the debler will enter bankruploy
and defaull of peyments are 2 consldered indicators of imgainment.

Impalment loszas are resognised In aurgles or doficil.

Irvpalrment lossas ane reversed when an incroase in the financial assel’s recoverable amount can bo relatod oblectvely
to 8n event oocuring after tha fmpalrment was recognised, subjee! ta the rastiction that (he camdng amount of e
financial asssl ab the date that fhe impairment i reversed shall not excead what the camying amount weuld have baen
had e impalrment nol been racainised.

Reversals of impalrmant losses ase recognissd in surplus o defict except for aquity investmants claseifiad as avallable-
far-sale.

Vihers financial aszets zra impairad threugh use of an sllowance account, the amount of the 038 1 recognised i surplus
or deflci! within opsrating expenses. When such assels are written off, the wrile off is made againat the relavant allcwrance
accaunt, Subsequent recoveries of ameunts previously written off are credited againet operaling expenses.

Loans to (fram) group companies

These ncleda loans to and frem controfing enfitios, fellow confrolled enfifies, contralled entifies, joint ventures and
asaociates and ase recognised inilially al fair value plus direct transachion costs.

Loans fo ecenomic enfilies are cassified as leans and receivables.
Laans frem sconomic anfities are cessified as finandal Tabilites measwed &t amorised cosl.
Laans to shareholders, directors, managers and employees

The lean o sharshalder is dassifed as loans and recelvables, The enfity does not provide loans to directors, managers
and employaas,
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1.5

1.8

Financial Instruments [continued)
Recelveblas from exchange transactions

Trade receivables are measured at inifial recognillen =t fair value, and are subseguently measwed at amarkiged cost
Using the effactive interest rate mathod. Appropriate allvwances for estimaled imacowerabie amounts ard recognised in
aurplus or deficlt when theta is abjeciive evidence that the assel 1s impairad. Significant financial dificulies of the debtar,
prabability that the dablor will enter bankriptcy or financial reorganisation, and defaull or delinguency in paymants (more
than 30 days overdus) sre considered indicalors thet the rade recelvable is impalred. The aliowanca recognised ia
measured s the dherence batwean thi asset'a camying amount and fhe present walue of estimatad fulure cash flows
discountad at the effective interest rate compuled at Initial racognilion.

The carrying amount of the asse! s reducsd Brough the use af an sliowance account, and the amewnt of the deficl B
recogniaad in surplus or deficit within operating expenses, When a irade recelvable iz uncollactible, it is wiilten off against
tha allowsnes account for lrade receivebles, Subsequent recovianes of amounts priviousky written off are cradited apainst
operating expansas by surplus or defict,

Trade and ofher meceivabdas ara classifisd 2g loans and recelvablas,
Payables from exohangs transactions

Trada payahles are Inltially measured at feir valee, and ara suhseguently measured al amortised cosl, waing the sifectve
inlerest rate mathod.

Cash and cash agquivalents

Cazh and cash eguivalens comprize cash on hand and demand deposita, These are Initislly and subsequently recorded
at falr value through profil and oss,

Bank overdraft and borrowings

Bank overdrafls and borowings are Inlially measured at fair value, and ara subsequently measured ol amartised cost,
using lhe effective inberest rate method. Any differance Between fhe proceeds (nat of transection cosls) and the
actfiemant or redempilon of borrowings s recagalsed over the temm of the bomowings In accordance with the entity's
acceunting policy for berrewling costs.

Tax
Current tax assets and liabilities

Ciurrent ax for curremt and prior pariode (s, to the exdent unpaid, recopnised as a labilty. If the amount already paid in
respect of eurent and prior periods excoads the amourt dus for those parods, the ecess is recognised as an asset.

Current lax Eabilities (assets) for the curment and prior perlods are measured at the amount expecied fo be paid io
{racovered from) the tax authedlles, using the 133 rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantiveby anacted by
tie end of the rapading period.

Defarrad tex assets and liabilities

A defarrad tax lablBly s recognisad for all taxable temparary diflerences, except o Ihe extent that he deferred fax
linksility arizes from the nilial recognition of an aszatl or llakiity in & transaclion which at the fime of the fransaction,
atfacts neither accounting surplus nor texabbe prodt (bex loss).

A defarred tax assel i recognised for all deductible temparary difierencas to the edent that itis probatle thet taxsbie
surplus will ba available aganat which the daduclible lemporzry diffesence can be ufiised, A defarrad tax asset lz nol
recognised when i§ arlses from the inilisl recogniion of an asset or fishility In @ transaction at the time of the
fransaction, affacts nellher accounting surplus nor taxable proft (lax kassh,

1 deferred tax sssel s recognised for the carry forward of unused fax losses and unused ST credits to the extent that il
ie probakde thal future faxable surplus will be avallable against which the unused tax losses and unused STC credits can
b ulillaed,

26

2011/12 Annual Report
1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

C96



Johannesburg Development Agency

Johanneshurg Development Agency (SOC) Ltd
{Regisiration number 2001008 10107)
Annual Financtal Stataments for the year ended 30 June 2012

Accounting Policles

1.8

1.7

Tax (continued)

Deferred fax assels and Habilities are measured at the tex ratos thal are expeclad bo apaly e tha perind wihen the actat is
realised ar e liakility iz sellied, based on tax rates (and tax lws) that have been enected or subztantively anacted by the
end of tha reporting period.

Tax expenses
Cusrent and deferrad teves are recogrised as income or an expense and included in aurphes or deficl far the pariod,
axcept Lo the extent that the lax arises from:

® a fransacton or evant which is recognised, in the sarme o a differant period, ko net agseta; ar
. a buginess combination,

Current tax and deferred faxes are charged of credited to nel assets if the tax relales lo lterna that are credited or
chiarged, in the same or a difarent periad, to nat assals.

Leases

A lease 18 classiiad as a finance lease if it fransfers subatantially all the risks and rewards incidental io ownership. &
lease Is classified s an operating lease i if does not transfer substantially ali the risks and rewards incidanial to
owmership.

When @ lease includes both land and buildings elements, the enlily assesses the clagsification of sach element
aaparately.

Finance leases - lessas

Finance leases sre recognised as assets and liabfies in the statemant of financlal pesition &t smounts equal to the falr
walue of the leassd property or, if lower, the present valus of the minkmum lease payments. The corraspanding liability to
the lessar is Incheded in the stalement of financial posilion a3 & finance bease obligation.

The discount rate uzad in calculating fhe prassnt value of the minimurm lease payments is the interest rate implicit in the
|egme,

Binimum loase payments are spporioned betwesn the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding Eabllity. The
financs charge is alocated lo each period during the lease teom so as 1o produce a constant perlodic rate of interest on
the ramaining balance of the liabity,

Ay conlingent rents are axgensad in the period in which they are incurred.
Operaiing leases - lessor
Cperating lease revanes |5 recognised as revenys on 8 giraigihd-line basle over the lease term.

Inilial direct costs incurred in negodiating and aranging oparating leases are added to the canying smount of fhe leanad
assal and recognized as an expense over tha lease berm on the same basis as he leass revanua.

The aggresate cast of incentives ls racognised as a redhection of rental revenue ower the laase lesm on a straighl-Ene
bagis.

The aggragate benefit of incenfives is recognisad a2 & reduction of ranal expense over the lease term on a sirzight-line
basis,

Ineama for leases ls disslozed under revenua in statement of fimancil performence.
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1.8 Impairment of eash-generating assets
Cash-generating assets ara thoss assals held by the enfity with the primary objective of genarating a commescial refurn.
Winen sn assal is deployed In & manner consislent wilk that adepled by a proft-orisntated entlly, it genesales a
commercial relurn,

Impalment is a logs In the fulure eccnomic benefits or savice polential of an assst, over and above lhe aystamatic
racognition of the loss of the asset’'s future econdmic benefs or sendoe potertial through depreciation {zmorizlion).

Camying amount 18 the amount st which an sssel is recognised in lhe statement of financial pesition after deducting amy
accumubated depreciation and sccumulsted Impairment losses thesean.

A cash-penerating it s the smallest idendifizbla group of assets held wilth tha primary objective of generaling &
commercial relurn that generates cash inllows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
ather azaeis or groups of assals.

Costs of disposal are incremenial costs direclly afbibulable lo the disposal of en asset, excluding financa costs and
ncome oy expense.

Dagreciallonfemerization is the syslematic sllocation of the depreciable amoun of an asset over its usaful lifa.

Fair vaiue lesa costa to sall is the amount oblainatle from the sale of an asset In 2n am's length fransaclion batwesn
knawdadgeatls, willing parties, leas the costs of disposal.

Recoverable amount of an azeet or  cash-generaling unit is the higher its fair value less costs to aall and its vaius in use.
Usaful life iz althar:

{a) the period of ime aver which an agaet i3 expacled Lo be used by the antily; or

(b} the nurmber of production ar similar unils expected to be obtained from he assel by the entity.

Cilesia developad by the enlity o dislinguish cash-generating assets from non-cash-penerating essats ars as fallows:

= ldentifigation

Whan the carrying amount of a cashegenerating 2eset axceeds b8 recoverable amount, itis impaired.

The entity assassas at sach raporing date wheiher there is any Indization thal & cash-genarating assel may ba impaired,
If any such [ndication exiats, the entity astimales the recovarabde amount of the assel.

Irrespective of whether there is any indicalion of impairmant, the entity also st a cash-genersting intangible asast with
an indefinile useful life or a cash-generating mtangible asast not ya! availsble for use for impairment anoually by
comparing s carmying amaount wilh its recoveraide amaund. This Impairment t2st bz performad &t the same tme evary
year. If an intangitle assel was inifelly rasognised Guring the current reparting period, thal iangible asset was tosted for
impalirment before the end of the currend reporting pesiod.

= Waluge In usa

‘alue in use of & cash-genarating asset is tha present valie of the estimated futurs cash fiows expeciad o be derived
from Ihe canlinuing use of an asset and from its daposal at the end of ils usetul e.

When eslimating the value in use of an assel, the entity estimates (he fulure cash Inlows and cutflows to be derived fram
canfinuing use of the asset and from iis ulimate disposal and the enfity applias the appropriate decount rate to those
fulure cash flows,

Recegnltlen and measuramant (individual asset)

I the recoverahle amount of a cash-generating assel s loss than Ha carrying amount, the carrying anmount of the assal is
reduced ko ils recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss.

An impairment loss is recognised immediately In surplus or deficil.

Any impalrment toss of a revalued cash-generating assel is treated a5 o resvaluation decraase,
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1.8

1.8

Impairmant of cagh-generaling assets (continued)

Whes the amount estimated for an impairment loas |s graaber than the carrying amaunt of the cast-generaling asset 1o
which It relates, fhe enlity reconnises a liability onby to (he extent that is a requiremant in the Stendard of GRAF.

After fhe recaandlon of an impaisment Joss, the déepracistion (amorization) charge for the cash-generaiing assel la
adjusted in fulure pariods to allocate the cash-generaling assefs revised canying amount, less ds regidual valea (if any),
om a gystamalic basls over its remaining waaful lifi,

Impalrment of non-cash-genarating assets

Hon-cash-genarating sssots am assets ofher han cash-genaraling asasie.

Impairment |s a loss in the future ecanamic penefits or seruloe potentiz) of an @ssel, over and above the syslematic
racagnition of the logs of the assel's fulure sconarmic benefits or service petentlal through depweclation (amorlisation.

Carrying amount s the amount at which an assel is recognised in the statemant of financial possilon after daducting arny
accumulated depraciation and accumulated impairment basses therean.

Gasts of disposal are [neremental costs direclly atiributable to the disposal of an esset, exchsding finance costs and
nComa (ax eXpenss, :

Depracialionfamardizalion is the systematic allacation of the depreciatle amount of an asset over its useful lifa.

Fair value less costs fo sell s the amount oblainable from the sale of an assel in an am's length ransaction betwesn
knowledgeables, willing parties, less the costs of disposal

Recoverable series amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating assels fair value less costs to sell and ita value in
UBg.

Usih lile is eithar:

(2) the period of time over which an asest is axpecied fo 'be usad by the enbity; ar

() the number of production or aimiar unis axpeciad to be abtsined from the asset by tha enlity.

Crilesia developed by the entlty to distinguish non-cash-generaling assets from cash-ganaraling assets are as folow:
= identification

When tha carrying amount of a nan-cash-genaraling assel exceads its recoversbla serdce amount, itis impalrad.

The entity assesses st each reporting date whether thera is any indication thel a nen-cash-generaling ssset may be
impaired, |f any such indication exists, the entity astimates the racoverable senvice amount of he asset.

Irreepectiva of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also test a non-cash-generating intangibla aesel
with an indefinite usaful fife oF & non-cash-generating intsngible asset not yet available for uae for impairment annuslly by
compering s canrylng amount with 15 recoverable service amount. This Impeirment test is performead at the same fime
avary year, If an intangible asset was initslly recognized during the current repoding periad, thal intangible assel was
yesled for impairmenl before the end of the currart reporiing paricd.

-Walua in use

Value In use of an asset is the present value of the sssel’s ramaining service polaniial

= Recognition and measurement

If the racaverabla sarvice amaunt of 8 non-cash-generaling asset is leas than |is carmying amourt, the carrying amaunt of
{he asaet i3 reduced to its racoverable service amaounl, This rsduction 1s an Impairmant logs,

An impairment bkass ks recognised immedistaly in surplus ar daficil,

Any impaimment boas of a revalued non-cash-generaling asset is Irssled as a ravaluslion decrease.
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1.8 Impairment of nen-cash-panerating assets (continuad)

viiren the amount estimated for an impaiment lass is graater than the carrying amaunt of tha non-cash-generating asset
to which it relates, the enlity recognises a liability only to ihe axtent thal is & requirament in the Standards.of GRAP,

After the recogniion of an Impairment lozs, the depracialion (amortisation) charge for the nor-cash-generaling assak is
adjustad in fulure periods to allocate the non-cash-generating assat's revised carmying amount, less its resldual value {if
any), on & ystematic bagle over is refmaining wseful life,

1.40 Contribution from sharehaolder

An egully Instrument fa any contract that evidonces a residual ivlerest in the assels of an entily afier deducling all of ils
ligbilifes.

==

1.11 Employes benafits

Short-term employes benefits

The cosl of short-lerm employes benefils, (those payable within 12 monihs after the service 15 rendered, such as paid
wanation leave snd alck leave, bonuses, and fon-monetary benefils such as medical card), are racogrised in tive pedod in
which the aervice is rendered &nd are not discounled.

The axpecied cost of compensaled sheencas is recognised as an expense as the employees render services tnal
increass thelr entilernent or, In the case of hen-acoumulating absances, whan the absence 0GSUS.

The expected cost of surplua sharng and hanus payments is recognised as an expense when there s a legal or
consiructive obligation 1o make such payments as a rasull of pasl perfonmands,
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1.42 Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognised wien,

" the anfily has & present obligation &8s & result of a past avent;

«  itis prabane that an cutow of rescurces embadying econamic benefits or service potantial will be reguired o
setile the abligatlan; and

+  @rellable estimate can be mada of the chligation.

The amount of & provision fe the best esfimate of the axpandiiure expeciad Lo be required to seitle the presant obligation
at the reporling dale.

Whare e effact of ima value of meney is material, the amourd of & provision is the present valua of the expandilures
expectad to ba required te selile the obligafion.

The discount rate is @ pre-tax rale 1ol raflects currant market assessments of the time vaks of money and the risks
spacific 1o the lability.

Vhare some or all of the expendiiure required o setle & previslon s expacted lo ke relmbursed by anoiher pary, the
ralmbursemant is recaghized when, and enly when, it 18 virually certsin that reimbursament willl e received If the entity
settles (he obligation, The raimbursement i ireated as & separale asssl Tha amaisl recagnigad for the reimbursement
does nol exceed the amount of the previsian.

Provisions are rewewed at sach repoiting date and adjusled to reflest the current best estimate, Provisions are reverssd if
it is neo longer probakle that an culflow of resources embadying aconomic benefils or senica potentisl will be required, to
zetile the obiigalion.

A provision is used only for expandiiures for which the provision was arglnally recognised.
Provisions are nol recognisad for future operating deficits.

If an enfily has a conbract that ls anerous, the present obligation {nel of racoveries) under the confract is recognised and
meazured a5 a provigion.

& conatruclive chlgallon to rastruchure arises anly when an enfity:
s his & detaded formal phen for the restructuring, identifying al least:
- the activilyloperating unit er part of a aclivilyloperating unit concemead;
= tha principal bacations affected;
- the location, funciion, and approximate nuimber of employees wio will ba compansated for sendoes baing
terminated;
- the expenditures that will be undartaken; 2od
- wihan the plan will e Implamenbes; and
s has ralsed a valld expeciation in those affected that i will carry oul lie restruciuring by staring to implement thet
plan ar announcing its main features Lo those aifacted by 1.

& restruciuring provislen includes enly the direct expenditures srising from the restruchuring, which are those thal are
beoth:

+  necessanly antaibed by the restruciuring; and
. nof associated with the angolng activities of the enfity

Mo etfigation aiises o5 a consequenca of the sale or transfor of an operation unill the entily i commilted 1o the aabe or
transfar, that i, there |3 a binding arrangemant.

After their inltial recognition contingent liabiftias recaanized in enbily combinations thal are recognised separalely are
subsequently measured al the highar of!

+  the amourd that would be recognised as a provislan; and

+  fhe amount initislly recognizad less cumulative amarisation.

Canlingent assets and confingsnd liabilities ara not racaghised, Confingencios are disclosad in nobe 22,
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1,13 Revenua froim exchangs transactians

Fevanua is fhe gross inflow of esenomic banefits or service potential during the raperding pericd whan these infiows result
in an inereaes in net assets, other than increases relating bo contribulions from mwoers. :

An exchange fransaclion Ie one in which the municipalily recefves assets of senvicas, of has llabilites extinguished, and
diraclly gives approximstely equal walua (primarily In the form of goods, servicas or use of assals) ko the othar panty In
achanmgs.

Balr valus is fhe amount for which an asaot could be exchanped, or a lakdily ssfiled, between knowledgeabhe, wiling
parties in an arm's langlh ransaction.

Measurement

Revenue le measured at the fair value of the conslderation recehvad or recelvable, nat of trade discounts and valume
rebatas.

Sale of goods

Rovenue from tha sals of goods ka recognised when all tha follewing conditions have been satisfied:

+  |he entily has transferred to the purchaser the significant riska and rewards of pwnershig of the goods;

»  the enlity retains neiher continuing managerial invelvament to the dagree usually gasociated with oemership nor
affactive confral over the gaads sold;

s fhe armaunt of revenue can be measursd rebably;

»  ii=probable el the econormio beneflite or senice sptenilal associated with the transaction wil flow to the entity
and

e ihe costs incurred or to ba incurred In respect of the transaciion can be measured raliably.

Rendering of services

VWhen the sulcarne of a transactian invohing the rendering of sandces can be aslimated rellably, revenue associatad
wilh the Iransaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaciion at the reporting dale. The
austcoma of 8 irensaction can be estimated reliably when &l the follewing conditions are satislled:

+  the amount of reveniee cen be measured refiably;

+  itis probabile that the economls benefits or service polential associated with the tranaaction will fiow to the enlity;
+  the slago of complelon of the lransaction at the raparing date can bo measured relisbly; and

o the easts neurmed for fha lransacton and the costa to complete he iransaction can be measured refiatbly,

‘Whan services are peronmed by en indetermingle number of acls over a spaciied fime frame, revenus is recognised on
a sltalght line basks oeer he specified lime frame unless there le evidance thal some olhar mathad hetter represents the
stage of complation. When & spacific act is much marea significant than any ofior acls, the recognition of ravanue is
postponed until the significant act ks executed.

When the outcaine of the transaction involving the rendering of services cennol bo esiimaled reliably, revanue is
recognised anly to the extent of the expenses racognised {hat are recoverablo.

Sarvice revenua is mcognised by reference 1o the slage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date.

Interast

Revenua arising from the use by olhers of entily assels yielding imterest (s recegnisad wien;

+ s probable thal he economic berefils or sendes polentlal associated wilh the transaction will flow to the enlity,
. ?f?rg amount of the revanue can be measured reliably,

Interest s recognisad, i surpluz or deficll, using the effective intersst rate mathod,

Seriee faas includad [ tha price of the product are recognised 22 revenus over the pariod during which the senlce is
parformad.
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1.14 Rovenue from non-axchangs transactiana

Mon-sxchange lransadions are defined as tranzactions whers tho enlity receives value from another entily wilhoul diractly
giving approximately aqual value in axchanga.

Ravenue is the groes inflow of economic benefits or senice potential during the reparting pertod when those Inflowes resut
i an Increszs in nel asseds, olher than increases relating o contributions fram owners.

Falr valus is the ameunt for which an asse! could be exchanged, o a llabilily selfled, bebwesn knowledgeable, willing
parties i an arm's lenglh raneaction.

Maasiremant

Revesue i measurad at the fair value of the consideration received or racaivable, net of frade discounts and volume
ralpatas,

Govarnment grants

Governmenl granis ars recognized as revenue whari

« i ia probable that the ecanoinic banefis or sarylce potantial associated wilh the transaction willl fiorar i thee endity,
«  ihoameunt of the revenue can be measurad raliably, and

«  totha eent that there has been compliance with any restrictions assockted with he grant,

The eniity assessas the degree of cartainty attachad to twe Bow of future economic benefils of service polential on e
basis of the avsilsble evidenca, Cerain grants payable by ona level of gowernment to another are subject 10 the
avallsbiifly of funds. Revenue fram these grants & only recognised when it ls probable that the econormic tenefits of
service petenlial associaled wilh the iransaction will fiow to the antity, An announcement al the beginning of a financial
year that grants may be available for qualifying enfifies in accardancs with an agreed programme may not be sufficisnt
gvidence of the probabibity of the flow, Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the probaky lity of the flow
becomes &vall akbe,

Resliclions on government grants may resell In such reventie pelng recognised on B ime proporion basis, Whera there
is mo resiiciion an the perod, such revenue is recogiised on recelpl or whan the Act hecomas effeciive, which-gver is
aarllar.

Capital grands are funds due from the City of Johannasburg Metropolitan Municlpalty for cagstal expenditure Incurned on
projadls.

The monthly expandilure incurred for each project is zccounled far 2 work in progress. The monlhly equivalent of the
wark in progress is claimed from tha City of Johanneaburg Metropalitan Municl pality.

When govesnmenk remit grants on & reImbureement basis, revenua |3 recognised when the qualifying expense has been
incurred and bo the extent that any other restrictions have been compfed with,

Other grants and donations

Other grants and donalions are recognised &3 revenus when:

. It |s probakbe hal the aconormic benefits or senice pobential associated with fhe tranaaction will flow to the entily;
+  fhe amount of fhe revenus can be measured refiably; and

+ o the extent et thare has been compliance with any restriglicng masociated with tha grant.

i goads in-kind are recaivad without condifions sliached, rovenue iz recogrised iImmediately, If canditions are altached, &
liakility is recognized, which is raduced and revenue recognised as the conditions are salisfied.

1.18 Borrewing costs

11 is neppropriate b capitalise barrowing costs when, and only when, there is clear evidence thal il ks difficult 1o link
the borrowing requiraments of an endity direclly 12 the nature of the expendilure to be funded 1.2, capital ar current.

Borrawing coste are recaghlsed as an expensa in tha period I whiich they are incurred.
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1.16 Related Parlies
A party i related to an anfily ©;

1. Dilrecily or Indiracily fhraugh ane or more intermediarias, the party:

a) Conlrals, is conlrolled by , or is under commuon contral with, the anfity {this includes parents, subsidizrles and fellow
subsidiarias),

b Has an intarest in an entity fhal gives it significant irflwance ower the entity; or

¢} Has joink control ouer (he entity.

2. The parly is an assackate of an enliy;

3, Tiwe parly is & joint vesure In which the enlity = 2 venture;

4. The party is a member of the key managameant personnel of the aniily or s parenls;

B, The party |3 a chosa member of tha family of an individusal relarrad toin (1) and {4},

&, The party iz an entiy that is controlied, jointly conlrolled or signifizantly influenced by, or for which significant woling
power in such entity resides with, diraclly or indirecily, any individual refarred In (4] or {5}, ar

7. Tha pery is a post employment benefit plan for the henafit of ermployeas of enlity, or of any enfity, or of any enbily that
is ralated parly of the enlily.

A relates pany trensaction ks a transfer of resources, sendces or obligalians bebween relalad periss, ragardiess of
whather a price is chargad.

felationzhips belween parents and aubsidiaras shall be disclosed meapective of whelher these have been bansactions
hebwesn fhose related partizs. An entily shall disclose the name of the enlity's parenl and, if different, the uitimals
contralling party. If nelther the extity's parant nor the ullimate cantrolling party presfuces financial stalements available for
public use, he namea of he nesxt mozt seplor parent thai doss so shall also be disclosed.

1,47 Budge! information

Entity are typically subjeel to budgetary limita in the form of appropriations of bhudgat avthorisations {or equivalent), which
Ia givan sfincl through suthorising legistation, apprepristion or smilar,

Genoral pursose fnencial reporting by anfity shall provide infarmasion on whelher resources were obiained and wsad in
acoordance with the legally adopted buedgel.

The annual financial statements and the budgel ane on the same basks of accounting therefore a comgparison wilh the
budgeted amounts for the reparting pedod heve boen incuded in fhe snnual financial slatermanls.

The Stalemont of comparative snd acual information have been included in the annual Anancisl statementa as the
racommanded dischosura when the annual financial statemeants and the budgel ae on the same hasls of accounling as
delermined by National Treasury.

118 Fruilless and wasteful expenditure

Frulliese and waslelyl sxpandiiure mesns expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had
reasonable care baen exerdsed.

Al expenditure ralabing to fritless and wasteful expendiiure is recognised &3 an exponse In the ataterment of financial
performance in the year thal the expendilure was Incurred. The cpenditure is classifed in accordance with tha nature of
fhe eepenas, snd where recoverad, if is subsaquantly aceountad for 8 revenue in the stalement of financial perfarmance.

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
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1.18 Irregular axpendiivrg

Irreguiar expanditura as defined In sedtion 1 of the MFMA is expendilure othes than unautharised expanditure, incurred in
contravention of o that is nol in accordance with a requirement of any applicabla legiskation, Ineluding -
(a) ihis Act.

Irragular axpendilure that was incurred and identifled during the current financial and which was condoned before year
and andior befors finalisation of tha financial stalernesls must alas be recorded appropriately in the iregular axpandiurs
register. In such an stance, no furdher aclion & slgo raquired with the exceplion of updating the note fo the Rnencial
statemaents.,

[regular expanditure that was incurred and idantifed during fha current financial year and for which condonemant is Teeing
awaited at yoar end must be recorded in the trregular expendilure regiatar, Mo further actisn |8 required with the excapfion
of updating the note Lo the fnancial slatemants.

Wiere iregular expendliure was incurred in the previous financil year and & only condoned in the fallowing fingncial
yaar, the register nd the disclosure nofa o the financial statements must be updsted with the amaunt condanad,

Iregular expenditurn that was incurred and Idantifed during the currerd financisl year and which was nel congoned Ly the
Coundl or the Board of Directers or the ralovanl autharity must be recorded approgriataly in the imegular expanditure
ragister, If liability for the iregular expendiiure can ba sliributed to a persan, a debt account must be created if such a
persan s lizble In law. Immediale steps must thereafter ba taken 1o recover the amount from the persan cancerned. if
racovery 15 not possible, the accounting afficer ar accounting sutharity may wilte off the amount as debt impaimmant and
discloze such in lhe relavant nole to the finandal slataments, The fregular axpendiurs register must also be updated
accordingly. Il the imegular expendituts has not been condened and no person i Hable in law, the axpenditure related
theretn must remain against the relevant pregrammelexpenditurg ltem, be disclosed as such in the nate to the financial
statemants and updated accordngly in the liregulsr expendiiure register.

1,20 Unautharised sxpenditure

1.21

Unauloised expandilure means overspanding of the appreved budgel or 8 main sctivity within the budge!,

Unautortsed expandilure |5 expendiure not in accordance with the approved annugl budget or in the main atbvity, not in
accordance willh (he purpose of e main aciity.

Financial risk management

The financlal rizk management is under the confral af the two sub-commiliaes of the board, the development rlsk
committes and the audit commilles.

Cash fow forecasts are prepared and adeguate ulilised homowing faciliies are monitored,
Intarest rate risk

[heposits altrac! intarest rates that vary wilh prime, The company policy ks 1o manage infarast rake risk so that fuciuations
i varisbie rates do nal have a malerial impact on surpkual deficit.

Cradit Flsk

Cradll ftak consists malinly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and Wrade debtors, The campany only deposite cash with
maior banks with high quality cradit standing and Emits sxpasure o any e countar-party.

Trada receivables comprise @ small cuslomer base. Managsment gvalupled credit risk relating fo customers on an
angoing besis, Credit guarantes insuranca is purchaged when desmed appropriate,

a5
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1,22 Transler of functions between entities under common contral
Dafinltlons
An acguirer is the enllty thal abteine control of the acquires of transfarar.

Carrying amoun of an assel or lishility s the amount at which an asaet or Eabilly |5 recognised in the shalemeant of
financial position.

Candral ia the power to govenn the financial and operating policies of another entlty so &5 lo benefit from ils actvities,

A fanction is an ilegrated sl of aciivites thal ks capable of being ponduclad and managed for purposes of schieving an
anflty's ohjectves, eilher by providing esonomic benefits or sandce potential,

A merger s the astablishment of & naw eambined enlily in which none of the fermer entities sblalns condral over any olner
anil o Bcquirer ¢an be identifled.

Tranafer date ls the date an which the acqulrer obtaing contral of the funciion and the fransferor fosea conlrol of that
funetion,

& transfer of funclisns I8 the resrgenization andior tha re-allecation of funclions betwasn entities by transfeming funclions
hetwaen amfilbes ar inlo anoliver enity.

A transfarce 1 the antity that refinquishes contral of a funcsion.

Comrmon cantrol - For a transacton or avent lo occlr between entiies under enmman conbal, the rangacton oF avent
heada to be underaken babwesn enfilios within the same sphers of government ar between enfities that are parl of tha
Eame seenamle antity, Enfifies that are ulimately conirollad by the same enfity before and after the tranafer of lunclions
are within the same economss: ently,

A funclion i an Integreted sel of 2cfivities that is capable of being conducled and managed for purposes of achiaving an

anlity's oblectivas, alther by providing economic benefits or service poterial, & function consists of mputs and processes

applied 1o these inputs thal have tha abilily to creats aubpuls, A funetian can aithar be @ part or a portien of &n ankity or

pan eopeiet of the whobe entity, Alllaugh functions may have outpuls, outputs are not required 1o qualify as a function,

The thraa alerments of a funcion are defined 23 follows:

«  Input: Any resource that oreates, or has the abllity to cresbe, sulpuls when Gne or marg processas arg applied to A

+  Process: Any system, standard, protocal, convention o ruls that whien appBed to an Input or inguls, creates or has
five ability to creale gulputs.

«  Qutput The resul of Inpute and processea applied o achieve and improve efficency. This may be in fhe ferm of
achleving sendoe delivery abjectives, or the delivery of goods andlor services.

|dantifying tha acquirer and transferor

For each transfer of funcliens betwean entliles undar comman canbral an aoquirer and transfaror ane Identified.  All
relevant facts snd circumstancas are considerad in idendifying the acquirer and Iranaferor.

The tenme and condiiona of & Wanafer of functions undertaken Detwean gnlitles under common control are set oulin a
binding arrangement. The binding arrangement governing the terms and condifions ef a transfer of funclicns may (dentify
which entity to the transacton of evenl & the jranaferar(s} and which enlity is the acquirer. \Whera e binding
arrangemenl does not clearly Identify the acquinar of the transferor, the: behaviour or acliona of the entilles may Indicate
which enilty is the acquirer and which enity iz the tranzfaros,

Drelamrining the acguirar inchedes a consideration of, amongs! other things, which of the enilfies Involved i the franafer of
funciions inillated fhe transaction or event, the relalive size of the enilities, a5 well as whether the assels or revenue of one
of the enlifies involved in the transaciion or event significanth ecaad these of the ather enlilies. |f ne acquirer can be
idantified, the transackion or event s aceounted for in lerma of the Slandard of GRAP on Mergers,

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
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{.22 Transfer of functions between entities under comman eontrol {continued)
Datarmining the transfer date

The acquirer and e fransferor idenlify the transfor date, winich s the date on which the acouirer abitaing cantrol and the
{ranaferor ks es contral of that funclion,

Al ralavan] facls &nd circumslancas are congiderad in idenlifying the fransfer date.
Assats acquired [transferved] and lizbilities assumed [relinguizhad]
The recagniion of assats and labilfles, is subject o the following condilions:

The assete acquired and the labiiies aseumad are parl of what had been agrasd in terms of the binding arrangernent (i
applicabia), rather than fhe resull of separate ranaactions.

Determining what | part of the transfar of functions transaction

WWhera the entily and the ransferor have a pre-sssting retalionship bafore or whan nagsliallons for & fransfer of fundtions
bagan, or whera a binding arrangement is entered Inta during the negofiations nat are separate from a lransfer of
funchions, sy amounts thal are nod part of what wara transfemred in & transfer of funclions ane identified. Thiz policy enly
applles lo the consideration fransferred and the assata acquired and Esbdilies assumed in a transfer of funcllgns as
governed by the terms and conditions of the binding srrangemant.

The fallowing factors ore considerad, which are neilther muluzlly exchsive nor individually conchisive, to detemine
whelher a fransaclion |e part of a lransfer or funclisn or whether the transaction 15 separate;

+  dihe reasons for tho transaction

. tha timing of the transaclion

Effectlva sottlament of a pre-axisting ralationship hotween tha entity (as acquirer) and transferor in a tramnsiar
of functions

A pro-edating relationship betwean e entily (as acquirer] and the fransferor may ke contractusl or nan-confractual, If 2
lransfer of functiona in effect ssifies a pre-axisting relationship, the endity (as aCquirar) recognisss a gain or joss,
measured as follows:
s for 8 pre-existing non-conbraciual relafionahip, fair value.
o fera pre-esting contractual relationship, the lasser of the following:
. the amaount by which e binding arangemant is favourable or unfavourabla from the perspactive of the entity
(a8 acquirar) when compared with terms for current markst ransactione for e same or similar Lems.
D the amount of any staled sebllement provisions in the binding arrangamant gvailable to the countarparly 1o
wham the canbrae k2 unfavourable,

If 1he latler is less, tve difference Is included as part of a transfer of funclicns aceounfing. The ameunt of gain or loes
racogrised may depend in part on whether the entity {as acquirer) had previously recognised a related asset or Rahilily,
and the reporbed gain or loss therefore may fter frarn tha smound caleulated by applying the above reguirements.

ar
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Flgures in Rand 2012 201

2. LOANS TOFROM SHAREHOLDERS

City of Johannesburg Medropalitan Municipality - Sweeping account T A02 10 102 455 847
Cily of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality - BRT Land and Bardrarms Priarity (54 803 96E) (GG 4T ]
Block Acguisilon Fund

2498 544 45973 299

Sweaning accound

The campany has a sweeping arangement with tha City of Johanneshbung Metropolitan Municipality whareby all cash B
swept on a daily basis to the City of Johannesburg htatropolitan Munkcipality's bank aceount, Interast is paid and sarmed
an this account at the Treasury rate. In previcus years, this amount has boan disclosed =5 part of cash and cash
equivelants.

Tha bosn has no terme and condilions and bears inlereatl st the ironsury rata,
BRT Land and Bertrams Priorty Block Aequisition Funds

Curing the 20082008 financial year, the Johannesburg Development Agency (S0G) Lid held money in the Alomey's
Trual account for the purchase of land for roads widening fiar the Bus Rapid Transil and the Berrarms Priarity Block. Altha
and of fhe 20082008 financial year, (hese funds were transfered to the Clty of Johannesburg Melropalitan Municipality.
Supsaquendly e funds were sransfarred back into the Johannesburg Development Agency'a sweeping accoun
admiristerad by the Cily of Johannesburg Wetropolitan Municeality.

The lean has no terms and condifions and bears interest at the weasury ratle.

Curran agsets £7 302 510 102 455 387
Current lisbilifies (54 803 06) (B6 477 HOE)

2 498 544 45879 200

3, TRADE AMD OTHER RECENVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Oiher daposits 237 B52 276 854
Sundry deblor 816 657 187 374
Related parly debiors 138 304 278 2068 274 BB

120 448 TET 268 741 227

Related party debtors relate o funds cwad by the City of Jehannasburg Metropalitan Municipality for eupanditure incunred
on cepital projects.

Bundry detblers ana made up of oulsia nding tenant rentals, prepald expanses and outstanding fees for use of JOA spEce.
Trade and other receivables pledged as seaurity '

Mo trade and ather reclevables wera pledged as sacurity at the &nd of the year.

Credit quality of trade and ether receivables

The cradit quatily of irsde and other recefvables thal are neither past nor dus nor impaired can be aszessed by reference
b estermal credit ralings (If available) or o historlcal infarrmatian aboul counterparty defaull ratas.

Trade and other receivablas are non-intarest bearing and are generally repayabla bebween 30 and &0 dzys.

a3
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3,  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVAEBLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS |sontinuad)
Trade recelvablas past due but not Impaired
Trade recoivables which are lesa than 3 monthe past dus ae nol congldered to be Impairad. At 30 Juna 201,
RE,500,083 (2011 R400,338) were past dus bul nol impaired because the debtor = the City of Johanneshurg
Matrapalitan Municipality and the possikiily of default is remale.
+3 months past dueg 5600 063 48 334
Trade regefvablas iImpairad
Outetanding deposits conaldered imacoverable wars irpalradfuitten off in the yesr under review.
Nemai Gonsuiting 107 244 -
4,  CAEH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents conaist of:

Cash on hand 3874 I5TE
Ring-fanced bank balancs 1 243 504 1192 505

1247 473 1 196 081

Ring-fenced bafance relale o money recelved from funders who have requesied saparate Bank scoounts for thelr funds.
This sccount is & eurent acsount held at ABSA.

The company's bank account is held ai ABSA, wiileh [ swept an a dally basis in lerms of an agreement with the City of
Joharnesburg Metropolitan hunicipality in arder to faciitale bettar cashfiew managamaend on an entity wide basis. The
aash awed by the Clly of Johsnnosharg Metropaiitan Municipality s reflected as an ameun due frorm the sharehdlder, The
balance at 20 June 2012 was RE7,302 510 (refar fo note 2).

a4
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Figuras in Rand 2012 2011
5 PROPERTY, FLANT AND EQUIPMENT
2012 2011 -
Cost!  Accumulaled Carrying value Cosh ! Accumulated  Carrying value
‘aluation depraciation Waluation dapreciation
and and
accumulztad acaumulated
impaifment Imnpairrment
Furrilure and fixturas 1100375 (2B 287) 572 078 1 058 327 (427 677) 30 650
Botar vahicles 138 132 (B3 548) 52 464 156 013 {56 348) 740 G665
Office equipmeant 93220 (40 148) 53074 &7 812 {33 360) 34 262
Computar Equipment 2531 752 (2 090 814 440 238 2 284 TAT {1 847 228} 444 431
Leasehold Improvemenls 5177 883 (881 BEE) 4 295 318 5177 BAA {815 303) 4 562 680
Computer Equipment 5 E51 834 (358 287} 403 544 348 116 (447 400 200 16
yaars - Servers
Lezgad assals A1 943 (82 TA5) 408 158 162 230 (162 230 -
Total 1W03E3 M7 (4085443) BT 574 3541 048 (2580854) 5052 294
Roconciliation of proparty, plant and equipment - 2012
Cpaning Additions Disposals  Depreciation Tolal
balancs
Furniture and Nxlures &30 650 42 042 - {100 621) 572 076
tolar vehicles 79 665 - - (AT 201) 52 464
Offica eguiprment 34 252 25 608 - {& Ta7) 53074
Camguter Equipment 444 434 263 256 (4 B45) {251 603} 440 B33
Leasahald improvemants 4 S82 580 - - (358 267) 4296 318
Corputer Equipsnent 8 years - Sanders 200 716 435 TES {18 852) {124 BB} 4503 544
Leased assels - 480 487 - (1 30y 408 158
E952204 1247 145 [23697)  (ASa168) BT 574
Reconcillation of property, plant and egqulpment = 2011
Opening Additions Disposals  Cepraciation Total
halanca
Furniture and fisturas BE0 348 G3ETE . {104 8TF) B30 G50
hator vehicles 108 837 - - (27 20 Th 85
Offics squipment 30383 1 600 - (G 541) a4 252
Computer Equiprment 580 G602 286G 740 {445} (442 516) 44 431
Leasahold improvemants 4 B8 BEI - - (266 083) 4 GE2 B0
Computer Equipment § yaars - Servers 338 415 22580 (7 830 {132 128) 200 716
Leased assals ' 42 542 - - 22 B43) -
& 804 330 366 224 {8 275) (1001 986) 5852 294
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Figuras in Fand 202 2011
& PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {continued)
The following leased assets are Included in Proporty, Plant and Equipment listed above
202 2011
Cost! Accumulated Carrying value Gost! Acourmclated  Carrying valua
Walualon depreciation ‘Welualion depracialion
Leased sesats - Electranlc 497 943 (82 785) 409 158 162 230 (162 230) -
Equipment
Aseata subject to finance lease (Mat carrying amciint)
Leasahold improvemanis 4 266 318 4 5&2 560
Leasad asseis 405 158 -
TTAT054TE 4562 680
Leasehold Improvamenis
Legsshold Improvements are caried a1 historical cost, The fille deads are registarsd in the name of the City of
Johannesburg Metropolitan Manicipality.
6. INTANGIBLE ASSETS
2012 2011 -
Cost { Aecumulated Carrying value  Cost! Accurulated  Carrying vake
Valualion amaortisalian Waluafion amortisalion
and and
accumitated accumulated
impgirment imipairment
Computar solbware, 14T 413 {1 258 841) 572 1287 413 {11032 BES) 193 74E8
inlernally genarated
Reconclliation of Intangible asseta - 2012
Orpening Amortization Tolal
halanca
Computar softwars, intarnally generated 195 TaE (165178} 38 572
Reconciliation of intanglble assats - 2011
Cipening Additions  Amorisation Teaal
balanee
Computer softwang, imemally gensraled 285 gag 88 200 {160 341) 183 748
il
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Figures in Rand ' 2012 2041
7. DEFERRED TAX
Defarrad tax asset [ {liability)
Frowisions B0E aFd f85 B98
Leames 119 236 B 0gd
Proparty, Plant and Eguipment & Intangibles (408171 (1222 807
Temparary differenca - S240C Allowance (1281 117) (2778 378)

1 661880) (2102 021)

Shown In Statament of Financial Position as follows:
Diefarrad tax assel 1027 308 RAT BG4
Dalarvad tax Hability (2443 782y (4000 3985)

(1416 474) (3103021}

Reconciliation of deflerad tax asset [ {liability}

At beginming of e year adoadzl) 4 6ET 185)
Cwiginaling lemporany differanca on langitle fived assels (165 664) (14722300
Movement in lemporary differencas 1615435 307EGTY
Leazes 111 170 (22 224)

{1861 980) (3103 021)

The deferred tax Eability arose cut of the implementation of the S24C allowanca. According to the Soiith Afrcan Revenue
Servics, entilies Were Naver set up o make profit In the case of the Johannesburg Developrent Agency (SOC) Ltd,
allhough the subsidy Tram 1he Clty of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipality does net cover the oparalionsl expardilune,
wa were able 1o genarata sufficient management feas bo end ug in & aurplus pasition. The surplus is viewed as unspent
alloealion by the Soulh Aldcan Revenue Service. The South Adrican Revenue Sarvice then allows a S240 allowande
which gives rige o deferred tax.

FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION

Minimum |ease payments dus

= wilthin oive year 210324 39 859

- in second to fifth yaar Inclusive 333 044 -

£43 235 30 820
less: fudure finance charges {197 485) {11 084)
Present walue of minimum lease payments 425 850 20816

Firanes lease payable '
Opening balance 26 815 03 047

Lease obligation currenl year 4id 670 (5813
Laasn payrnents (A7 635) (58 319)
425 850 28 815
en-current lishilities 285 143 -
Currend Babilities 140 TOT 25 815
426 850 2B 816

Tha JOA had leased 3 pholocopier machines from Gesteiner Fmance (Ply) LI for & peried of 3 yoars, The lease
agreement provides for monthly payments of BE 244 in advanee and no residual valse, The contract with Gesbelner
Financs (P} Lid came Lo an end and the contract lo provide printing ssrvices has since been awarded o & new sarvice
provider, A new lease agreement was signed with Motswake Ofice Sellions (Ply) Lid.

42
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Figuras in Rand 2012 2011

10.

11.

1L

FINANCE LEASE QBLIGATION {continuad)

Th JOW his leased 24 photocopler machines from Matawaks Office Solutlons (Ply) Lid for a perlod of 3 years. The loasa
agrasment provides fer manthly payments of R17,527 in advance and no rosidual value.

The JOA had leased 2 fax machines from Gestalner Finance (Ply) Lid for a perod of 3 years. The legge agreemeant
pravided far manthly paymentes of R426 in advance and rasidual vl

TRADE AMD OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

Trace payables 7142689 171188337
Deposits received TH 595 47 160
Accruad expensas 1 BA7 079 5168 516
Retantions 54 780407 85374146
Sundry Creditors 1 067 LBG 4 310 Ol
Releted party craditor 268 2832

84974 717 244079 £11

WAT PAYAELE
Mat VAT payable g244 154 10320436

PROVISIONS - BONUS

Resonciliation of provielons - bonus - 2041

Opening Additons  Utilized during Totzl
Balancs the year
Pesformance bonus 2 (0385 aok 2 477 938 (2 035 B2E) 2477 938

The performance management system is dasigned 1o ensure that the JOA's business siralegy i tramslated into
megsurable koy performance areas and indicators for employess. Each empleyes concluded & performancs
managernent contract with a scorecard and a performance raview in respect of the 201112 financial year will be
completed during Auguat 2012, Borus payments to qualifying amployass wil be said afier the finalisation of the 2011112
audt and upon receipt of an ungualified audit repart fram the Auditor Genaral.

PROJECT FUNDS PAYABLE

Project Funds

Balanca beginning of year 18 717 564 12 776 087
Incame lor the year 41 556 851  TAT 870 185
Expenditura for the year (4BT 248 O0A) (765 034 728)

T ip0z5800 15 74T 654

Funds Payable

Jewrel Gity 13130 13130
Constitution HE TE el 4 811 883
Falvin Fowar 220002 220002
Johannesburg Watar : 1 BEEETE 1 B68 a3
Hon-BRT (Transporatian) 7163 350 7 598 010
Indushizl Development Conparation O88 653 a8 653

Brurma Lake Rehabililation TaT 182

10025500 16747 554

43

2011/12 Annual Report

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012

C113



Johannesburg Development Agency

Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC) Ltd
{Registration number 2001005101407)
Annual Financlal Statements for the year ended 30 June 2042

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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13

14,

16.

16.

CONTRIBUTION FROM SHAREHOLDER

Authorised
100 Ordnary Type A shares of R1 each 100 100

lzauad
0 Orelinary Type A shares of R1 5141 G0
Share pramium 16 277 564 168277 664

16 277 624 16277 624

All issued shares ara fully paid up by the City of Johannesburg, The City of Johanneshurg paid a share premium for hese
shares. The insial amount was issued In 2002 and was R3,430,684. The balance of thiz amount was paid o the JOA in
20003,

REVEMUE
Drevalegrment management (e 1B A0021E 30437 427
Giovemmeant grants 24 110000 27 637 000

42 910 246 52074 427

The amaount included in revenue arlzing from sxchanges of goods or
sarvices are as follows:
Developrrent management fees {8800 216 50437 427

The amount ineluded in revenue arlsing from non-exchange transactions Is
as followa:

Transfer revenue
Govemmant Grant 24 190000 21637000

Basle on which fair value of inflowing resources was measured

Transfers
Transfor of afice equipment fram the 2010 Office

Office furnitara was transterrad from the 2010 deparimant when one of the employess was transferrad to the BRT project
yeam. The fair value wes determined to be the sarme as the camying value of traneferred assels a3 the time af the trangfor.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS AMD SUBSIDIES

Other granis and subsidies 24 110000 21 837 000

Changez In level of government grants

Based on the allecations sat oul by the Division of Revenue Act, no signiflcant changes in the.level of govesnment grant
funding are expeciad over the farthceming 3 financial years.

INVESTMENT REVEMNUE

Intorest ravenue

Bank 3806 276 8723 453
Interest ehargad on frade and other recaivables 6 Q04 12 674

3 882 280 6 736 027
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Figures in Rand ) 2012 2011
17. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS
Basic 24 186 020 22 003 880
Prawigion far Donuses 2 477 930 21036 695
UIF 132 870 147 2da
Wi 207 055 213 348
DL 231 &Ba 222 388
Graup life banefi 506 8T2 386 076
Lepye pay provision charge (147 427} 202 087
BOMEXCO bonuess peid = 1 TE3 008
27 483 816 26 9348 839
Ineluded in the amployes related costs are the following key managemeant personnel (a5 relferred to in note 20}
Remuneration of Chicf Executive Officer (Resigned 15 July 2010)
Annual Remunaration - 54 126
Parformance Bonuses - 102 508
Allowences - 5000
- 161 631
Remuneration of Acling Chief Executive Officer (Appointed 1 July 2010)
Anrusal Remunaralion 1 200 720 1 131 a0
Parformancs Bonusas 144 086 G2 403
1 344 D08 1194 303
Remuneration of Chief Finance Mflcar
Aol Remuneration 1060 817 955 (6
Performance Banuges 127 298 B0 783
1188 115 1024 779
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17. EMPLOYEE RELATED COSTS (continued)
Remuneration of Chief Operating Olfleer (Resigned 15 November 2011}
Annual Remuneration G42 411 1 023 800
Pararmance Bonuses . TO 832
Allpasncas 45 000 106 000
Ba7 411 1202 732
Remuneration of other Executive Managars
Annual Remunaration 088 819 1053 4G
Perarmanca Bonuzes 163 663 a1 166
Allvwances 12 GO0 50000
1155082 1 144 734
Remuneration of Sanior Doevelopment Managors
Anneal Remunesalion 2 408 908 1717 818
Parfarmanca Bonusas 3T 820 100 557
Mllowances 202 000 187 B08
2428828 2 008 181
18. ADMIMISTRATIVE AND MANAGEMENT FEES
Mdminletratlon and management fees 2684 734 413 778
18. DEPRECIATION AND AMORTISATION
Fropery, plant and squipmit 453 188 1007 g84
rtargible assets 185177 160 341
1013 348 1162 328
20. INTEREST PAID
Bank overdraft 49 805 -
Finance bases 29 042 23 BA5
T8 847 2k 685

AB
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Figurea in Rand ' 22 2011
. GENERAL EXPENSES
FAdverdlaing P23 770 1014 525
Audibors ramuneralion 1871 486 1 820 556
Bank charges 22178 18723
Chief Exacutive afficers spacial projects 30000 3a 70
Computer expenses 1 B2 805 1 578 335
Consulting and professional faes 1231122 gE5 T8
Project co-ordinatien fags G D00 -
Hygiane and office plant services 194 273 2065 530
Insurance 482 205 901 170
Legal faas TEB 042 913 add
Markeating 2413 424 2 764 585
Motor vehicle expenses 12 B&1 O 458
Cperational expendilurs 668 138 534 438
Flacement oo 145 485 416 817
Plannkng and siratagy 1 873 BRE 1 075 495
Fostage and oourer 8059 A203
Frinting &nd stationarny 465 490 434 323
Project maintenance cosls 61 848 G FEE 172
Securlly {Guarding of rmunicigal prepery) G156 843 111387
Staff welfara 415 658 578 283
Telephona and fax 550 694 &08 017
Training T2T 340 T44 330
Travel - local 2835 40 538
\HMilitias E82 140 47T BES
16 00T 6&7 22 741 282
22, DEBT IMPAIRMENT
Bad debis 107 344 -
Thve amouns written off relates 1o an uncollectsble dopost that was paid to Nemai Cansiiting (Piy) Lid,
23 TAXATION
Major components of the tax income
Daferrad
Originating and revarsing lemporary 4fferences (144104 {1 584 165)
Raconciliation af the tax exponsa
Reconclation between applicable tax rale and average effective tax rate.
Applicable lax rate 28,00 % 28,00 %
Tax affect on permaneant differencas (33 44)% [32,00)%
Add; Tax affect of non-deduclible expenses 544 % 4,00 %
- % -

Mo provision has been made for 2012 fax as the entily has no tzxabla income. The eslimaled lax loss availabla for sel

off against future texable income s R 52 427 490 (2011: R 52 427 490).

47

Cl17



Johannesburg Development Agency

2011/12 Annual Report

1 July 2011 to 30 June 2012
Johannesburg Development Agency (SOC) Ltd
{Regstralian number 2001005 101407)
Annual Financial Staterents for the year endad 30 June 2012
Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
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24, AUDITORS' REPUNERATION
Extarmal audd fees 1271 308 1130 478
Internel audit fees TO0 158 TOOOTT
1 971 466 1 820 B56
25, OQPERATIMG LEASE
Operating loases - a8 lessor (incoma)
Minimum lease payments dug
= within one year 411 915 408 338
= i second lo fifth year 486 229 G47 745
98 144 1 056 120

The operating beasa income relales o rendal of the Bus Factory affices 1o tanants. The loase agreemeants genaral pediod

s three yesars and ks baged on a renlal fee per sguare nnetre of rantal space.

28. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS
Exacutive

iz

T hendres {(Acting Chief Executive Ofised)

2011

T Mendrew {Acting Chief Executive Officar)
L Bethlehem (Chief Executive Officer-Resigned 15 July 2010

Emcluments  Performance Total
bonus
1200 720 T4 QBE 1 344 Boa
Emolumsents  Performancs Total
bonus
1131 900 B2 403 1194 2003
59126 102 505 161 831
1184 028 164 208 1 358 934

A48
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Figures in Rand

26.

Fi

DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS (continued)
Non-seecutive

a2

L Wdula {Chairmarn-Retred 24 April 2012)

3 Simelane (Chabman-#ppointed 24 Apal 2042)

P Fusbu (Appainted 24 Agril 2042)

D Lenwis (Resigned 24 April 20103)

W Lila

B bajola (Appointed 24 Aprl 201)

P bdashiane {Appointsd 24 April 2012)

P Masilo

L Matlhape {Ratired 24 Apdl 201 2)

O Maidu

A Rajsh {Appointed 24 April 2012)

& R Rotistan {festyned 24 Aped 2013}

W Thwala (Appointed 24 April 2012)

K Woyn (Indegendent Audit Commilles member)

J Wergaline (Independent Audit Commities member)
K Gevender {Indepandant Audit Committes mamber)

2011

L Wulula (Chainperson)
J Boggenpoel (Indepandent Audit Committse maniber)

M Lika

F Mdasila

L kdailhape

O Maidu

A R Rorstan

1 Moo {Independent Audit Commitles member)

CASH USED IN OPERATIONS

Surplus

Adjustmants far:

Depreciallon and amarfisation

Loss on dispasal of asseta

Dslat Imgal rment

Movemants in provighons

Annual charge for defared Lax

Donations received

Interest on finance leases

Changes in working capital:

Trade and othar recaivables from exchange iransaclons
Consumer dedtors

Trada and other payables fram exchange transaclions
WAT
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2012 2011
Directors' fees Retalner fees Tokal
47 820 33 062 80 632
13890 - 13 890
12 800 - 12 900
13890 - 15 840
104 170 18 840 124 010
B 930 . £ 930
10842 - 10842
a7 460 18 840 BT 300
44 Bad 16 533 61177
64 480 10 840 B4 320
8930 - 54930
15 E72 - 16 872
2930 - 893t
23 78D 19 840 49 800
< "iE0 - 4 860
& 980 - 4 960
452 308 128 865 599 283
Dieactors' fees Retalner faes Tetal
5T 540 2678 a7 216
A4 THD 19 840 54 580
30880 149 840 5O B30
a4 010 19 840 143 850
71430 18 840 a1 270
42 656 19 840 52 486
48 G20 18 840 G 460
50 582 18 840 70432
29 TG0 18 840 49 G00
499 018 196 395 697 413
38583 402 O 484 329
1013 345 1 162 328
23697 8275
107 344 .
4432 244 20358985
(14410400 (1 684 165)
(28 734) .
(28 040 (22 B85}
139 282 440 2704 381
(107 3443 -
(178105 007) {20 498 524)
{1108 282) (29495 C58)
{36 945 975) (36 205 480)
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Figures in Rand 2012 2041
23. COMMITMENTS
Commitments in respect of capital expenditura:
Authorised and not yet contracted for
*  Kliptown Renawal Project 10000030 43000000
+  Orlando East Station Precinc 10 366 000 13 772000
J Mancafiald Stafion Precinct 20000 000 -
*  Randburg 1000 000
’ Jabulanl 1000 000

42 386 000 23 772000

Authorized and contracted for
+  Confractiual costs committed T4 054 208 171 S2T 076

The conlractual costs commitied arae from the releled conetruction work which was conbracted for bul not yet campleted
on 20 June 201,

Thia expanditure will ke financed from:
Govarnment Grants 116 440 209 1895600 075
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Flgures in Rand 212 2011

© 28,

CONTINGENCIES

2011

I 2005, the JOA enlerad Into a confract for the construction of Baragwanath Public Transpert Faciity, the supplier had
FIGE provide a fnencial guaraniee for lhe contract. On 13 Febeuary 2008, the JOA cancelled the contract becausa the
supgliar had defaulled, The JOA then turmed to the FIGE demending an amownt of R1,400,000. The matter wars taken to
couriul, and then judgemeant was granled In fevour of tha JOA. In August 2007, FIGE appealed and lost the appeal. The
court issued & wiil af execution for the judgement of debt but the Sheriff retemed the writ with an explanalion thal she
could mot find any FIGE assels to meed the judgement, JOA Bas Investigated the locstion of FIGE assels but was
unsucessful and b5 mow considering shandoning e matter. Therefors, the chances of recouering the R1,400,000 are
non-existent at this stage, Legal confimation hee sebesquently confirmed thet the amount of this claim la R1,7564,279
plus interest at @ rate of 16,5% per annum from 9 March 2006 fo date of payment phis cosls,

Progrese mada in 2012 - Dua 1o (e improbebility of ever recovering on the wiit of axecuion the Accourling Officer has
rasohad to abanden e wrlt,

The JOA has entered Into lagal proceedings regasding the relocstion of ilegal occupants In various buildings around the
Berrama Priarity Block. Eviclion proceedings have been instiled in the Soulh Gawleng High Cewnt. Negotiations aee
underway wilh ilegal accupants to settle (he maller out of court.

Progrese made in 2042 - Seme of the Begal occupants have agreed to be reallocated lo properies operated by the
Joharnesturg Social Houzing Compsny, The few that would be left becauss af inatdity 1o meet manthly rental payments
will be accomodated by the Departmant of Howsing.

The JOA was sarved wilh a summana from Leaf Socurity {Ply) Lid for services randered for the perlod of December 2010
bo January 2011, The JOA had contracted Leal Security for sscurity services at a conatruction gita in Bedrams. The JDA
has subsequently fled an intantion to defand tha matter at the Maglsirales Court,

Frogress made in 2012 - Nagotisfions 1o selile the maiter out of court are al an advanced stage and will be finalised by
eivd of Qctober 2012,

O tha 12 July 2011, the Johanresburg Development Agency (S0C) Lid, recaived & summans frem an applicant, Gilllan
Anne Frasl, dlaiming compensation for badily injuries she susteined at ona of the JOA's development sites. in i case aof
an advarse finding against the J0A, the JOA will be liablle for an amount of R405,108. The Cily of Johanneshurg has fled
s indention 1o defend the mattar an behalf of all the cited respandents,

Progreza made in 2012 - The matter has not advanced singe the Cliy's filing of their legal papers.

The JOA has inifiated arbiiration proceedings with ane of ils contraciors {o deferming whether a claim for exdension of
time rejected by the JO& s reasomabia, In the svent, that the finding s againat the JDA, the JOA will heve o pay tha
rcontractor an astimated amount of 1,5 millon ncluding coata and dishursemants).

Prograss mede in 2012 - The mabler was determined and an agresment wae concleded with contractar,

Lellers of demand recaived in the 2010011 financial year and the Intentlons of certsin parties to sue agalnst the JOA thal

was recaived Incledad:

«  Tatal South Africa (Ply) Limited for loss of income as a result of JOA BRT construction waorks - R275 03428, The
mabler is siill belng negotiated, Progress made in 2042 - Tha matter has no pragresa and no eourt action iniliated.

< EasiHold (Ply) Lid Srading as Easipack for parking management services at 1 and 2 Central Plage - R498 526.02,
Blue 10 Holdings (S0C) Limited, on whose behelf Easipark provided sendeas, eetiled the amaunt in full. Progress
madea in 2012 - Malter has nat moved,

2012

The Cily of Johannesturg and the JOA were served with & summens by Tembu Corvenience Cenlre GG, trading a2 a
canvaniance slore and Engen Fual dealaeship, for loss of income amounting to mare than B17 milion, a3 a result of BRT
consiruciion works. The Gily has filed s pepers defending the matler by the Scuth Gauleng High Court, We are still
ewailing trial dates.
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Figures in Rand ET 2011

28

GONTINGENCIES {sontinuad)

Up e May 2008, there wes a thinking thal the JDA was regarded as an agent and nol the prncipsl and thus was nol
albowad o ascount far Output and Input Velue Added Tax on capilal expendiure funded by the Cily of Jehannesburg on
projects relled out by the JDA, This wiew was uphedd In a ruling fssuad by the Soulh Alcan Revenuve Service dated
February 2008, with reference number TCS0122008.

Subasquent to the said rling, and further engagement with the Soulh Afrean Revenus Service lhrough Deloitte, a
socond rwling by SARS dated 13 May 2008, stalzd the following: “The JOA acled as & principal and not an agent on
behalf of the ©OJ, Furdhar, the payments receivad by JOA conslilited of consideration for a tawable supply which is
stibject to VAT at the standard rata in terms af secllon 7 (1) () of the VAT Act, Furthermore, J04 should have accounted
for autput fax on the recelp! of the consideration for those services and could have been permilied to elalm the VAT
icurred on goods and sendces, perfaining 1o the agresment, as input 1mc" SARS requested the JOA to racalcudale AT
for 2l the periods starfing with the 2002 year through to 30 June 2007,

Deloiits wera appointad by the JOA to caiculate the net Value Added Tax payablel raceivable to f from the South Afiican
Revenue Service for the periads 2002 to 2007,

A provision for Value Added Tax payahle of R8,261 846 was raised in the financial stalements.
During the 20171 financlal year, an amounl of R7,848,885 was paid over fo SARS based on celculations prepared by

Delofite. In June 2012, SARS conducted an audit of the work perfarmed by Deloitte after which an assessment wil be
issued, A nal assesement has bl not baan lssued by the South African Revenue Sendcn.
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212 2011

30,

RELATED FARTIES
Relalionshlps

Comtrolling anfily
Ottver membera of the group

Members of key management {inciuded in @mphoyes costs)
Related party balances
Amounts included in Leans,

Trade and ether recolvables regarding related parties
ity of Johanneshurg Metropolitan Municipality - Projects

Departiment of Transportation, Planning and Management - Frojacts

Iner City Funding - Projects

Depadment of Tranapartation, Planning and Management - Trada
Inner City Funding - Trade

City of Matrapalitan Municipality - Trade

Jabannesburg Water (30C) Ltd - Projecs

Dapartmen of Emdranment Management Sarvicas - Projects
Department of Heallh < Projecis

ity of Jehannesburg Housing - Prejects

Johannesburg Water (300} Lid - Trade

Diapariment of Environment Managament Serices - Trade
Depardment of Heallh - Trase

City of Johanneaburg Howsing - Trade

Amounts included in Loans,
Trade and ather payablas regarding related parties
Cily of Johennesburg Melropoliban Municipality

Felated party transactions
City of Johannesburg Matropalitan Munlcipality - nterest recelved

City of Johannasburg Metropalitan Municipality - Grant
City of Johanneshurg Metropalitan Municipality - Interest peid

Paymants to related parties
City of Jehannasburg Metropalitan Municipatity

Puschases from related paries ara fisted abave.

The City of Johannasturg Metrapedtan fMunicipslty
Johanneskung Secial Housing Company (SOC) Lid
CHy of Johannesburg Property Company (S0C) Lid
City Power Johannasburg (SOC) Lid

Jonannesburg Cily Parks NPC

Johannesourg Development Agency (S00) Lid
Johanneshurg Matropalilen Bus Sendoes (S0C) Ltd
Johannesburg Roada Agency (S0C) Lid

Tha Jehannesburg Teurlsrn Company NPC
Jdohanneshurg Water (50C) Lid

I'he Metropolitan Trading Company (SO0} Lid
Pikitup Johannasburg (SOC) Lid

Roodepoer Cliy Thealre NPC

The Johannesburg Chic Theatre (SOC) Pty Ltd

The Johannasturg Fresh Prodeca Market (S0C) Ltd
Thee Jotannesbung Zoo NPT

Refer to note 18

BEBZ 0GR 14 157 46T
81076200 101 844 505
21 427 3B6 46 832 250
2363 BEE 0888104
1071360 2331813
344103 715 0BO
A0E 547 1 776 &89

4 783 230 £:29 000
7 853 434 .
487 38 .
28 500 -
230 651 -
302 B72 -
33 THT -

128 384 200 266 274 985
253 2 662
3808376 6673648
24110000 21637 000
{49 205} -

27 866 471 26 310 848
B0 408 1825 012

B3
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Figures in Rand M2 2m

0.

.

3.

=9

RELATED PARTIES (continued)

These servicas were supplied by the related paries and the City of Johannesburg Metropolitan Municipalily In terms of
Seckon 45 of the Municipal Supply Chain Managemant of 2005,

Bowards o spouses and closs family members
Hone
Terma and condilions

There are no tarms snd conditions and no interast is dus o payable fo any related parfles Bated above. All related party
frangactions are on arm's length basis,

CHANGE IN ESTIMATE

Praperty, plant and aguipment

The useful life of computer equipment was ssfimated in 2011 to be 3 years, In the eurren? pariod manageman have
reviged their estimate to & years, The affect of this revision has decreased the depeeciation charges for the current and
fulure periods by R 63 574

The Impact an deferred fax is R18,204.

The impact an the cash flow slatemant is Rnd,

Computar Equipment - B yeara

The wsedul e of the prnters and servers was eslimated in 2091 to ba & years, In the current perled managamant have
tenised thelr extimate to G years, The efiect of this revision has decreased the deprecizlien for the currenl and frlure
periods by R 22 906

The impact on daferved tax is RE.414.

Tha impaclon the cash flow statement s Roll.

PRIOR PERIOD ERRORS

Statement of financial position

froject Funds Paybable - current liakilities {10025 5005 {16717 553)

Praject Funds Paybebla - non-cumment Babllities 10 025 500 16717 553

CAPEX VAT - revoersal of provizion . (412 961)
- (412 B61)

Statement of financlal performance
CAPEX VAT - reversal of provislon - 412 951

The correction of the eror(s) results in the restatemant of comparative figuras as follows - 2012

Project funds payabla - reclassification from current liabity o nor-cunrent lability
CAPER WAT - reversal of provilon reised in prior years

RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk management
The enfity's cverall risk marapemant strategy ts done in conjunciion wilh the central treasury depariment within the City of

Johanheshurg Metrapolitan hMunicipality, The treasury department ideniifies, ovabsgles and hedges financial risk In co-
operation with ha company.
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements
Figures In Rand L 2011

33, RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liguidity risk

Tha enfity's risk te Bouldity |5 2 result of the funds available to cover fulure commitments. The entily manages llquidity risk
Ihaugh &n engoing review of fulure commimeants and credi faclities.

830 June 22 Loss than 1 Between 1 and Between 2 end  Over § years
yeaar 2 yoars 8 years

Trade and ather peyablos {B4- 974 712) - - -

Af 30 June 2011 Liss than 1 Between 1 and Between 2 and  Cver § years
year 2 s 5 years

Trada and olher payablas {244 078 a0a) - - -

Interast rate rlsk

The company has significant inlerest-bearing essets. This has a direct bearing on the compay's Incoma snd oparsling
cash fows. The sssel subdect to the above is the swaeping accourd with the Clty of Johanmesburg Metropolitan
Municipality. The following table highlights the likaly cashliow sk to the company in the event of an interest rabe
fluclustion, The currenl Interast rata is 5.55%,

Interast rate - Sweaping account 22 2011
4.59% EY3 025 1 024 559
£.59%: (573 026) {1 024 550)
Cradit risk

Gredit risk conslsts mainly of cash depesits, cash equivalents, dervalive fnencial instruments and rade debdors. The
gnlity only deposits cash wilh major banks with high qualy eredit standing and limits expasure 1o any one counler-party.

Trade receivables comprlaes of a amall cusiomer base, Management avalialed credit risk relating to customers on an
ongodng basis. If customers ang independanty rated, these ralings are vead. Otherwise, if thore | no Iindependant raling,
risk control assesses the cradit quality of e customer, taking info accound its financlal position, past cxperlence and
akhar bsetars, Individual risk limils are eet based on intermal or external ratings in accordance wilh fimils aet by the boarel,
With the City of Jehannesburg Metropalitan Municipality baing the sole debtor of the Johannesburg Developmeant Agancy,
credit fisk on trade receivables ks consldered minimat,

Financlal azsats meposed to credit fak at year end were a8 follows:

Financlal Instremeant 22 2011
Loans fram shareholders - refer fo nobe 2 2498 544  458TH 230
Trada and ather receivables - refer to nota 3 128619131 288 741 22V

GOING CONGERN

The annual financial stalements have been prepared on the basis of accounting pelickss appbcable to a going concern.
This basle presumes thal funds will be avsilsbla io Fnance fulure operations and that the reallsation of asss and
settlament of Bavilifes, eontingant obligalions and commitments will ocgur in the ardinary coures of business.,

35. FRUITLESS AMD WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE
Reconciliation of frullless and wasteful expenditure
Opening balance 20 520 -
Unauthorised expendifure current yaar - 20520
Approved by Council or condoned (20 520) .
. 20 520
56
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Motes to the Annual Financial Statements

Figires in Rand 2012 2011

35, FRUITLESS AMD WASTEFUL EXPENDITURE (oontinuad)

38,

During the 201002011 nancial year a lagitimate looking email was sent o the JOA purporting 1o be frem an authanic
supplier reguesiing changes to fhair exksting bank detzils. It was laler dizeoverad affar funds had been lransferred that the
ermall was fraudulent. Gobode Forensic And Investigalive Accounting (Phy) Lid (3FIA) were appointad te imveatigate the
fraudulent diverslon of the supalier paymant Into the unauthorissd bank account. The amount baing invasligated was
R20,530. The GFIA concluded Whal 28 a reswil of the Supply Chain Co-ordinator's and IT Officer's negilgence and some
weaknesses 0 JOA'S intemal controls the entity suffered financlal lesses to the amounl of R30820. GFIA further
conciuded that thers was no proof that the implicatad employess boneflted financally from fhe faud. Thay also
recommandes that disciplinary action be taken against the implicated individusle for negligence. GFIA'S recommendation
wes usheld by managéement and disciplinery charges wera labefled againsl the two Individuals on the grounds of
nagligense in the discharge of their dulies, Both employees were lssuad with wilken warming lettars. The case has also
heen reported to the SAPS and [t iz with the commercial crimes unil. There has not been any feedback from SAPS since

the case was reporiad.

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE

Raconciliatian of irregular expenditure

Opening balanca BB 58Z .
Movemenl far the year 25 847 Aaa 592
Reported to the Gouncl and condaned {1812 239) -
. 888 592
Detalls of irregular expanditura = 2044
Appoiniment of supplier without following 76 gug
SCM process
Caontract nol revenwed atter 3 yeara 222182
Confracl exteneions - Kiklo Fisk Managemend Solubions 22774
- 4 Fifleen 237 380
= Metraofle 20370
BEB 582
Detailz of iregular expendlture - 2012
Coniract exlensions = Wiklo Risk Managemeant Solulions 160 144
- Ricah 63 110
- hatrofite 10 GYE
- Arcus Gibb ag4 M4
923 647
2011
Appointment of supplier without following SCM process

On complation of the Ridgewslk project, the JOA commenced wilh the planning for the storm waler upgrada projacl, lhe
implementation of which starled In April 2010 and the project was complated by the end of Ociaber 2010, The Depardment
of Planning and Lrben Managament (DPUM) office approvad the Meighbourhood Developmant Partiership Grant (N D)
funding for ha edditional praject during Febresry 2010 and the funding had 1o be spent end June 2010,

Oye o tirme contraints the then JDA Developmend Mansger extended the appaintment of the quanfily surveyor a3 a
camdractar had to be sppointed by Aprl 2040, The quantily supveyor's senvices ware fequived lo compils the bill of

guaniites and assist with the finallzing the fendar decumeant. [t was nod praciios to go outon tendar for the consultant and

contrastar 2 fhe same tma as thers waz a nead for quanfity surveyor bo prepare the tandar for & conlractor.

AF the mesling of the 23 Novemnber 2010, the JDA Bid Agjudication Committes rasobved 1o the JDA Chief Ewecutive
Oifficer {CEQ) to rafify e extenglon of the appeiniment of Koor Dindaar Mothel fer the Stretford Station Made Project for

an amaunt ¢l R37E,505.56 (excluding VAT)
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18

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE (continued)

Contract not revigwad alter 3 vears

The condract belwean the JOA snd Geststner Finance was signed on 25 Seplember 2007, with effective ¢ale on 25
Movember 2007, The condract bas exislad for a period of more than three years (from 26 November 2007 to 25 November
20610} and the conltract ks siill aclive to data.

An extension for a peried of 1 year was issued 1o he service provider while a tendar process of appainting a new service
pravidar ia being earied oul.

Contract extenaions

Hiklo Risk Mansgament Sollons
The appraval for the extension of Kikla was approved al a BAC meating held on 22 May 2009, The rascluton was that a 2

year contract be concluded wilh Kikla. For the year 2010 no confract was concluded as the Inlfisl confracl included a
duration clause which allows for the cantract renewal on the anniversary for successive periods of welve months subject
1o an eacalation in faes, During Ihe yaar under review, a letter of appomiment was signed between JDA and the service
provider for & perlod of tweha manths with raferencs to the original conlract's terms and conditions, A tendar process of
appainting a new sendee provider is being camied oul.

3 Fiftean

The approval of the extension of 3 Fifllesn was approvad at a BACG meeting held on 22 May 2008, Thia resohution was thal
the annual sendce level agreement be spproved for renewal an a yearly basis, Ne conract was concluded for 2011 28 the
sesvice provider was Informed on 4 May 2041 ragarding the lermination of the contract. A tander process of apnaointing a
niew aervice provider is being caried out,

Ietrafile
Mowing of archlves from one senice provider to another servics provider poses a risk of documents Being lost andfor
misplacad. |t is management's view that archive services cannol ba chopped and changed from ona year Lo the ofhar,

The eriginal contract with Metrofile was stgned in 2008,

a7
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Ja.

ar.

38,

|RREGULAR EXPENDITURE {continuéd)
2012

Contract axlensions:

Kiklo Risk Managemsni Salutions

A the BAC masting held on 13 December 2014, an ameunt of B158,143.83 {uxl. VAT) pald to Kikdo for back-up sanices
for & paricd of five mantiza fram July 2011 to Movember 2011 was recommendead to tha CEQ for ralilicetion in order 1o
regularise (e inegular expendilure In terms of the Auditor General's indings.

Rigah

Al the BAC meeling held en 13 Decembar 2011, an amount of RE3, 109,67 (mel. VAT) paid to Ricoh for prinker sarvices
for & periad of five monthe from July 2011 ta Novernber 2091 was recommendad o the CEQ for rafification in arder ta
regularies tha irmegular sxpenditure in terms of the Auditar General's findings,

Metrafils

A the BAC meeting beld on 09 December 2011, an smount of R10,674.51 (excl VAT) paid to Metrofila for archive
ganicas for a perlod of five months from July 2001 to Movember 2011 was recofmmended to the CEO for rallfication in
order to regularise the irregular expandilure in tesms of the Auditor Genesals findinge.

Arcus Gibb

Work te the valua of R80T 7848 (e WAT) for scope incremse to Arcus Gibb for Jane colourisation design and
implermentation for the BRT project was recommended o the CED for rafificatian. Arcus Gibb's addifional ecope had nol
been approvad by the BAC.

ACTUAL OPERATING EXPENDITURE VERSUS BUDGETED OFERATING EXPENDITURE
Refar o nate 37 for tha comparison of actusl operating cxpendilwe versus budgeatad expendiure,
In the Statemeant of Comparallve and Actual Information, the narrative explainations on maljor variancas are as follows:

Invastment Revenus - Tho pasiive varance of REEZ 280 relates to interest eanmed over the financisl yaar on a favourable
hank balance, The favourable bank balence was largely due lo BRT land scquisition funds which City Treasury
bransferred into the JOAS bank account at the beginring of the 2000010 financial year. The timeous ssitienent of capex
clalme by Cily of Johannesburgs Transporation Depertmant has #lae had a posiiive effecl on our favourable bank
balancs and has conbributed to he intarest samsed,

Other own revanus - The negalive warlance of A2801 885 was as a resull of an undar recoveny af developmant
management fees, Developmment management faes ars lowar than budgatad due to enly 73% of the annual capital
budgel has been ulilsed ie. 69% BRT and 98% on olher funded projacts, The BRT capital budget was underspent mainky
due to two reasans Le. Tha Mayoral Commiltes's decision to reroule a trunk routs of the BRT service and the lower than
expected conatruction pricing coste that ware recelved,

Emplayee casts - The negative varisnce is due to funded posifions thel were vacant during the year, The filing of these
positions were withheld dus b tha moratorium on the filing of vacant posts by the office af the Clly Managar,

Other ependiiore - The negative verlence of R2,849,432 arese from vardancss In the 1T expenses, repairs &
malntenanca, planning & alrategy and elecommenications line Hems, The ming of axpendifure redaling to some of the IT
relited servces resullad in amaunts being classified as paymenis in advance and not accountsd for in the eurrent year
under reviews, Sarme of the planned feasibiity studles wers nal undedaken and this resulted in the undes-apanding in e
Flanning & Stestegy fine fem, The telecommunicatons as well as otier sxponditure lng ilems were pure savinge as a
reault of irict cost contral measuras implementsd by managemant

ACTUAL CAPITAL EXPENDITURE VERSUS BUDGETED CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

Fiefier to note 37 for tha comparison of aciual capital exxpenditere versus budgeted expandilurs.

58
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39, DEVIATION FROM SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT REGULATIONS

Paragraph 12{1}dy) of Government gazetbe Mo, 27836 ksued on 30 May 2005 statas thal a supply chain managament
policy must provice for the: procurement of goods and services by way of a compelilive bidding process,

Paragraph 35 of the same gazelle siates that Ihe accounbing officer may dispenss with the officisl procurement process In
eortain clrcumatancas, provided that he records the ressons for any deviations and reports them fo the next meseting of
the directars and includes a note to the annual financial statemenis,

Buses and gy equipment were procured during dhe fnancial year under revlew and the process followed in procuring
thoae goods daviated from tha provisions of parageaph 1201)(d){) as stzted ahove. Tha reasons for thess deviations ware
documanbed and repartad ta the directors who considered them and subseguenlly approved the devislion from the normal
supply chain management ragulalions, '

University of Witswatersrand - 150 000
TriGtar FOD - 171 900
Areus Gibiy - 185 (00

- 506 000
[reviationg - 20412

There were no deviations from normal supply chain management regulations in the currant year.
iations - 2011

AL the racommendstion of the Bld Adjudication Commillee, The Accounting Officer approved a deviation from normal
procurement process for fhie apgainiment of the University of Witswatersrand Deparimuont of History a3 the historian for
e conlinwstion and finalization of the Vilakazi Strect Precincl Oral Hislary Project.

Al the recommendation of the Bid Adjudication Commilbes, the Accounling Offcer approved the deviation from the normal
procurament procosses fo appoinl Tristar POD as a sole garvice provider to supply and instal a screen structure at the
DR Tambe Arpart for advertising space.

Al the recommendation of the Bid Adjudication, e Accounting Officer approved the deviation from normall procurament
process for tha appointment of Arcus Giob for the implementation of the pedesirian bridge project In accosdance with the
Kliptown Project.

Al the recommendztion of the Bid Adjudication Commiftee, the Accounting Officer approvad the deviafion fram the normal
procurament processes o shoran the tender adverising period from fourieen calendar days to eeven calendar days,
irnvillng contractors to tander for the relnstatement and repalrs of sldewalks in the Inner City Area.

At tha recommendation of the Bid Adjudicalion Gommitee, the Accounting Offcar approvad the deviafion from he normel
procuremenl processes to approach sendca providars from fhe JOA databaze lo submil proposals withoud adverising on
lhe wehsils for sevan days for the design, layoul and print of exhibition material, event management servicas a3 wall 2z to
supply branding maledal for the Halala Joburg Awards.
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ANNEXURE D: CONTRACT SCHEDULE FOR 2011/12

Project or portfolio Contractor’s Name % Black  Contract value
Equity (R)
BRT
Hlanganani Engineers & Project Management 2,097,324
Walutana Engineering and Services 100 14 887
Seco Project Management (PTY) Itd 1,077,634
EmpowerRisk 60 27 886
Nemai Consulting 100 64 400
Nemai Consulting 76 14 849
SSI Engineers & Environmental consultants 57 127 557
lkemeleng Architects CC 3,233,876
Brgstan SA Consulting &DevEng.ineers 500,257
WSP SA Civil and Structural Engineers 3,047,451
Theba& KDM QS JV 1,628,611
Arup 4,500,000
Aecom Davis Langdon 1,063,418
WSP SA Civil & Structural Engineers / KYD Consulting 740,000
Superway Consortium 3,777,821
Vela VKE (PTY) Itd 608,952
LesoleCivils CC 5,171,378
EmpowerRisk 57 9220
Vesi Safety and General Services 100 1725
Nemai Consulting 100 26 400
Nemai Consulting 94 54 946
Vesi Safety and General Services 100 47 280
RSG Engineering 100 82 688
BluePrint Landscape Architecture 0 130 000
NMA Effective Social Strategists (Pty) Ltd 97 68 885
Kopano Lesego Consulting 100 56 700
RSG Engineering 122,513
Nemai Consulting 92,160
NMA Effective Social Strategists (Pty) Ltd 129,105
Nemai Consulting CC 25,275
Marina Landscaping PTY / Tswllapelle 3,500,000
Life Landscapes A Division of Ukhamba Green Services 3,309,719
Selanya Consulting Engineers PTYItd 162,250
ND KUverjee Consulting Engineers CC T/a ND Kuverjee 519,125
Ikemeleng Architects 420,301
Archway Projects CC 210,000
Nemai Consulting 37,225
SSI Engineers and Environmental Consultants 1,089,598
AECOM Davis Langdon 38 626 768
Bophelong Joint Venture 59 645 895
Archway Projects cc 51 326 727
Arcus Gibb (Pty)Ltd 100 1583 659
Lonerock/Maziya JV 30 24 890 000
AECOM Davis Langdon 39 531928
Arcus Gibb (Pty)Ltd 48 1021133
Development & Engineering Consultants (Pty) Ltd 86 913 907
Lonerock/Khathide JV 43 27 351 937
Aecom Davis Langdon 39 1063 418
Arup (PTY) Ltd 66 6 553 777
Bophelong Joint Venture 42 10 073 052
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% Black Contract value

Equity (R)

Diagonal Project Africa 100 2198 079
Dipcivils (Pty) Ltd 46 61630 565
Group Five / ENZA JV 54 22 941 362
Group Five / Enza JV 54 37173 442
Group Five / Enza JV 54 12511 444
King Civil Ludonga JV 35 7 328 457
MajuMafani Construction 80 2804 193
Theba and KoorDindarMothei 63 1 868 060
WSP SA Civil and Structural Engineers 43 4 836 180
Goba (PTY) Ltd 100 1400 000
Marina Landscaping (PTY) Ltd JV Group 51 5078 388
Nemai Consulting 100 25,275
Yikusasa Building Contractors SA cc 100 72123 452
NBGM Landscape Architecture JV 42 2,105,000
Kingsway / City Markings JV 100 9,446,418
Diagonal Projects Africa (PTY) Ltd 100 1,000,000
Ayob Ismail &Mahomedy 100 299,787
Turner & Townsend 100 42,322
Murray & Roberts 33 9,862,124
Nemai Consulting 100 38,646
LesoleCivils cc 100 5,216,598
Nemai Consulting 96.40 115,200
Tansnet Land / metro Park
Archway Projects CC 165,000
Phakamile Engineering 49,500
Bergstan SA Consulting &DevEng 437,374
The Creative Axis 81,956
Kopano Lesego Consulting CC 25,200
RSG Engineering 159,657
Kliptown
Hoboyi and Associates 100 558 054
lkemeleng Architects 92 199 685
Dihlase Consulting Engineers (PTY)LTD 100 1000,000
(’\:l?:AA Effective Safety Health and Environmental Training Services 100 725 200
Marutleng Safety Health and Environmental Training Services CC 83 155,940
Walker Mare Johannesburg (PTY) LTD 100 100,000
Diepsloot Development
Bergstan, Bergstan South Africa 100
Consulting and Development 499 200
Engineers (Pty) Ltd
EmpowerRisk 100 51 518
Hlanganani Consortium 67 3392918
Masande Environmental Health 52
and Safety Consultants cc 64545
Phakamllle, Phakamile 100 82 500
Engineering cc
Axton Matrix Construction CC 89 9,110,847
Rehabilitation of Bruma Lake
CBA and Associates 1976 300
Vela VKE Consulting Engineers PTY LTD Bruma 18 365,000
Chris Broker and Associates 245,436
John Drummond Landscape Architects CC 95,000
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% Black

Contract value

Equity (R)
Chris Broker and Associates 0 1,976,300
Rich Construction 2,851,759
Temporary Taxi Holding Facility
Archway Projects cc 100 165 000
NarreshMiistry Architects T/A the Creative Axis 100 81,956
Axton Matrix 100 10,930,546
Kopano Lesego 100 25,200
RSG Engineering 100 159,657
Constitution Hill
Dryden Projects cc 100 3262 390
HMJ Prins Architects 0 497 607
Orlando East Station Precinct Upgrade
Badat Developments 100 415 520
Badat Developments 100 98,894
Nemai Consulting 84 200 820
Lebone Engineering (PTY) LTD 93 361,725
Bergstan SA 62 1,010,123
LesoleCivils CC 100 2,752,847
Empowerisk 51,518
Westgate Station Precinct
Archway Projects cc 62 1111000
GAPP Architect and Urban
Designers Pty Ltd 20 1558 000
Goba (Pty) Ltd 51 1355 055
KoorDindarMothei Quantity
Surveyors Pty Ltd 20 919120
NMA Effective Social Strategists
(Pty) Ltd i 93 639,985
Selanya Consulting Engineers 100 1053 168
Selanya Consulting Engineers 100 265,100
Kingsway Civil CC 100 14,751,365
COJ Clinics
Spoormaker& Partners — Electrical & Mechanical Engineers 20 137,700
Vesi Safety & General Services OHS Consultants 100 33,450
Seco Project Management 215,232
Nemai Consulting Community Participation Consultants 94 99,520
Dryden Projects 100 4,581,783
Themba Consultants 186,445
BRamgoolan and Associates Inc 194,304
Ntsika Architects 249,191
Thaba QS Surveyors t/a Thaba Consulting 95,000
Badat Development CC 110,000
Vesi Safety & General Services OHS Consultants 39,900
HMJ Prins Architects 497,608
Dihlase Consulting Engineers (PTY) LTD 100 1000,000
lkemeleng Architects CC 100 199,686
Hoboyi& Associates CC 100 558,054
NMA Effective Social Strategists (PTY) LTD 100 725,200
Marutleng Safety Health and Environmental Training Services CC 83 155,940
Walker Mare Johannesburg (PTY) LTD 100 100,000
Diepsloot
Bergstan SA Consulting & Dev. Engineers 499,200
Phakamile Engineering 82,500
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Project or portfolio Contractor’'s Name % Black  Contract value
Equity (R)
EmpowerRisk 51,518
Masande Consultants 64,545
Axton Matrix Construction cc 9,110,847
Stretford Station Node
Kingsway Civil CC 100 7,644,483
Marutleng Safety Health and Environmental Training Services CC 100 40,300
BKS (PTY) LTD 5 376,469
Phakamile Engineering consultants 127,188
Development & Engineering Consultants 188,,8800
NMA Effective Social Strategists 213,740
Orlando East/Noordgesig
Themba Consultants 44 378,413
Badat Development CC 100 147,972
Gudlhuza Development Solutions 100 43,420
Viirtual Consulting Engineers LVB 26 114,375
Vesi Safety & General Services OHS Consultants 100 19,200
Easyway Tarmac 100 2,922,832
Innercity Commuter Links Phase 2
RSG Engineering 85 140,050
Moseme Road Construction (PTY) Itd 100 8,870,964
Zizwe General Services 4,609,394
Alex Ginton Associates PTY LTD 41,150
NT GemetricsGauteng 25,789
Ayob Ismail Mahomedy 124,866
Akweni Construction and Project Management 163,548
PH Bagalelnc 480,444
Arcus Gibb 93,975
lyerRothaung Collaborative t/a lyer Urban Design 383,650
Selanya Consulting Engineers 253,299
Kopano Lesego Consulting CC 41,600
Bertrams Mixed Use Development Security Services
Bathlokomedi / Mothibatlha JV 100 487,221
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JDAO010/1: Kliptown Renewal Precinct (Phase 2.2)

Nature of Development

Area-based regeneration of the Greater Kliptown area

Rationale for Development & Strategic Alignment

Kliptown, given its historical significance, is a celebrated site. The area-based

regeneration programme undertaken in Greater Kliptown is intended to extend the

economic and social benefits of the development to local residents and shop-

owners in this area.

Region: D

2011/12 Budget:

e R 10.000 million

Source of Funding / Amount (R):

e  City of Johannesburg: R10.000 million
GDS Priorities / Sector Plan:

. Economic development

e  Spatial form & urban management

5 Year Strategic Objectives addressed:

. Economic base of underdeveloped areas of the City increased over
five years

IDP Programmes addressed:
° Area-based economic development programme

Objectives & Outcomes

The development will serve to improve the sustainability of the WSSD, the Kliptown Hotel and the neighbourhood as a whole.

Overview

The Walter Sisulu Square of Dedication (WSSD) was built to commemorate the Congress of the People that adopted the Freedom Charter in 26 June 1955. The square
was successfully completed and opened by the State President of South Africa on 26 June 2005. The Greater Kliptown Regeneration Development is a major urban
regeneration initiative in Soweto and the goal of the development is the sustainable and integrated development of the area. In 2008/09 a basement parking facility was
completed to serve the newly opened Hotel on the square and to accommodate the parking needs of the area-based facilities such as the museum, community centre and

visitors’ centre.

Despite this investment, there is still a disconnect between the square and the neighbouring businesses on Union Street and the pedestrian links across the railway line
and from the railway station remain degraded. In 2010/11 the new phase of regeneration in Kliptown included upgrading of at least one of the heritage buildings on the
Union Street side of the square; and some improvements to the pedestrian bridge across the railway line and the promenade along the railway line to the station.

Delivery Programme

Development Stage 07/08 08/09

09/10

10111 1112 12113

13114

Business Plan

Implementation

Exit

Evaluation

Deliverables in 2011/12

Completion of walkway to station, and public art installation. Further implementation of public environment upgrading including streets and sidewalks, and drainage.

Completion Schedule: 2011/12 Planned Progress per Quarter (%)

Deliverable Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year
EEZI;Z ngnronment upgrade in Kliptown Renewal Precinct 0% 25% 60% 100% 100%
Job Creation Schedule: 2011/12 Planned Short-Terms Jobs per Quarter (No. Of Jobs)

Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year
Short-Terms Jobs 3 9 12 14 38
Completion Schedule: 2011/12 Actual Progress per quarter (%) Year to date
Public environment upgrade in Kliptown Renewal Precinct 0% 0% 20% 100% 100%
Phase 2.2
Completion Schedule:2011/12 Actual short term jobs per quarter
Short term Jobs | 0 | 0 28 53 81
JDAO048: Orlando East Station Precinct (Phase 3)
Nature of Development

) } Region: D
The upgrading of Orlando station node
2011/12 Budget:

Rationale for Development & Strategic Alignment
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An urban development framework has been completed for Orlando East and Noordgesig.

This has established a number of intervention areas to improve community spaces and
increase efficiency, density and rationalise development. A first intervention is the
upgrading of the Orlando station node which hosts the Orlando railway station and a
number of civic uses as well as two BRT stations. The node is a critical transit
interchange point, an important pedestrian environment and a crucial institutional node in
Orlando East. It is also the point of arrival for visitors to Orlando stadium. A number of
improvements are recommended for Noordgesig. A small intervention that will have

significant impact is the reinstatement of a pocket park located centrally within the suburb.

A key link between Orlando East and Noordgesig and a key node on the BRT system is

the intersection of Mooki Street and Soweto highway where increased density and mixed
use is proposed. The establishment of guidelines and encouragement of redevelopment
in this node is a priority.

e R 5.000 million
e R4.386 million
Source of Funding / Amount (R):

e  City of Johannesburg: R 5.000 million
e  EPWP incentive grant R4.386 million

GDS Priorities / Sector Plan:
e  Spatial Form and Urban Management

5 Year Strategic Objectives addressed:

. Public investment in marginalised areas to facilitate
crowding in of private sector spending

IDP Programmes addressed:

. Economic area based regeneration

Objectives & Outcomes

To optimise the potential of Orlando East given its strategic location and historical significance.

Overview

Detailed design was completed in 2009/10. To implement the plan for this node, the JDA will focus on upgrading the link between the BRT service in Mooki Street and the

Orlando East railway station and other public environment upgrading to improve pedestrian links.

Delivery Programme

Development Stage 08/09 09/10

10/11

1112 12113 13114

Initial Investigation

Detailed Investigation

Business Plan

Implementation

Exit

Evaluation

Deliverables in 2011/12

Extension of public environment upgrading along pathway linking station forecourt and Mooki Street, and public art installation.

Deliverable Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year
2010/11 Planned Progress per Quarter (%)

Public environment upgrading in Orlando East Station

Precinct Phase 2 0% 25% 60% 100% 100%
Public environment upgrading in Orlando East Noordgesig 0% 25% 60% 100% 100%
(EPWP)

2010/11 Planned Short-Terms Jobs per Quarter (No. of Jobs)

Short-Terms Jobs | 2 6 8 9 25
Completion Schedule: 2010/11 Actual Progress per quarter Year to date
Public environment upgrading in Orlando East Station

Precinct Phase 2 0% 0% 20% 122% 122%
Public environment upgrading in Orlando East Noordgesig 0% 0% 9% 121% 121%
(EPWP)

Jobs creation schedule:2010/11 Actual short term jobs per quarter

Short term jobs | 0 | 0 | 64 | 233 | 297

JDAO56 ICF4: Commuter links / Art Gallery (Rea Vaya) Station Precinct Upgrade (Phase 2)

Nature of Development

Public space upgrading to allow better movement of commuters to and from the Art
Gallery BRT station (one of the busiest BRT stations in the inner city) and strengthen
links with other modes of transport.

Rationale for Development & Strategic Alignment

The BRT service is proving to be an efficient and popular public transport option. Great
care has been taken to make the BRT stations appealing and user-friendly, but now
there is a need to improve the pedestrian access to and from these stations and the
quality of the public environment in their vicinity. The Art Gallery BRT station is one of
the busiest ones in the inner city.

Objectives & Outcomes

2011/12 Budget
e R 15.800 million
Source of Funding / Amount (R):

e City of Johannesburg ICF: R 15.800 million

GDS Priorities / Sector Plan:

° Economic area regeneration programme

e Increased use by people with disabilities (PWDs) of the public
transport system. Improved accessibility to private and public
transport in marginalised areas

e  Design and implement codes to create safer communities,
legibility, functionality and aesthetics of the urban environment
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To improve pedestrian and traffic links to and from the Art Gallery BRT station. . Corridors and mobility routes planned, developed and managed in
the way that supports the overall development framework of high
intensity nodes on a lattice of connecting routes

Overview

The Art Gallery BRT station is close to a number of key public transport facilities. It is within easy walking distance of Park Station, and the Jack Mincer and Park City taxi

ranks. It is also within close proximity to high density residential areas in Hillbrow. To improve access to the Art Gallery BRT station, and to increase pedestrian safety, and

reduce congestion the following interventions are proposed:

. Repairs and / or new paving along Twist street from Smit Street to Plein street, along Plein Street between Klein and Quartz streets; and along Edith Cavell between
Plein and Bree streets

e Street lighting improvements throughout the precinct

. Improvements to the flow of taxis into and out of Jack Mincer taxi rank

. Pedestrian deterrent along Twist Street from BRT station towards Hancock Street

Delivery Programme (to be shaded)

Development Stage 08/09 09/10 10111 1112 12113 13114

Detailed Investigation

Business Plan

Implementation

Exit

Evaluation

Deliverables in 2011/12

Repairs and improvements to paving and lighting around the Art Gallery BRT station; Street lighting throughout the precinct; and Access and egress improvements at
Jack Mincer taxi rank

Deliverable | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year

2011/12 Planned Progress per Quarter (%)

Detailed designs for public environment upgrading in the o o o o o

Art Gallery Rea Vaya BRT station precinct (Phase 2) 0% 25% 60% 100% 100%
2011/12 Planned Short-Terms Jobs per Quarter (No. of Jobs)

Short-Terms Jobs | 4 19 25 28 76
Completion schedule: 2011/12 Actual progress per quarter Year to date
Detailed designs for public environment upgrading in the o o 0 0 o

Art Gallery Rea Vaya BRT station precinct (Phase 1) 12% 30% 30% 100% 100%

Job creation schedule: 2011/12 Actual short term jobs per quarter

Short term jobs | 34 56 27 116 233

JDAO58 ICF5: Westgate Station Precinct

Nature of Development 201112 Budget

Public environment upgrade in the South Western part of the inner city in accordance with | e R 19.2 million

the Inner City Charter commitments for year 5. Source of Funding / Amount (R):
Rationale for Development & Strategic Alignment e City of Johannesburg ICF: R 19.2million

There is increasing evidence that the City’s interventions are revitalising the inner city and | GDS Priorities / Sector Plan:
leading to increased private sector confidence and investment. In support of the Inner City | e Economic development

Charter the CoJ continues to commit money to the Inner City Fund in order to undertake e Spatial form & urban management
key infrastructure and other projects that will continue to promote the redevelopment of the

. . et 5 Year Strategic Objectives addressed:
inner city and attract private investors.

e Increase investor confidence in declining & under-performing areas.

Objectives & Outcomes

The challenge is to continue intensive regeneration efforts to ensure more rapid, even and sustained positive impacts on the entire Inner City, without having a detrimental
effect on Inner City communities. The Charter proposes that all stakeholders envisage the future Inner City as a place:

+ That will be developed in a balanced way in order to accommodate all people and interests;

+ Which remains as the vibrant business heart of Johannesburg as a whole, but which balances future commercial, retail and light manufacturing development with a
large increase in residential density;

+ Which works, as many other cities do elsewhere in the world as, a key residential node where a diverse range of people from different income groups and
backgrounds can have their residential needs met. Our Inner City will not be a dormitory for the poor, nor an exclusive enclave of loft apartments, galleries and
coffee shops;

+ Offirst entry into Johannesburg, but also a place where people want to stay because it offers a high quality urban environment with available social and educational
facilities, generous quality public open space, and ample entertainment opportunities;

+ Which serves as both the key transportation transit point for the entire Gauteng Global City Region, but also as a destination point where people want to walk in the
streets;

+ Where the prevailing urban management, safety and security concerns are a thing of the past.

Overview

To begin area based interventions in the Westgate Station Precinct in the inner city; to address the quality of the public environment to both respond to and stimulate
private sector investment in this area.
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Delivery Programme

Development Stage 08/09 09110 10111 1112 12113 13114

Detailed Investigation

Business Plan

Implementation

Exit

Deliverables in 2011/12

Public environment upgrading in the Westgate Station Precinct, including upgrading and repair of paving, lighting and public spaces and redesign of sidewalks along
Market, Commissioner, Fox, Main, Marshall, Alexander, Miriam Makeba, Gerard Sekoto and NtemiPiliso. This will include the development of new public places, and
infrastructure for a heritage trail.

Deliverable | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year

2011/12 Planned Progress per Quarter (%)

Public environment upgrading in the Westgate station

precinct phase 1 0% 25% 60% 100% 100%

2011/12 Planned Short-Terms Jobs per Quarter (No. of Jobs)

Short-Terms Jobs | 8 | 23 32 37 100

Completion schedule: 2011/12 Actual progress per quarter Year to date

Public environment upgrading in the Westgate station

0, 0, 0, 0, 0,
precinct phase 1 0% 34% 81% 100% 100%

Jobs creation schedule: 2011/12 Actual short term jobs per quarter

Short term jobs | 0 | 49 99 31 179

JDAO59Transnet land / Metro park (Phase 1)

Nature of Development

The development of land previously owned by Transnet along the railway line in Region: F

Northern Newtown to include a large scale park for the inner city. 2010/11 Budget:

Rationale for Development & Strategic Alignment ¢ R13.000 milion

Source of Funding / Amount (R):
The JDA has investigated various development options for the vacant land . . -
previously owned by Transnet along the railway line in Newtown North. The * Cityof Johannesburg CF: R 13.000 million

Newtown North Urban Development Framework proposed an International Transit

and Shopping Centre on the Kazeme property, and the feasibility of this project GDS Priorities / Sector Plan:

has been investigated to some extent. There are also plans to develop a new *  Spatial form and urban management

phase of the Brickfields housing project. A design competition was also run by JDA

in 2009 to identify the best concept for a large metro park. Finally, the decking 5 Year Strategic Objectives addressed:

project initiated by the JDA has been developed into a business plan to guide long o Increase investor confidence in declining and under-performing
term implementation plans. areas

All of these options will be taken into account in developing a multiyear public IDP Programmes addressed:

environment upgrading project, and a PPP project to develop the Kazerne . Economic area based regeneration

property.

Objectives & Outcomes

The challenge is to continue intensive regeneration efforts to ensure more rapid, even and sustained positive impacts on the entire Inner City, without having a detrimental
effect on Inner City communities. The Charter proposes that all stakeholders envisage the future Inner City as a place:

+ That will be developed in a balanced way in order to accommodate all people and interests;

+ Which remains as the vibrant business heart of Johannesburg as a whole, but which balances future commercial, retail and light manufacturing development with a
large increase in residential density;

+ Which works, as many other cities do elsewhere in the world as, a key residential node where a diverse range of people from different income groups and
backgrounds can have their residential needs met. Our Inner City will not be a dormitory for the poor, nor an exclusive enclave of loft apartments, galleries and
coffee shops;

« Offirst entry into Johannesburg, but also a place where people want to stay because it offers a high quality urban environment with available social and educational
facilities, generous quality public open space, and ample entertainment opportunities;

+ Which serves as both the key transportation transit point for the entire Gauteng Global City Region, but also as a destination point where people want to walk in the
streets;

+ Where the prevailing urban management, safety and security concerns are a thing of the past.

Overview

To improve and develop the vacant land previously owned by Transnet in order to stimulate private investment in new property developments in line with the City's
development vision for Newtown North.

Delivery Programme

Development Stage 08/09 09/10 10111 1112 1213 13114

Business Plan

Implementation
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Exit
Evaluation
Deliverables in 2011/12
Public environment upgrading on Transnet land and strategic property developments
Deliverable | Q1 | Q2 | Q3 | Q4 | Year
2011/12 Planned Progress per Quarter (%)
Transnet land investment phase 1 | 0% | 25% | 60% | 100% | 100%
2011/12 Planned Short-Terms Jobs per Quarter (No. of Jobs)
Short-Terms Jobs | 4 | 7 | 21 | 21 | 65
Year to date
Transnet land investment phase 1 | 0% | 0% | 23% | 100% | 100%
Jobs creation schedule:2011/12 Actual short term jobs per quarter
Short-Terms Jobs | 0 | 0 | 0 | 70 | 70
JDAO046: Diepsloot Development (Phase 3)
Nature of Development Region: A
Area-based regeneration of the Diepsloot area 2011/12 Budget:
e R 10.000 million

Rationale for Development & Strategic Alignment

Diepsloot is a relatively new residential neighbourhood on the Northern periphery
of the City of Johannesburg. It is a very underdeveloped area. It contains a mix of
informal housing, RDP housing and bonded housing, with very little commercial
land use and few community facilities. Population densities are high and public
infrastructure and services are limited and of a poor quality. This is a key area for
public investment to support improved quality of life and economic development.

Source of Funding / Amount (R):
National Treasury NDPG: R10.000 million
GDS Priorities / Sector Plan:

Economic development
Spatial form and urban management
5 Year Strategic Objectives addressed:

Economic base of underdeveloped areas of the City increased over
five years

IDP Programmes addressed:

e Area-based economic development programme

Objectives & Outcomes

The development will serve to improve the sustainability of Diepsloot both in social and economic terms.

Overview

Preliminary planning work was done for the activity zone in 2009, and an urban development framework was done for the Diepsloot area (in 2010), that identified priority
projects along an activity street, in a government precinct, around a business zone and around the taxi rank that serves the area. First phases of public space upgrading
projects were implemented around the government precinct (Ngonyama Street) during 2009/10. In 2010/11 interventions included construction of at least two pedestrian
bridges across the river, and some public space upgrading across the area, but especially in the business zone.

Delivery Programme

Development Stage 07/08 08/09 09/10 1011 1112 12113 13114
Detailed Investigation

Business Plan

Implementation

Exit

Evaluation

Deliverables in 2011/12

Completion of Ngonyama Road upgrading and investment in Ndimatseloni Road

Completion Schedule: 2011/12 Planned Progress per Quarter (%)

Deliverable Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year
Public environment upgrading on Ngonyama Road 0% 25% 60% 100% 100%
Job Creation Schedule: 2011/12 Planned Short-Terms Jobs per Quarter (No. of Jobs)

Short-Terms Jobs | 4 17 | 22 | 25 | 68
Completion schedule:2011/12 Actual progress per quarter Year to date
Public environment upgrading on Ngonyama Road | 0% 0% | 29% | 95% | 95%
Job Creation schedule:2011/12 Actual short term jobs

Short term jobs [ o] 0 | 38 | 7 | 219
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JDAO036/2: Stretford Station Precinct, Orange Farm (Phase 3)

Nature of Development

Develop the station node in order to attract private investment in the area. Region: G

Source of Funding / Amount (R):

Rationale for Development & Strategic Alignment e NDPG: R10.000 million

Stretford Station is situated in Orange Farm on the Johannesburg-Vereeniging GDS Priorities / Sector Plan:
boundary, approximately 40km to the south of the Johannesburg CBD. e Spatial form & urban management
It falls under Region G in terms of the RSDF and Stretford is classified as a District . Economic development

Node. A district node can serve a few neighbourhoods but is mainly focused on the e Community development

local community. The most critical issue to address in a District Node is easy and
interconnected pedestrian movement. Due to the strategic location of the Stretford
Station in the node, the node is envisaged as a transportation-based node to be
developed in line with the principles of transport-oriented development.

5 Year Strategic Objectives addressed:
. Public investment in marginalised areas to facilitate crowding
in of private sector spending

Objectives & Outcomes

The attraction of new private sector investment to complement and enhance the facilities already available in the Stretford Node. The overall purpose for the development
of this node is to create an environment that will allow the station to efficiently function as a public transport inter-modal facility and to support the development of a local
economic node.

Overview

In 2008/09 an Urban Development Framework and construction work began on the ridge walkway in the Stretford Station node. This work focused on the crucial
pedestrian connection from the body of the Orange Farm settlements to Streford station. The walkway across the ridge leading to the station is being upgraded and the
public environment surrounding the existing and proposed facilities in the node will be addressed with focus enhancing the linkages between facilities and ensuring
comfortable and safe pedestrian movement. The ridge walkway was completed in 2009/10 and anecdotal evidence suggests that it has made a very big difference in
commuters’ and residents’ lives.

During the last rainy season, high and sustained rainfall showed up weaknesses in the storm-water drainage system in Orange Farm. This has resulted in flooding that
caused damage to roads, paths and other infrastructure.

Delivery Programme

Development Stage 08/09 09/10 10111 1112 12113 13114

Initial Investigation

Detailed Investigation

Business Plan

Implementation

Exit

Deliverables in 2011/12

Storm water system designed and implemented including an attenuation dam and drainage channels and pipes.
Urban space upgrading including paving and parking at Stretford Station.

Deliverable ‘ Q1 ‘ Q2 ‘ Q3 ‘ Q4 ‘ Year
2010/11 Planned Progress per Quarter (%)

Public environment upgrading in Stretford station precinct 0% 25% 60% 100% 100%
(Phase 3)

2010/11 Planned Short-Terms Jobs per Quarter (No. of Jobs)

Short-Terms Jobs ‘ 4 ‘ 12 ‘ 16 ‘ 18 ‘ 50
Completion schedule:2011/12 Actual progress per quarter Year to date
Public environment upgrading in Stretford station precinct 100%
(Phase 3) 0% 0% 35% 100%

Jobs created schedule: 2011/12 Actual short term per quarter

Short term jobs | 0 | 0 37 141 178
3.8 JDA045: Bus Rapid Transit Routes and Stations

Nature of Development

Delivery of the Bus Rapid Transit System (BRT). Region: Various

. s 2011/12 Budget:
Rationale for Development & Strategic Alignment
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The City of Johannesburg (COJ) has adopted an urban development policy which
aims to create compact cities and limit urban sprawl. The COJ has decided to
implement the Rea Vaya — Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) system. BRT is simply the
idea of creating a rail-like performance using road-based technologies that are
affordable to most cities. It refers to a high quality bus based transit system that
delivers fast, comfortable, and cost-effective urban mobility through the provision
of segregated right-of-way infrastructure, rapid and frequent operations, and
excellence in marketing and customer service.

e R 529000 million
Source of Funding / Amount (R):

. City of Johannesburg (NDoT PTIS):R380.000 million
GDS Priorities / Sector Plan:

e  Spatial form & urban management

. Economic development

. Community development

5 Year Strategic Objectives addressed:

° Improved Public Transport System

Objectives & Outcomes

The development targets the improvement of public transport in the City of Johannesburg for the 2010 World Cup and beyond.

Overview

The project is to be delivered in Phases as funding allows. In 2011/12 the second trunk route infrastructure will be completed and planning and preparation will be

undertaken for the 3 trunk route.

Delivery Programme

Development Stage 08/09 09/10 10111 1112 12113 1314
Implementation

Evaluation

Deliverables in 2010/11

1. 7.3 kilometres of dedicated busway

2. Construction works for 1 bus depot (Dobsonville Depot)

3. Newclare road underpass and other road infrastructure

4, 4 stations

Deliverable | Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Year
2011/12 Planned Progress per Quarter (%)

Section 2 (4.25 kms construction) 30% 45% 60% 100% 100%
Section 4 (0.26 kms construction) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Rissik and Harrison(0.50 kms construction) 80% 90% 100% 100% 100%
Bus depot (Dobsonville construction phase 2) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Pat Mbatha (2.12 kms construction) 70% 90% 100% 100% 100%
Road Underpass (construction) 70% 90% 100% 100% 100%
Booysens Reserve pedestrian bridge 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Pennyville pedestrian bridge 80% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Bus depot (Dobsonville construction phase 2) 0% 15% 50% 100% 100%
4 bus stations 0% 15% 50% 100% 100%
Section 6 and 8 design work 0% 0% 50% 100% 100%
2011/12 Planned Short-Terms Jobs per Quarter (No. of Jobs)

Short-Terms Jobs | 765 43 425 383 2125
Completion schedule:2011/12 Actual progress per quarter Year to date
Section 2 (4.25 kms construction) 51% 67% 85% 99% 99%
Section 4 (0.26 kms construction) 98% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Rissik and Harrison(0.50 kms construction) 88% 92% 100% 100% 100%
Bus depot (Dobsonville construction phase 2) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Pat Mbatha (2.12 kms construction) 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Road Underpass (construction) 72% 87% 92% 98% 98%
Booysens Reserve pedestrian bridge 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Pennyville pedestrian bridge 80% 100% 100% 100% 100%
Bus depot (Dobsonville construction phase 2) 0% 28% 35% 80% 80%
4 bus stations 0% 35% 70% 100% 100%
Station environments 0% 0% 0% 19% 19%
Lane colourisation 0% 15% 100% 100%
Section 6 and 8 design work 0% 0% 0% 10% 10%
Jobs creation schedule:2011/12 Actual short term jobs

Short term jobs 288 1004 582 716 2590
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